
Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 26 July 2019 1

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

Telephone:  (01874) 624437
Plas y Ffynnon
Cambrian Way
Brecon
Powys
LD3 7HP

Dear Member

A meeting of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held in THE 
CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON 
LD3 7HP ON FRIDAY, 26TH JULY, 2019 AT 10.00 AM when your attendance is 
requested.

Yours sincerely

Julian Atkins

Chief Executive

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY FILMS AND
WEBCASTS ALL ITS PUBLIC MEETINGS LIVE  - 

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/ 

Fire Evacuation Advice

In the event of a fire, please exit the building via the main staircase,

and assemble in the car park at Assembly Point 3

1 CORRESPONDENCE 

            To receive and consider the attached Schedule of 
Correspondence and any recommendations thereon (below).

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Public Document Pack

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/


Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 26 July 2019 2

To receive any declarations of interest from members relating to items 
on the agenda.  Members’ attention is drawn to the sheet attached to 
the attendance sheet and the need to record their declarations verbally 
and in writing, specifying the nature of the interest.
 
If Members have declared an interest in an item please ensure 
that you inform the Chair when you are leaving the room, so 
that this can be recorded in the minutes

 

3 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10)

To receive the minutes of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 3rd May 
2019 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them as a correct record

4 AGM MINUTES (Pages 11 - 12)

To receive the minutes of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee AGM held on 

28th June 2019 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them as a correct record
 

5 PUBLIC SPEAKING SCHEME 

To give the public an opportunity to address the committee in line with 
the notice required under the Authority’s Public Speaking Scheme.

 

6 ACTION TRACKING (Pages 13 - 16)

A: Budget Monitoring

7 2018/19 FINANCIAL OUTTURN AND RESERVES (Pages 17 - 26)

8 2019/20 BUDGET PERFORMANCE TO 30 JUNE 2019 (Pages 27 - 42)

9 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19 (Pages 43 - 104)

10 INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE (Pages 105 - 122)

B: Scrutiny

11 ROLE OF SCRUTINY 



Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 26 July 2019 3

C: Performance and Risk

12 COMPLIMENTS/COMPLAINTS/FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 
(Pages 123 - 132)

13 INTEGRATED ASSURANCE FRAMEWORK (Pages 133 - 168)

D: Other Business

14 OTHER BUSINESS 

SCHEDULE OF CORRESPONDENCE

1. To receive apologies for absence

2. Such other correspondence as, in the opinion of the Chairman, is of such urgency 
as to warrant consideration.

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Julia Gruffydd or Angharad 
Hawkes on 10874 624437



This page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 1 3 May 2019

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD AT CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, 

CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON LD3 7HP ON FRIDAY, 3RD MAY, 2019

PRESENT:

Blaenau Gwent

Cllr J Hill

Carmarthenshire

Cllr A James
Cllr K Madge

Rhondda Cynon Taff

Cllr G Thomas

Members appointed by the Welsh Government

Mr Ian Rowat (Deputy Chair), Mr James Marsden and Mrs Sue Holden

In Attendance

Sean O'Connor, Monitoring Officer
Stephen Gray, Delivery Director
Mr Julian Atkins, Chief Executive
Elaine Standen, Finance Manager
Mr Paul Funnell, IT and Systems Manager
Mrs Julia Gruffydd, Democratic Services Manager

Apologies

Cllr A Webb and Cllr McIntosh

14/19 Correspondence 

In the absence of the Chair, Cllr A Webb, the Deputy Chair, Ian Rowat, introduced 
himself as the Chair of this meeting and welcomed all to the meeting.  He introduced 
Nick Selwyn, Steve Frank, Deryck Evans and Euros Lake from the Wales Audit Office, and 
Clive Fitzgerald from TIAA, standing in for Helen Cargill. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 2 3 May 2019

Apologies were noted.
 

15/19 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest.
 

16/19 Minutes 

One minor amendment was noted in relation to the nomenclature of attendees.
 

RESOLVED:  that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 
February 2019 be approved and the Chair authorised to 
sign them as a correct record.

 

17/19 Public Speaking Scheme 

There were no requests to speak.
 

18/19 Action Tracking 

Members reviewed outstanding actions from previous Authority and committee 
meetings.  The Chief Executive clarified how the work on reviewing boundary 
encroachments was being carried out and agreed to advise members of the timescale for 
this.  It was noted that officers in the field would shortly be able to gather information on 
their hand held devices through GIS.
 

19/19 Wales Audit Office Reports 

The Chair advised that this and the next agenda item would be dealt with together and 
invited Wales Audit officers to present their reports.
 
Review of compliance with Wellbeing of Future Generations Act/Partnerships 
Audit
 
Members welcomed the positive report and the areas where some improvements could 
be made and made the following comments:
 

         The criticism that the Authority was spending too much of its resource on short 
term prevention was unfair given the level of resources and the uncertainty of 
future funding levels.  This was acknowledged but Wales Audit was required to ask 
such question of public bodies in line with the requirements of the Act. The CEO 
advised that the Authority had already started to put in place the priority setting 
and strategic partnerships review, recognising resource constraints.

 

Page 6



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 3 3 May 2019

         A member felt that the Authority should be audited on how it delivers the first 
purpose.  The officer advised that legislation determined how the Authority was 
audited and there was a clearly defined remit.
 

         Referring to the recommendation that the Authority could do more in its use of 
data a member commented that the Authority’s choice of indicators was not 
sound but that it was working this.  He would like to see Wales Audit working 
with the Authority on a shorter, smarter, evidence based list of indicators.  The 
Authority had agreed the need for an evidence protocol but this needed to be 
defined.
 

         The CEO referred to slide 32 and commented that reviews of, for example, 
partnerships, could only be done periodically because of resources, but that 
officers were developing better processes for engaging with the Local 
Development Plan and the National Park Management Plan.  WAO officers advised 
that the Authority needed to involve people from diverse backgrounds.
 

         A member queried the focus on the Welsh Language and crime prevention, which 
he felt fell within the local authority remit.  It was noted that the Authority was 
subject to the Welsh Language Standards but these were aligned to the National 
Park Authority rather than a local authority
 

         The Delivery Director advised that officers were carrying out an outcome based 
review of partnerships to be completed by the end of May and linked to 
workforce planning.  A member commented that this would probably mean fewer, 
more focused partnerships in future
 

         A member commented on the scale, depth and cost of audit, including the cost of 
staff participating, and advised that this activity should be appropriate to the size of 
the organisations as there was a critical mass of flexibility; she also queried how 
the recommendations in the audit could be prioritised and implemented when 
operating at a constrained level.  She asked whether good practice elsewhere 
could be highlighted, as she struggled to see how the Authority could improve in 
some areas.  Wales Audit officers advised that the level of fees was equal to those 
in other Welsh National Park Authorities and the Fire and Rescue Authorities, and 
that a national report would be published next year highlighting good practice, 
with the three National Park Authorities referenced within that;
 

         A member queried the prioritisation of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 
and asked if it was more important than the Authority’s purposes and duty; the 
officer responded that the Act had been built into the planning system in Wales
 

         The CEO commented that while the Welsh Government would look at how the 
Authority delivered its purposes against the five ways of working, it was not yet 
clear where it should focus most effort.  The Wales Audit officer advised that it 
was up to the Authority to demonstrate where its priorities lay.
 

         The point was made that the use of the word ‘council’ was used in the 
presentation and that proper reference should be made to the National Park 
Authority 

Page 7



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 4 3 May 2019

 
Annual Improvement Report
 
Wales Audit presented their retrospective report which looked at plans for 
improvement.  Members welcomed the fact that there were no recommendations but 
some proposals for improvement.  The CEO advised that the Authority’s work with the 
Public Service Boards needed to be reflected in the Local Development Plan and National 
Park Management Plan.
 
Annual Audit Plan for 2019/20
 
This plan had been developed in consultation with the Finance Manager.  Members’ 
attention was drawn to the project brief for this work, included on the agenda.
 
Officers confirmed that there was no date yet for the Authority coming out of the Local 
Government Measure requirements.  The CEO would raise this with Welsh Government 
officials at their meeting on 20 May.
 

RESOLVED:  That the Wales Audit reports and plan be 
noted.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20/19 Internal Audit 2018/19 Summary Report and 2019/20 Plan 

The Finance Manager and Internal Auditor presented a report on progress against audit 
actions in 2018/19, many of which had been implemented.  The proposed audit 
programme for 2019/20 was also presented.
 
The Chair queried the process for determining the audit programme and the involvement 
of this committee, as well as the total number of days.  The CEO advised that the 
contract with TIAA was for 20 days, reduced from 30 days under the previous auditors.  
The work was commissioned in the name of the committee and topics selected by 
himself, auditors and the Finance Manager, but he was happy to involve members in 
future.
 
A member proposed that if the contract terms could not be changes then this needs to 
be reviewed and reduced to 15 days in future in light of the unprecedented financial 
pressures.  He queried the inclusion of Brexit in Block 1 as work was progressing on 
refocusing priorities, and Brexit was only a part of this.  The auditor advised that this was 
not a specific audit on Brexit but part of a look at business continuity, of which Brexit was 
one risk.  The audit would look at systems as well as risks.
 

Page 8



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 5 3 May 2019

The amount of time proposed for health and safety was queried but the CEO advised that 
there had been no independent assessment for some time.
 
A member advised of the need for regular audit as things could easily go wrong when 
under pressure.  He congratulated officers on the audit outcomes.  
 
The Chair asked whether it would be useful for the committee to have input to internal 
audit at an earlier stage as he felt this would build confidence in the role of the 
committee.  The CEO supported this and said that the restructured Corporate 
Governance Team would enable the Authority to do this better in future by identifying 
issues during the year.
 
The auditor placed on record his thanks to all the staff who had assisted in the audits, 
which was much appreciated.
 

RESOLVED:
 
a)  That Members note the outstanding actions arising 

from the work of Internal Audit in 2018/19 and the 
contents of the report on Internal Control for the year.

 
b) That Members review the draft Internal Audit Plan and 

three-year strategy 2019-2022.
 

21/19 Q4 Performance Report 

The IT and Systems Manager advised that this was the last report in the current format as 
future reports would be an integrated assurance framework.  A final performance report 
for the year would be brought via the Annual Report in the autumn.
 
A member stated that the Authority was still measuring the wrong things and it must 
commit to change this, and also to link this better to its prioritisation.  For this reason he 
felt that the reports were truthful as they reported against what was measured, but not 
honest.
 
A member congratulated officers on the positive performance report.
 

RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.
 

22/19 Risk Register - quarter 4  high risks 

Members noted a report on the highest level of risks on the risk register. In response to a 
question the IT and Systems Manager advised that scoring could be done before and after 
mitigating actions, with current and target scores. Other components could also be 
included and he would continue to discuss this with colleagues.
 

RESOLVED:  To note the report
 

Page 9



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 6 3 May 2019

23/19 Compliments/Complaints/Freedom of Information 

Members noted compliments, complaints and Freedom of Information requests received 
since the last meeting and noted the increase in compliments.
 

24/19 Draft Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 

The Democratic Services Manager presented the draft Annual Governance Statement for 
2018/19 and advised that this was very much a first draft based on advice from Wales 
Audit.  The Governance and Member Development Working Group would be reviewing 
this on 7 May before the Authority was asked to approve a final version.
 

RESOLVED:  That the draft Annual Governance 
Statement be recommended to the Authority for 
publication with the Annual Statement of Accounts 
subject to further comments from the Governance and 
Member Development Working Group, and final editing.

 

25/19 Other Business 

There was no further business.
 

Signed as a correct record
Chairman of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Page 10



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 1 28 June 2019

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD AT CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, 

CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON LD3 7HP ON FRIDAY, 28TH JUNE, 2019

PRESENT:

Blaenau Gwent

Powys

Cllr K Laurie-Parry

Monmouthshire

Cllr A Webb (Chair)

Merthyr Tydfil

Rhondda Cynon Taff

Torfaen

Members appointed by the Welsh Government

Mr Ian Rowat (Deputy Chair) and Mrs Sue Holden

In Attendance

Sean O'Connor, Monitoring Officer
Stephen Gray, Delivery Director
Mr Julian Atkins, Chief Executive
Mr Paul Funnell, IT and Systems Manager
Mrs Julia Gruffydd, Democratic Services Manager

Apologies

Cllr A James

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Brecon Beacons National Park
Audit and Scrutiny Committee 2 28 June 2019

26/19 Correspondence 

Apologies were noted.

27/19 Declarations of Interest 

No declarations were made.

28/19 Public Speaking Scheme 

There were no requests to speak.

29/19 Election of Chair 

The Deputy Chair took the chair for the election of Chair.
 

RESOLVED:  That Cllr A Webb be elected Chair of the 
Audit and Scrutiny Committee until the next Annual 
General Meeting of the Authority.

 

30/19 Election of Deputy Chair 

Cllr A Webb resumed the Chair.
 

RESOLVED:  That Mr I Rowat  be elected Deputy Chair 
of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee until the next 
Annual General Meeting of the Authority.

 

31/19 Other Business 

There was no further business.

Signed as a correct record
Chairman of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Page 12



Committee Date Minute No Agenda item title Decision text Action Deadline Date Owner Comments Status

National Park Authority 28/07/2017 10:00 10 SDF Approval over £30,000 Arrange for Big Pit apprentices to give a 

presentation to the Authority

Helen Roderick 15/03/2019:  - Liaising with Angharad re 

possible dates for this visit.

In progress

National Park Authority 10/11/2017 10:00 13 Member Champion Reports Schedule Bethan Price to do sweep up 

session with members

30/11/17 00:00 Helen Roderick/ 

Julia Gruffydd

27/09/2018:  - Julia to organise with new 

WLO

To do

National Park Authority 09/02/2018 10:00 11 Affordable Housing Working Group 

Recommendation - Award of 

Commuted Sums

Arrange legal agreement with Melin Homes 

and transfer of money / Advise PCC of NPA 

decision

31/03/18 00:00 Mrs Helen 

Lucoq

16/04/2018:  - Further information has been 

requested from Melin Homes in terms of 

timeframes relating to purchase of land, 

submission of planning application etc.

delayed

National Park Authority 09/02/2018 10:00 13 Localised Boundary Encroachments 

CL18 West (southern Fringe)

Investigate scale of other boundary 

encroachments and report back to NPA

31/03/18 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins 16/04/2018:  To be programmed

17/01/2019:  - progress delayed due to staff 

capacity and three property matters having 

to take precedence in work programme

delayed

National Park Authority 02/11/2018 10:00 16 Planning Annual Performance Report Ensure alignment between Welsh Govt KPIs 

and those reported to PAROW -ref James 

Marsden's comments

30/11/18 00:00 Ms Tracy 

Nettleton

15/02/2019: Status changed from To do to 

In progress - First draft of revised PAROW 

report circulated internally and the Chair and 

Deputy.

Work beginning on coding for UNiform and 

Modern.gov

In progress

National Park Authority 02/11/2018 10:00 26 Foel Deg Boundary Resolution 

Solutions

Bring further report on progress against Foel 

Deg recommendations to NPA next year (by 

June 2019?)

28/06/19 00:00 Dr Paul 

Sinnadurai

30/01/2019: Status changed from To do to 

In progress - Nothing to report until June 

2019!

01/04/2019:  - This situation is currently held 

up by requests by the third party to the 

Ombudsman and a request for all information 

held by this Authority.  In the meantime, JH 

has commissioned consultants to prepare a 

design and construction specification

11/04/2019:  - Engineering drawings 

received April 10th 2019, illustrating the 

existing situation for the access road, its 

drainage, fencing and cattle grid, and the 

new proposals.

In progress

National Park Authority 09/04/2019 13:00 20 Request for BBNPA to become a 

Founder Member of the National Parks 

UK Charity Foundation

Advise Sarah Fowler of NPA decision on 

national charity and points re benefits not 

coming to individual trustees

12/04/19 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins To do

NPA

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5156#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5156#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31806
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31806
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5158#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5158#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34363#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34363#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36987
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36987
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6535#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6535
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6535
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6535
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=51309
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=51309
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=51309


Sort out NPUK Charity trustees - talk to Ed 

and Gareth

30/04/19 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins To do

P
age 14



Audit and Scrutiny Committee 03/05/2019 10:00 6 Wales Audit Office Reports Ask TN and HL to look at the WAO report on 

WoFG Act and Partnerships audit (ASC 

agenda 3 May)

10/05/19 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins To do

ASC

PAROW

P
age 15

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6541#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=6541#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=51656
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=51656
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=51656


T
his page is intentionally left blank



2018/19 Financial Outturn and Reserves

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Date 26 July 2019

Report Author Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager

Contact Details
elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To inform the Committee of the financial outturn for the 
year and the reserves position at the year end.

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1  Budget Outturn Summary for 2018/19

Enclosure 2  Reserve Balances as at 31 March 2019

Public Interest Test Not applicable

Recommendation(s) a)  That the report be noted

1.1 Introduction or Background
The financial outturn for the year is enclosed.  There is a total underspend of some £123,000.  
The significant variances are highlighted below.  See Enclosure 1 for further details by Cost 
Centre.  The Project Scorecard for Quarter 1 provided with the separate budget monitoring 
report provides further details of project re-profiling and the outturn for 2018/19.

Where project spend is financed by grant or reserves, the related income has been accrued as 
appropriate and any unspent funds will be applied in 2019/20.  There are some significant 
changes in project timescales and spend which are in the process of being updated in the 
current year’s budget and are likely to affect the planned use of earmarked reserves built into 
the 2019/20 budget.  Significant budget virements to date are noted in the Quarter 1 Budget 
Monitoring Report.

1.2  Significant Variances 

Chief Executives Office
Underspends on Office Services and Democratic Representation, due to staff vacancies, 
reduced demand for paper and postage and a saving on the accrual from 2017/18 for the final 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7

mailto:elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk


settlement from HMRC in respect of outstanding Employer’s National Insurance liabilities on 
expenses.

Countryside and Community 
Core Services
Public Engagement staff costs were lower than estimated and income generated from Education 
fees was higher, producing a net underspend of close to £44,000.  These underspends have 
helped to offset overspends across the Visitor Services budgets, principally arising from the 
overspend of £21,000 at the National Park Visitor Centre, impacted by lower than expected 
income from the catering franchisee, and an over-spend of £12,000 caused by one-off 
termination costs from the closure of the Llandovery Information Centre.

Projects
A substantial underspend in Sustainable Development Fund Grants (£67,000) was due to delays 
in the receipt of claims and in project approvals by other funders.  The committed but unspent 
grants have been reserved.  Green Growth spending of £50,000 planned was re-profiled to 
2019 onwards pending development of the project.  The completion of the new partnership 
Destination Website for the Park was delayed until early 2019/20.  Transfers to earmarked 
reserves balance these underspends at Authority level.  An accounting surplus on the Black 
Mountains Land Use Partnership, arising from the methodology used to calculate some 
administrative costs has been set aside in an earmarked reserve to provide for project financial 
risks.

Planning and Development Control
A total underspend of some £21,000 was generated in the department, of which some £9,000 
related to a delay in planned expenditure on digitising planning records.  This project will be 
completed in 2019/20.  The remaining underspend largely arose from reduced costs in 
Enforcement.

Capital

The total capital expenditure for the year and related financing is summarised below.

2018/19 
Actual*

£000

2018/19 
Actual*

£000

Gunpowder Works conservation and interpretation 
project year 3 (capital element)

399

Micro Hydro Scheme 17

Access and Rights of Way improvement projects 28

Peatland Habitat restoration projects 67

Robotic Flail for remote access vegetation management 56

Page 18



Photovoltaic Solar Panel Installations on Authority 
Buildings

39

Electric Vehicle Charging Point installations on 
Authority sites

17

Wales Way tourism project infrastructure 18

Mountain Centre Health and Safety/refurbishment 38

Geopark Centre Interpretation installation
3

Total grant-funded project spend classified as capital 
under accounting rules*

682

Less: Grants & Contributions (455)

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve (169)

Use of Capital Grants Unapplied Reserves (55)

Revenue Financing (3)

Net Expenditure (682)

* In line with the Authority’s Accounting Policies, individual assets with a value of less 
than £10,000 are not treated as capital expenditure unless they are effectively part of a 
larger asset.   When projects are completed, the resulting asset is included in the 
Authority’s Balance Sheet. 

1.3 Conclusion

The budget for the year was underspent, but by a lower amount than in previous years.  Some 
priority work for 19/20 relating to essential asset surveys, digitization and LDP studies was able 
to be approved out of the underspend.  The increased balance on the General Reserve will 
assist with the planned restructure of the Authority, arising from the ongoing review of 
priorities which is expected to feed into the 2020-2022 budget strategy.

RECOMMENDATION:

a) That the report be noted

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 13

Costc Account Budget spent

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ % £

Chief Executive
2100 Human Resources 64,350 0 64,350 62,496 1,504 64,001 99 349
2101 Legal 71,080 0 71,080 80,660 0 80,660 113 -9580 
2102 Finance 150,870 -10,380 140,490 151,606 -13,468 138,138 98 2352

2103 Office Services 69,955 -1,080 68,875 59,630 -873 58,757 85 10118

Savings due to staff vacancies and 
reduced demand for paper and 
postage.

2104 Pool Cars 29,970 -29,970 0 35,727 -35,727 0 n/a 0
2110 Training 20,000 -1,080 18,920 20,128 -3,196 16,932 89 1988
2301 Administrative Buildings - Plas Y Ffynnon 125,400 -2,980 122,420 127,361 -3,985 123,376 101 -956 
5000 Corporate Management 224,370 0 224,370 223,731 0 223,731 100 639

5100 Democratic Representation & Management 258,080 -13,820 244,260 247,014 -14,234 232,780 95 11480

Underspend arising from reduced 
final settlement charge made by 
HMRC in relation to pre-April 2018 
expenses.

Total for Chief Executive 1,014,075 -59,310 954,765 1,008,353 -69,979 938,375 98 16390

Delivery - Revenue Projects
1102 Wardens Works and Projects 67,457 -87,795 -20,338 68,482 -90,836 -22,354 110 2016
1107 Waterfalls Country Wardening, Volunteers and site management costs31,580 -32,220 -640 28,513 -29,002 -489 76 -151 
1114 Ecology Projects 50,237 0 50,237 45,252 0 45,252 90 4985
1130 Welcome Guide 0 238 238 0 238 238 100 0
1131 Tourism Publications 0 0 0 0 -2,244 -2,244 n/a 2244
1132 Sustainable Tourism Projects 8,850 0 8,850 4,597 -2,063 2,534 29 6316
1134 Geopark Interreg Project 57,350 -57,350 0 47,860 -45,696 2,163 n/a -2163 
1138 Destination Management 14,500 -14,500 0 10,388 -15,000 -4,612 n/a 4612
1139 Tourism Visitor Managemet Projects (WG funded) 48,740 0 48,740 43,452 0 43,452 89 5288

1301 Green Growth Strategy 50,000 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 50000
Green growth revenue element will 
be carried over into 2019/20. 

1305 SDF Strategic Projects 294,626 0 294,626 227,214 0 227,214 77 67412

Grant approved but not yet claimed 
will be carried forward in an 
earmarked reserve and applied in 
19/20

1309 Volunteer Co-ordinator projects 1,650 0 1,650 1,637 0 1,637 99 13
1310 Social Inclusion Work 9,550 -9,550 0 2,911 -2,894 17 n/a -17 
1312 HLF Skills in Action Project 5,650 -5,650 0 20,482 -17,681 2,801 n/a -2801 
1313 Get Into the Beacons Project 61,782 -61,782 0 60,133 -57,275 2,857 n/a -2857 
1314 Small Steps Project 13,620 0 13,620 8,734 -375 8,359 61 5261
1315 Place Plans Project 7,000 0 7,000 3,681 0 3,681 53 3319
1316 Active Ageing Project (Sport Wales) 8,981 -4,781 4,200 8,142 -3,483 4,659 111 -459 
1400 Ecology Projects BMP - Bracken Management BW lead 106,252 -106,252 0 96,709 -96,722 -12 n/a 12
1401 Ecology Projects BMP - Peatland Restoration RB lead 85,168 -85,168 0 84,305 -96,815 -12,510 n/a 12510 BMLUP reserve requested for 
1402 Ecology Projects BMP - Payment for Ecosystem Services PS lead62,500 -62,500 0 27,660 -33,996 -6,336 n/a 6336 future risks - see reserves summary
1403 Ecology Projects BMP - Education Plan SW lead 20,400 -20,400 0 15,613 -10,691 4,922 n/a -4922 
1404 Ecology Projects BMP - Ambassadors RT lead 7,800 -7,800 0 5,020 -5,607 -588 n/a 588
1405 Ecology Projects BMP - Investing in Skills  BW lead 22,500 -22,500 0 11,886 -11,886 0 n/a 0
1406 Ecology Projects BMP - Rangers BW lead 70,993 -70,993 0 64,525 -64,525 0 n/a 0
1407 Ecology Projects BMP - Programme Monitoring and Evaluation  BW lead18,651 -18,651 0 25,041 -28,949 -3,908 n/a 3908
1408 Ecology Projects BMP - Public Relations SW lead 4,000 -4,000 0 4,026 -7,608 -3,582 n/a 3582
1409 Ecology Projects BMP - Project Administration BW lead 26,253 -26,253 0 22,818 -22,988 -171 n/a 171

Outturn Summary Report - 2018/19

P
age 21



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 13

Costc Account Budget spent

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ % £

Outturn Summary Report - 2018/19

4403 Public Engagement Projects 20,000 0 20,000 20,744 -15,244 5,500 28 14500

funding from reserve - Destination 
Website will continue into 19/20 and 
unspent funds will be reserved.

Total for Delivery - Revenue Projects 1,176,090 -697,907 478,183 959,825 -661,342 298,480 62 179703

Delivery - Other
2200 Information Technology 247,845 -25,330 222,515 255,981 -28,450 227,532 102 -5017 
3104 National Park Management Plan 9,000 0 9,000 0 0 0 0 9000
3120 Park Plan Officer 36,160 0 36,160 36,817 0 36,817 102 -657 

Total for Delivery - Other 293,005 -25,330 267,675 292,798 -28,450 264,349 99 3326

Countryside  - Natural Resources
1100 Wardens Management, Staff and Running Costs 495,700 -30,530 465,170 499,860 -30,915 468,945 101 -3775 
1101 Wardens' Depot 42,120 -700 41,420 42,816 -333 42,483 103 -1063 
1109 Access Officer 146,707 -66,757 79,950 117,868 -41,170 76,698 96 3252
1110 Public Rights Of Way 114,520 -54,820 59,700 122,308 -63,574 58,734 98 966
1200 Countryside Manager 60,270 0 60,270 61,929 0 61,929 103 -1659 
1220 Ecology 109,291 0 109,291 115,019 -280 114,739 105 -5448 

Total for Countryside  - Natural Resources 968,608 -152,807 815,801 959,800 -136,272 823,528 101 -7727 

Countryside - Sustainable Development
1105 Geopark Development Officer 45,870 0 45,870 45,899 -100 45,799 100 71
1120 Sustainable Tourism 91,412 -2,050 89,362 98,318 -3,831 94,487 106 -5125 
1300 Community Development 146,739 0 146,739 155,398 -5,732 149,666 102 -2927 

Total for Countryside - Sustainable Development 284,021 -2,050 281,971 299,615 -9,663 289,952 103 -7981 

Countryside - Public Engagement
4000 Commercial Manager 53,960 -2,060 51,900 52,553 -2,060 50,493 97 1407
4103 Retail Stock Management 14,623 -5,900 8,723 15,501 -4,650 10,851 124 -2128 
4104 Abergavenny Information Centre 33,508 -33,351 157 31,560 -29,136 2,423 1543 -2266 

4105 Llandovery Information Centre 25,604 -25,611 -7 31,749 -19,482 12,267 -175243 -12274 

termination costs arising from the 
closure of the Information Centre and 
a number of smaller overspends

4107 Online Shop 2,630 -3,790 -1,160 2,473 -3,745 -1,272 110 112
4108 Waterfalls Car Parks 80,080 -83,250 -3,170 93,260 -101,338 -8,078 255 4908

4200 National Park Visitor Centre 176,092 -182,365 -6,273 211,172 -196,802 14,370 -229 -20643 

overspends - income includes the 
final invoice to the previous catering 
franchise operator, now replaced by 
the new franchisee.

4210 Craig Y Nos Country Park 78,620 -56,530 22,090 88,922 -59,311 29,611 134 -7521 

P
age 22



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 13

Costc Account Budget spent

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ % £

Outturn Summary Report - 2018/19

4400 Public Engagement 348,310 -40,000 308,310 321,710 -57,573 264,137 86 44173

Staff savings and additional 
unbudgeted income generated by 
recharges for time on project work.  

Total for Countryside - Public Engagement 813,427 -432,857 380,570 848,900 -474,097 374,802 98 5768

Planning and Heritage
1205 Building Conservation 57,610 0 57,610 59,892 -1,512 58,380 101 -770 
1225 Archaeology 43,745 0 43,745 43,557 -250 43,307 99 438
3000 Planning and Heritage Departmental management 153,680 0 153,680 154,732 0 154,732 101 -1052 
3100 Strategy, Policy And Heritage 128,740 0 128,740 132,399 -3,428 128,971 100 -231 
3121 Minerals 2,100 0 2,100 690 0 690 33 1410
3200 Development Control 364,440 -210,000 154,440 359,155 -206,201 152,953 99 1487
3201 Enforcement 129,645 -120 129,525 120,169 -404 119,764 92 9761
3202 Planning Administration & Support 165,470 -8,000 157,470 155,923 -7,192 148,730 94 8740
3203 Tree Consultancy 11,000 0 11,000 9,455 0 9,455 86 1545

Total for Planning and Heritage 1,056,430 -218,120 838,310 1,035,972 -218,987 816,982 97 21328

Planning Revenue projects
3102 Local Development Plan 51,110 0 51,110 44,367 0 44,367 87 6743 adjusted to reserve
3204 Section 106 Receipts and Payments 0 0 0 8,298 -8,298 0 n/a 0

Total for Planning Revenue projects 51,110 0 51,110 52,665 -8,298 44,367 87 6743

Other receipts and payments
1000 Director Of Countryside 0 0 0 0 -593,700 -593,700 n/a 593700 late WG grants

Total for Other receipts and payments 0 0 0 0 -593,700 -593,700 n/a 593700

Capital Projects

1112 Gunpowder Works HLF project 639,724 -635,062 4,662 516,632 -477,748 38,885 834 -34223 

Delay in claim from some project 
funders as the woodland 
management element was delayed 
due to late completion by NRW of 
procurement framework for forestry 
services. Claims tol be made in 19/20

1113 Micro Hydro Scheme: Afon Clydach 17,000 0 17,000 17,000 0 17,000 100 0

1800 Wardens Capital Improvement Projects 122,030 -36,650 85,380 87,796 -16,495 71,301 84 14079

Delays in a number of projects in the 
west of the Park - re-profiled to 2019-
2021.  Related funding will be carried 
forward.

1801 Coedydd Nedd  y Mellte SAC 4,390 0 4,390 5,267 0 5,267 120 -877 
1802 Green Growth Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

1803 Solar Panel installation project 28,800 0 28,800 38,900 0 38,900 135 -10100 
Cwm port element of the project 
completed earlier than expected 

P
age 23



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 13

Costc Account Budget spent

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ % £

Outturn Summary Report - 2018/19

1804 Access and upland improvement Projects 20,800 0 20,800 19,575 0 19,575 94 1225
1805 EV Charging Points Project 25,000 0 25,000 17,424 0 17,424 70 7576
1810 Wales Way Infrastructure and interpretation 39,000 -39,000 0 18,262 -18,262 0 n/a 0
4800 National Park Visitor Centre re-purpose project 32,450 0 32,450 38,301 0 38,301 118 -5851 
4801 Geopark Centre project - Craig y nos CP 5,000 0 5,000 3,290 0 3,290 66 1710

5304 Appropriations to/from Capital Grants Unapplied and Capital Receipts0 -290,620 -290,620 0 -246,682 -246,682 85 -43938 
this relates to planned use of WG 
grant and capital receipts

Total for Capital Projects 934,194 -1,001,332 -67,138 762,447 -759,187 3,261 -5 -70399 

overall, project spend behind 
profiles - plans and budgets for 

19/20 in process of revision

OTHER
5340 Interest received 0 -18,000 -18,000 0 -22,027 -22,027 122 4027

5205
Filming  Fees Received and green energy 
generation 0 -25,000 -25,000 0 -40,395 -40,395 162 15395

From 19/20, filming element will be in 
PE budget

5299 Unallocated Budgets 50,400 0 50,400 0 0 0 0 50400

allocated against inflation and 
additional 1% pay award in detailed 
budgets

5303 General hired/contracted servs 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

CONTRIBUTIONS TO/FROM EARMARKED 
RESERVES

5302 Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 0 30,707 30,707 0 706,343 706,343 2300 -675636 

unbudgeted WG grants received in 
March 2019 reserved pending set-up 
of related projects

5302 Transfers from Earmarked Reserves 0 -287,897 -287,897 0 -276,152 -276,152 96 -11745 

 lower than planned use of reserves 
to fund projects - projects re-profiled 
and funding carried forward.

TOTAL - OTHER 50,400 -300,190 -249,790 0 367,769 367,769 2680 -617559 
2100 GRAND TOTAL 6,641,360 -2,889,903 3,751,457 6,220,375 -2,592,206 3,628,165 97 123292

FUNDING

5300 Transfers from General Reserves 0 -32,004 -32,004 0 91,515 91,518 -286 -123522

Total underspend against planned 
use of the General Reserve.  A 
withdrawal has been replaced by a 
contribution.

5300 Transfers from Provisions 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0
5300 Levy From Constituent LA'S & NP Grant (WG) 0 -892,977 -892,977 0 -892,977 -892,977 100 0
5300 Levy From Constituent LA'S & NP Grant (WG) 0 -2,826,476 -2,826,476 0 -2,826,706 -2,826,706 100 230
5300 National Park Grant (Revenue) 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

Total Funding & Transfers 0 -3,751,457 -3,751,457 0 -3,628,168 -3,628,165 97 -123,292 

NET BUDGET #REF! #REF! 0 #REF! #REF! 0 n/a 246,584

P
age 24



D
IS

C
R

E
T

IO
N

A
R

Y
? General Earmarked

Welsh 
Government 

Projects 
Earmarked 
Reserves

Capital 
Receipts

Welsh 
Government 

Capital Grants 
Unapplied 
Account Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

D 1,045,657

D 168,587

Welsh Government 2016/17 revenue pressures reserve 212,653 483,833

Welsh Government 2017/18 funding 83199 582,786

Welsh Government 2018/19 funding 455000 138,700

PLANNING

LDP Enquiry D 172,737

30,000

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S OFFICE

IT equipment renewals reserve D 12,070

COUNTRYSIDE

National Grid Funding for conservation D 37,279

D 64,582

13,845

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water agreement Reserve 20,000

21,904

Tourism Publications D 25,136

Tourism Projects funding reserve D 28,461

Forgotten Landscapes works pending A465 outcome 4,000

Tourism Partnership 28,055

Sustainable Development Fund earmarked sums D 67,411

Sustainable Development Fund earmarked sums Marquee D 650

Black Mountains Land Use Partnership Project reserve D 22,185

Legacies D 126,334

Estimated Total Reserves at 31st March 2019 1,045,657 674,649 750,852 168,587 1,205,319 3,845,064

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water research and monitoring funding 
reserve

Composition of Reserves at 31 March 2019

General Reserve core balance updated to outturn  (ACTUAL)

Capital receipts

Conservation Fund (filming fees) - planned use £8k in 19/20

Section 106 Receipts reserved for future expenditure on agreed 
schemes

Conservation Fund (filming fees) - Llyn y Fan Fach

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Budget Monitoring: Quarter 1 2019/20

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee

Date 26 July 2019

Report Author
Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager

Contact details elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk
Purpose of Report To inform Members of performance against budget for the 

first quarter of 2019/20

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1: Budget Monitoring Summary to 30/6/2019

Enclosure 2: S106 and Affordable Housing to 25/06/19

Enclosure 3: Project Scorecard Q1 and outturn

Recommendation a) That Members note the report

1.1 Introduction 

For the first quarter of 2018/19, 49% of the total budget has been spent and committed.  
Overall this is close to the projected position at this time of the financial year.  There are a  
number of large multi-year projects where there are long-term commitments (purchase 
orders), a number of projects funded by an internal transfer from reserves at the year end 
and several larger schemes where grant is received some time in arrears (Gunpowder Works 
and Black Mountains Land Use Partnership).

Quarterly figures for each department are summarised below:

Page 27

Agenda Item 8



Full 
Year 

Budget 
(Net) 

2019/20

Actual to 
end Q1      

2019/20

Committed 
2019/20

Net Budget 
remaining 
2019/20

Net Budget 
Spent and 

Committed

Department %
£000 £000 £000 £000

Chief Executive’s Office 1,076 345 107 624 42

Delivery core 1,935 452 107 1,376 29

Delivery projects 382 223 240 -80 121

Planning core 741 198 10 533 28
Planning projects 59 -2 21 40 21
Capital projects (net 
revenue funding) 65 -1 231 -165 354

Other (including 
transfers to and from 
earmarked reserves)

-312 -4 0 -308 1

 Total 3,946 1,211 716 2,019 49

Revenue Grant and 
Levies -3,769 -912 0 -2,783 26

Transfer from General 
Reserve -179 0 0 -179 0

1.2  Principal Budget Variances

Chief Executives Office
Pool vehicle three year orders increase commitments in the year – these will not all fall due for 
payment in the year.  There are two electric pool cars which are due to be re-coded to the 
Green Growth-funded initiatives project and will be classed as capital assets in the Authority’s 
balance sheet at the year end.  These account for some £51,000 of expenditure.

A significant payment in advance for the Webcasting facility which will be accrued to future 
years over the life of the lease at the year-end has increased the apparent expenditure on 
Democratic Representation as at the end of the quarter.   Other CEO cost centres where 
expenditure appears high are also due to timing rather than additional cost.

Page 28



Delivery
The Black Mountains Partnership project appears overspent due to a large order for bracken 
cutting and project evaluations over the whole life of the project; grant claims are now being 
processed and paid in a more timely manner by the funder.

The IT budget is now reported within Delivery to reflect the new management structure.

The Geopark Atlantic Isles EU-funded project appears over spent as the grant claim process has 
been delayed by the funders.   No project grant has yet been received by any of the project 
partners.

The SDF budget requires adjustment to reflect the carry-over of some £67,000 of grant funding 
commitments from 2018/19.  

Other variances relate to the timing of grant receipts and are detailed in the enclosure.

Planning
Planning Department expenditure and income is in line with the budget; there are no significant 
variances at this stage.   Further financial information on the current status of the S106 and 
Affordable housing funds received and held is provided in Enclosure 2.

Capital Schemes
See the projects scorecard for an overview of project spend and financial progress.
The Gunpowder Works project commitment includes the woodland management part of the 
project which will be completed this financial year.  Grant is due for 2018/19 but has not yet 
been received, creating an apparent overspend.

Work is continuing on access projects in the Llyn y Fan Fach area and environmental 
improvements on Waun Fignen Felen.  Funding has been received in advance – creating an 
apparent underspend.  The project will continue into 2020/21.

Other
This section of the budget includes filming fees received, interest income and transfers to and 
from Earmarked Reserves.   Planned transfers include the use of Welsh Government funding 
(provided in advance and set aside in reserves) for a range of projects.  The funding received in 
March 2019 has not yet been built into the estimate.

1.3 Conclusion
At the end of the first quarter, the differences between budget and actual mainly arise from the 
timing of funding receipts and long-term commitments.  Grant receipts are in general coming in 
more promptly but there is a potential issue with Atlantic Isles, where there have been major 
delays in the acceptance of claims by the EU grant administrators.

Page 29



RECOMMENDATION:

a) That Members note the report and enclosures.

Page 30



Brecon Beacons Summary Report:-  up to 30/06/2019 Target: 25

APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 3 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2018/19

Costc Account Profiled Budget
Budget 
spent

Prior Year 
Budget

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET
 & 

committed
Spent & 

committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

Chief Executive
2100 Human Resources 66,570 0 66,570 14,045 0 14,045 2,689 0 2,689 14,787 25 37 49,836

2101 Legal 63,550 0 63,550 12,146 0 12,146 8,075 0 8,075 16,091 32 42 43,329

Some year end creditors 
outstanding - legal work 
ongoing across the 2 financial 
years.

2102 Finance 156,790 -12,720 144,070 30,260 -308 29,952 13,981 0 13,981 28,984 30 35 100,137
Commitment for the delivery of 
internal audit services up to the 
end of March 2021.

2103 Office Services 73,620 -270 73,350 15,731 -690 15,041 9,928 0 9,928 18,624 34 37 48,381
Includes Photocopying charges 
for the full year. 

2104 Pool Cars 35,700 -35,700 0 65,077 0 65,077 45,654 0 45,654 21,077 n/a n/a -110,731 

Includes the purchase of 2 
electric vehicles (to be funded 
from Green Growth) plus lease 
charges for the pool car fleet 
for the current year.  The green 
growth spend is to be re-coded 
to capital.

2109 Revenue Suspense Account 0 0 0 5,772 0 5,772 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a -5,772 
Purchasing card spend not yet 
allocated - cardholders to 
update.

2110 Training 20,000 0 20,000 3,930 0 3,930 3,685 0 3,685 4,997 38 22 12,385
A number of training courses 
have taken place during the 
first quarter.

2301 Administrative Buildings - Plas Y Ffynnon 125,010 -1,000 124,010 46,426 -6 46,420 965 0 965 32,843 38 45 76,625 Rates paid for the full year.

5000 Corporate Management 290,250 0 290,250 62,718 -8,081 54,637 21,873 0 21,873 68,984 26 33 213,740

5100 Democratic Representation & Management 298,180 -3,455 294,725 98,468 0 98,468 516 0 516 85,903 34 30 195,741

Overspend due to the payment 
in advance of the Webcasting 
software/support (yr. 2 of 5). 
Accounting adjustment at year 
end.

Total for Chief Executive 1,129,670 -53,145 1,076,525 354,573 -9,085 345,488 107,366 0 107,366 292,290 42 40 623,671

Delivery - Revenue Projects

1102 Wardens Works and Projects 58,935 -71,475 -12,540 10,098 -2,183 7,915 11,566 0 11,566 13,394 -155 -45 -32,021 
ROWIP Income will be received 
at year end.

1107
Waterfalls Country Wardening, Volunteers and site 
management costs

35,540 -35,540 0 300 0 300 462 0 462 2,926 n/a n/a -762 recharges are input 6-monthly

1114 Ecology Projects 125,927 -29,120 96,807 13,966 0 13,966 15,727 0 15,727 27,655 31 27 67,114
Includes Invasive Species and 
research

1131 Tourism Publications 3,000 -3,000 0 0 -734 -734 0 0 0 750 n/a n/a 734
1132 Sustainable Tourism Projects 3,000 0 3,000 85 0 85 0 0 0 750 3 18 2,915

1134 Geopark Interreg Project 40,350 -40,350 0 11,559 71,153 82,713 3,861 0 3,861 10,086 n/a n/a -86,574 

All grant claims outstanding 
(approx. £70k to the end of 
March). Payment of the first 
Atlantic Area grant claim (36k 
euros) should be made soon.

1137 Rural Alliances BBNPA Projects 0 0 0 776 0 776 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a -776 
1138 Destination Management 10,000 -10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -7,501 n/a n/a 0

1139 Tourism Visitor Management Projects (WG funded) 28,730 0 28,730 8,993 0 8,993 0 0 0 7,183 31 n/a 19,737

1305 SDF Strategic Projects 200,000 0 200,000 23,697 0 23,697 0 0 0 50,001 12 3 176,303
Majority of claims are made in 
the second half of the year.

P
age 31



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 3 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2018/19

Costc Account Profiled Budget
Budget 
spent

Prior Year 
Budget

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET
 & 

committed
Spent & 

committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

1309 Volunteer Co-ordinator projects 1,650 0 1,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 411 0 0 1,650
1310 Social Inclusion Work 6,448 -6,448 0 351 -858 -507 0 0 0 -903 n/a n/a 507

1313 Get Into the Beacons Project 35,792 -35,792 0 22,160 44,047 66,207 659 0 659 -5,425 n/a n/a -66,866 
Outstanding year end debtor 
paid in July (£48k).

1314 Small Steps Project 25,580 0 25,580 6,067 0 6,067 0 0 0 6,396 24 n/a 19,513
1315 Place Plans Project 13,330 0 13,330 2,291 0 2,291 0 0 0 5,581 17 n/a 11,039

1316 Active Ageing Project (Sport Wales) 29,280 -28,480 800 8,085 -12,907 -4,822 0 0 0 7,324 -603 n/a 5,622 Grant paid in advance.

1400 Ecology Projects BMP - Bracken Management BW lead 80,288 -80,288 0 0 0 0 162,620 0 162,620 80,288 n/a n/a -162,620 
1401 Ecology Projects BMP - Peatland Restoration RB lead 10,000 -10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000 n/a n/a 0

1402
Ecology Projects BMP - Payment for Ecosystem Services 
PS lead

0 0 0 3,951 0 3,951 23,708 0 23,708 0 n/a n/a -27,659 

1403 Ecology Projects BMP - Education Plan SW lead 10,200 -10,200 0 275 0 275 1,220 0 1,220 10,200 n/a n/a -1,495 
1404 Ecology Projects BMP - Ambassadors RT lead 1,500 -1,500 0 2,332 0 2,332 539 0 539 1,500 n/a n/a -2,871 
1405 Ecology Projects BMP - Investing in Skills  BW lead 30,000 -30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,000 n/a n/a 0
1406 Ecology Projects BMP - Rangers BW lead 70,993 -70,993 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17,748 n/a n/a 0

1407
Ecology Projects BMP - Programme Monitoring and 
Evaluation  BW lead

18,651 -18,651 0 3,766 0 3,766 18,603 0 18,603 18,651 n/a n/a -22,369 

1408 Ecology Projects BMP - Public Relations SW lead 4,000 -4,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,500 n/a n/a 0
1409 Ecology Projects BMP - Project Administration BW lead 27,129 -27,129 0 5,479 0 5,479 559 0 559 4,382 n/a n/a -6,038 
4404 Green Growth Revenue Element 25,000 0 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 n/a 25,000 subject to revision 

Total for Delivery - Revenue Projects 895,323 -512,966 382,357 124,231 98,518 222,750 239,524 0 239,524 318,897 121 156 -79,917 

All outstanding grant claims 
have been paid by the Welsh 

Government. Commitments for 
the ongoing work including 
bracken control contracts.

P
age 32



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 3 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2018/19

Costc Account Profiled Budget
Budget 
spent

Prior Year 
Budget

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET
 & 

committed
Spent & 

committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

Delivery - Other

2200 Information Technology 250,920 -11,530 239,390 89,097 0 89,097 28,017 0 28,017 112,405 49 90 122,276

Commitments include year 3 
(of 3) of the Microsoft licence 
agreement (approx. £25k) 
which will be carried into next 
year.

3104 National Park Management Plan 39,000 0 39,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 32,250 0 n/a 39,000
3120 Park Plan Officer 46,720 0 46,720 7,961 0 7,961 0 0 0 11,890 17 25 38,759 Officer started in May 2019. 

Total for Delivery - Other 336,640 -11,530 325,110 97,058 0 97,058 28,017 0 28,017 156,545 38 76 200,035

Countryside  - Natural Resources
1100 Wardens Management, Staff and Running Costs 524,690 -29,740 494,950 122,017 0 122,017 2,451 0 2,451 184,402 25 22 370,482

1101 Wardens' Depot 42,210 0 42,210 20,445 0 20,445 0 0 0 10,926 48 68 21,765
Rent paid in advance to the end 
of September. Rates for the full 
year paid.

1108 Wardens estate management 30,000 0 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,000 0 n/a 30,000
spend planned for later in the 
year

1109 Access Officer 128,084 -42,374 85,710 19,286 -21,370 -2,084 5,099 0 5,099 7,948 4 25 82,695
Canal & Rivers Trust paid £25k 
in advance of works re Towpath 
improvements.

1110 Public Rights Of Way 87,640 -31,960 55,680 22,005 -1,337 20,668 223 0 223 21,457 38 29 34,789
ROWIP Income received at year 
end.

1200 Countryside Manager 101,210 0 101,210 15,279 -2,500 12,779 26,528 0 26,528 31,128 39 25 61,903

Includes PO for Asset Gazetteer 
and Valuation work. £12k 
budget set for digitisation of 
records (PO needs to be 
created once work has been 
contracted).

1220 Ecology 116,380 0 116,380 28,674 0 28,674 0 0 0 31,695 25 25 87,706

Total for Countryside  - Natural Resources 1,030,214 -104,074 926,140 227,706 -25,207 202,499 34,301 0 34,301 317,556 26 30 689,340

P
age 33



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 3 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2018/19

Costc Account Profiled Budget
Budget 
spent

Prior Year 
Budget

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET
 & 

committed
Spent & 

committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

Countryside - Sustainable Development
1105 Geopark Development Officer 47,160 0 47,160 9,623 -70 9,553 0 0 0 13,352 20 23 37,607
1120 Sustainable Tourism 94,500 0 94,500 27,877 -1,651 26,226 1,038 0 1,038 26,365 29 25 67,236
1300 Community Development 150,130 -200 149,930 36,676 0 36,676 0 0 0 38,577 24 29 113,254

Total for Countryside - Sustainable Development 291,790 -200 291,590 74,176 -1,721 72,455 1,038 0 1,038 78,294 25 27 218,097

Countryside - Public Engagement
4000 Commercial Manager 49,190 -6,000 43,190 11,612 0 11,612 0 0 0 12,525 27 23 31,578
4103 Retail Stock Management 15,760 -5,500 10,260 3,169 -939 2,230 0 0 0 2,583 22 -30 8,030
4104 Abergavenny Information Centre 35,130 -32,950 2,180 10,618 -2,570 8,048 0 0 0 -14,333 369 938 -5,868 
4107 Online Shop 3,630 -5,090 -1,460 1,221 -2,110 -889 0 0 0 -397 61 23 -571 
4108 Waterfalls Car Parks 90,310 -85,750 4,560 16,580 -29,322 -12,742 21,965 0 21,965 -5,050 202 280 -4,663 
4200 National Park Visitor Centre 178,760 -184,550 -5,790 40,452 -44,259 -3,808 13,580 0 13,580 9,271 -169 -29762 -15,562 
4210 Craig Y Nos Country Park 78,660 -54,530 24,130 22,871 -13,768 9,102 1,485 0 1,485 9,225 44 33 13,543
4400 Public Engagement 367,390 -51,750 315,640 78,584 -12,629 65,955 7,404 0 7,404 78,897 23 22 242,281
4402 Information Publications 0 0 0 0 -20 -20 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 20

Total for Countryside - Public Engagement 818,830 -426,120 392,710 185,107 -105,617 79,488 44,434 0 44,434 92,721 32 38 268,788

Planning and Heritage
1205 Building Conservation 47,870 0 47,870 9,323 0 9,323 0 0 0 12,427 19 26 38,547
1225 Archaeology 48,020 0 48,020 10,168 0 10,168 2,000 0 2,000 12,356 25 22 35,852

3000 Planning and Heritage Departmental management 61,580 0 61,580 15,260 0 15,260 0 0 0 15,775 25 25 46,320

3100 Strategy, Policy And Heritage 142,750 0 142,750 34,231 0 34,231 0 0 0 37,621 24 25 108,519

3121 Minerals 2,100 0 2,100 0 0 0 2,000 0 2,000 525 95 95 100
Payment to Carmarthenshire 
County Council made on a 
quarterly basis.

3200 Development Control 352,020 -215,000 137,020 108,033 -51,550 56,483 3,503 0 3,503 52,497 44 46 77,034

Pre application advice slightly 
below budget target, No budget 
set for Subscriptions,  spend to 
date of £5k.

3201 Enforcement 140,590 0 140,590 32,355 -60 32,295 0 0 0 36,267 23 20 108,295

3202 Planning Administration & Support 161,010 -10,000 151,010 38,797 -60 38,737 2,402 0 2,402 38,666 27 40 109,871

3203 Tree Consultancy 10,000 0 10,000 1,800 0 1,800 0 0 0 2,499 18 108 8,200
Total for Planning and Heritage 965,940 -225,000 740,940 249,967 -51,670 198,297 9,905 0 9,905 208,633 28 31 532,738

Budget adjustments to be 
action in Mth 4 between the 

visitor services budgets.       
Ongoing negotiations with 

previous tearoom lease holders.

P
age 34



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 3 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2018/19

Costc Account Profiled Budget
Budget 
spent

Prior Year 
Budget

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET
 & 

committed
Spent & 

committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

Planning Revenue projects

3102 Local Development Plan 58,700 0 58,700 16,840 0 16,840 21,207 0 21,207 15,425 65 21 20,653
Spend & commitments coded 
to general hired /contracted 
totalling £29k, no budget. 

3204 Section 106 Receipts and Payments 0 0 0 0 -19,360 -19,360 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 19,360 Income re S106 agreement.

Total for Planning Revenue projects 58,700 0 58,700 16,840 -19,360 -2,520 21,207 0 21,207 15,425 32 21 40,013

Capital Projects
1112 Gunpowder Works HLF project 74,360 -54,300 20,060 15,639 58,156 73,796 122,508 0 122,508 37,169 979 530 -176,244 Outstanding HLF grant - £58k.

1800 Wardens Capital Improvement Projects 83,530 -54,000 29,530 13,716 -68,683 -54,967 1,550 0 1,550 23,750 -181 -123 82,947 Budget adjustment pending.

1801 Coedydd Nedd  y Mellte SAC 21,000 0 21,000 0 0 0 9,937 0 9,937 21,000 47 0 11,063

1802 Green Growth Fund 320,000 0 320,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 320,000 0 0 320,000
Budget revision pending- 
projects under review.

1803 Solar Panel installation project 0 0 0 4,309 0 4,309 19,842 0 19,842 0 n/a 0 -24,151 
budget adjustment pending for 
final phase of the project

1804 Access and upland improvement Projects 130,000 0 130,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 130,000 0 0 130,000 procurement underway.

1805 EV Charging Points Project 7,576 0 7,576 0 0 0 6,999 0 6,999 7,576 92 15 577
work completed, invoice 
pending.

1807 Miles without Stiles, Wheelchair provision 30,000 0 30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 30,000 0 n/a 30,000
1810 Wales Way Infrastructure and interpretation 107,320 -100,000 7,320 20,317 -44,386 -24,070 49,293 0 49,293 107,320 345 n/a -17,903 Grant received in advance
4801 Geopark Centre project - Craig y nos CP 30,000 0 30,000 0 0 0 20,724 0 20,724 30,000 69 0 9,276 order for installation 

5304
Appropriations to/from Capital Grants Unapplied and 
Capital Receipts

0 -530,590 -530,590 0 0 0 0 0 0 -9,530 0 n/a -530,590 
grants to be applied in year for 
capital projects

Total for Capital Projects 803,786 -738,890 64,896 53,981 -54,913 -932 230,853 0 230,853 697,285 354 109 -165,025 

OTHER 0
5340 Interest received 0 -4,800 -4,800 0 -3,904 -3,904 0 0 0 -1,200 81 9 -896 
5205 Filming  Fees and Green Electricity Receipts 0 -30,000 -30,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 -7,500 0 -1 -30,000 

5299 Unallocated Budgets -6,143 0 -6,143 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a -6,143 
planned savings yet to be 
actioned

CONTRIBUTIONS TO/FROM EARMARKED RESERVES
5302 Contribution to reserves 0 13,000 13,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,000
5302 Contribution from reserves 0 -284,073 -284,073 0 0 0 0 0 0 -37,116 0 0 -284,073 

TOTAL - OTHER -6,143 -305,873 -312,016 0 -3,904 -3,904 0 0 0 -45,816 81 n/a -308,112 
2100 GRAND TOTAL 6,324,750 -2,377,798 3,946,952 1,383,639 -172,959 1,210,679 716,645 0 716,645 2,141,360 49 58 2,019,628

P
age 35



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2019/20 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 3 COMMITMENTS 2019/20 2018/19

Costc Account Profiled Budget
Budget 
spent

Prior Year 
Budget

Budget less 
actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET
 & 

committed
Spent & 

committed Unspent
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

FUNDING
5300 Transfers from General Reserves 0 -178,439 -178,439 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -178439
5300 Transfers from Provisions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

5300 Levy From Constituent LA'S & NP Grant (WG) 0 -942,037 -942,037 0 -280,022 -280,022 0 0 0 -235,510 30 -662015
5300 Levy From Constituent LA'S & NP Grant (WG) 0 -2,826,476 -2,826,476 0 -705,000 -705,000 0 0 0 -706,619 25 -2121476
5300 National Park Grant (Revenue) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

Total Funding & Transfers 0 -3,946,952 -3,946,952 0 -985,022 -985,022 0 0 0 -942,129 25 -2961930

NET BUDGET #REF! #REF! 0 #REF! #REF! 225,657 #REF! #REF! #REF! 1,199,231 n/a #REF!

P
age 36



S106
Ledger 
Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 
APPLIED IN 
YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD  
31/3/19

£ £ £
S106 08-02488-FUL Enviroparks ZAA Enviroparks (Hirwaun) Limited 0.00

Footpath improvement path 15 plus 
interpretation £10,000 payable to BBNPA 
Wardens/Interpretation - to be fully spent 
by 6/11/2020

0.00

Planning condition monitoring fee 
£12,000 payable to BBNPA Enforcement - 
to be fully spent by 6/11/2020

800.00 BBNPA internal

Biodiversity condition monitoring fee 
£11,750 payable to BBNPA Ecologist  - to 
be fully spent by 6/11/2020

0.00

ANNUAL TOTAL 0.00 800.00 800.00
TOTAL S106 (OTHER) BALANCE AT 31/3/19 -29,251.12

S106
Ledger 
Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 
APPLIED IN 
YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD  
31/3/19

£ £ £
S106 08-02488-FUL Enviroparks ZAA Enviroparks (Hirwaun) Limited 0.00

Footpath improvement path 15 plus 
interpretation £10,000 payable to BBNPA 
Wardens/Interpretation - to be fully spent 
by 6/11/2020

0.00

Planning condition monitoring fee 
£12,000 payable to BBNPA Enforcement - 
to be fully spent by 6/11/2020

0.00 BBNPA internal

Biodiversity condition monitoring fee 
£11,750 payable to BBNPA Ecologist  - to 
be fully spent by 6/11/2020

0.00

ANNUAL TOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL S106 (OTHER) AT END OF QUARTER -29,251.12

2018/19 S106 - OTHER

2019/20 S106 - OTHER

P
age 37



2018/19 - AFFORDABLE HOUSING

S106 Affordable Housing 
Ledger 
Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 
APPLIED IN 
YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD 
31/3/19

£ £ £

17/14369/DEEM, Pen Y Mynydd 
Barn, O/C ZAI

E Morgan (four further annual 
instalments payable) -20,000.00

Affordable Housing contribution  - 
following Wales Audit Advice, the further 
four instalments due have been accrued 
into the 2018/19 accounts and 
corresponding short and long-term 
debtors included in the balance sheet for 
the payments of £19360 due in each of 
the next four years. 0.00 -20,000.00

18/15843/FUL Pentwyncoch Ganol ZAJ G J Philpott -83,172.00
Affordable Housing contribution - no 
conditions deemed to be attached. 0.00 -83,172.00

ANNUAL TOTAL -103,172.00 0.00 -103,172.00 
TOTAL Affordable Housing balance at 31/3/19 -397,434.60 

2019/20 AFFORDABLE HOUSING

S106 Affordable Housing 
Ledger 
Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 
APPLIED IN 
YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD 
30/6/19

£ £ £

17/14369/DEEM, Pen Y Mynydd 
Barn, O/C ZAI

E Morgan (three further annual 
instalments payable) -19,360.00

Affordable Housing contribution  - actual 
receipts -see note on accounting 
adjustment in 2018/19 above. 0.00 -19,360.00

ANNUAL TOTAL TO DATE -19,360.00 0.00 -19,360.00 
TOTAL Affordable Housing balance at 30/6/19 -416,794.60 

P
age 38



highlighted projects have 
conditions/deadlines attached, others 
more open-ended

SCORECARD 2017/18 
Actual

2018/19 
Actual

Project Title and description - key 
goals

Total Project 
Spend          £

CODE
Lead 
Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND 
OBJECTIVE

BUDGET 
IN PLACE

SPEND 
WITHIN 

20% 
BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 
ACTIONS

COMMENTS full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Llyn y Fan Fach access Welsh Govt 
Specific Access Grant (68,400) and Dwr 
Cymru (30000 per year for three 
years). 

158,400 1800, LYN JH Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and 
improve access to the countryside

Update from PS 3/9/18: JH awaiting
project development by DCWW on
disabled access. Site visits for this
completed with LAF reps. Car park
improvements will follow after this.
Planning permission and consents
pending. proposal for temporary
Warden (separately funded) and poss 
onsite volunteers. Budget updated to re-
profile into 19/20. 

71,860 9,529

Waun Fignen Felen - (Dwr Cymru) 
partnership agreement

50,000
1800, 

WFF
JH L&B; reducing land-based carbon 

emissions and restoring upland habitats

  Paul Sinnadurai to 
confirm that spend 
can be completed 
within deadline 
agreed with Welsh 
Water.  JH to review 
budget.

Update from PS 3/9/18:  Staff costs now 
included in this project.  £3450 on order.  
Further spend expected but not all in 
current year. Plan to spend 20k on heather 
mgts and charge £5k for warden 

4,350 6,966    

Wales Way Project - Welsh Govt 
Specific Access Grant (re-designated 
Pont ar Daf funding) 

199,000 1810 RT Resilient Communities, SED; improve 
access to the countryside

To be used to fund Wales Way project - 
part of original WG capital access grant 
funding - receipt in advance.  Project 
budget developed - additional funding 
received re Llangorse facilities - PCC  and 
community groups contributing.  Asset will 
be transferred to community.  
Commitments for £22810 in place.   Art 
work and marker projects in hand, 
procurement well advance, planning 
consent process ongoing.

0 18261

Visitor Centre Improvements  WG 
'pressures' Grant via General Reserve

126,647
4800 
4002

WL improving the visitor experience COMPLETED 93,927 38,301

411,800

LOW 
CARBON 

INITIATIV
ES 1802     

WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions, 
project development 
- T&F group to 
conclude review and 
report.  Project plan 
to be drafted.

Project under development - budget 
subject to final proposal to Authority, via 
SDT Purchase of two EV's completed.

0 0

88,200
 SOLAR 

1803
WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions, budget revision to transfer budget from 
18/19 and allocate funding for additional 
low-energy options under discussion - 
revised costs calculated.

0 38900

BB Green Growth Fund  WG 'Green 
Growth 2017' revenue grants in 
earmarked reserve

75,000 4404 WL

reducing land-based carbon emissions, 
project development 
- T&F group to 
conclude review and 
report.  Project plan 
to be drafted.

project plan to be developed together 
with spending profile 

0 0

Black Mountains Partnership SMS  - 
WG-administered EU grant 

1,004,155
1400-
1409

BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA 
objective=By focusing on landscapes and 
biodiversity, particularly through 
ecosystems management, the Authority is 
contributing directly to a more ‘Resilient 
Wales’.  2. The National Park’s landscapes 
and biodiversity will benefit from broad-
scale targeted and promoted conservation 
projects. Goals & Objectives: Biodiversity 
will be conserved and enhanced through 
effective partnership, facilitation, practical 
action and the Planning function

. Outstanding payments made.  Q1 
claim has been approved and received.  
ready to submit next claim. Rangers 
employed. Brief out for bracken ground 
truthing. Stipend programme about to 
be launched.  Second year of bracken 
treatments about to take place.(BW)

143,044 357,601

Coedydd Nedd a Mellte WG 'pressures 
grant'  2017

28,000 1801 JH Landscape and Biodiversity; SED; maintain 
and improve access to the countryside

some highways work commissioned from 
Powys CC by JL - 9937 on order

0 5267

Condition RoW Database WG ' 
pressures' grant 2017

10,000
1110, 

software
EJ Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside

App now delivered and invoice 
received.  Additional work to complete 
project planned and budgeted for next 
FY.  EJ May 2019:  £2,100 carried 
forwards into 2019/20.

2405 5500

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend

BB Green Growth Fund  funds held in 
WG 2017 Capital Grants unapplied 

reserve

2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spend

P
age 39



highlighted projects have 
conditions/deadlines attached, others 
more open-ended

SCORECARD 2017/18 
Actual

2018/19 
Actual

Project Title and description - key 
goals

Total Project 
Spend          £

CODE
Lead 
Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND 
OBJECTIVE

BUDGET 
IN PLACE

SPEND 
WITHIN 

20% 
BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 
ACTIONS

COMMENTS full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spend

ROWIP Review and Revise WG 
'pressures' grant 2017

40,000 1110 EJ
Resilient Communities, SED; maintain and 
improve access to the countryside; publish 

the review of the ROWIP

all spend planned for current year has been 
completed - small amount re-profiled into 
next fy.  EJ May 2019:  £1,210 carried 
forwards into 2019/20.

7812 29018

Addressing issues in Waterfall Country 
WG 'pressures' grant 2017- traffic 
management study

26,800
1139, 

WFS
RT Resilient Communities, SED; improve 

access to the countryside COMPLETED 19518 7280

Visitor Management Programme 
officer WG 2017 'pressures' grant via 
general reserve.

80,000 1139, VIS RT
Biodiversity and Landscape,Resilient 

Communities, SED; improve access to the 
countryside

budget revision 
pending to re-profile

liaison with stakeholders ongoing - large 
number of parties involved and lack of 
large-scale funding needed to address 
issues identified.

11972 36125

UNESCO Fforest Fawr  Geopark Centre 
@ Craig-y-nos CP WG '2017 pressures' 
grant via general reserve.

35,000 4801 RT Resilient Communities, SED; improve 
access to the countryside orders raised for 20724 0 3290

Strategic approach to Invasive Non Native 
Species Pilot project WG '2017 pressures' 
grant via general reserve.

100,000 1114, INN BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA 
objective=By focusing on landscapes and 
biodiversity, particularly through 
ecosystems management, the Authority is 
contributing directly to a more ‘Resilient 
Wales’.  2. The National Park’s landscapes 
and biodiversity will benefit from broad-
scale targeted and promoted conservation 
projects. Corporate Goals & Objectives: 
Biodiversity will be conserved and 
enhanced through effective partnership, 
facilitation, practical action and the 
Planning function

 Budget updates 
made with spend 
estimates for the 
coming year. (BW)

spend diivided evenly across the 4 
quarters for the year as dominant cost is 
salaries (BW).

1000 30233

Gunpowder Works Project - HLF Grant 800,453 1112 RC Resilient Communities, SED; improve 
access to the countryside

negotiations ongoing 
in relation to 
property issue.

  Access issue may delay delivery of the 
interp element of the project.  Funder 
has been consulted.  Q4 claim pending   
Forestry contract delayed but now in 
hand

101148 516632

Micro Hydro Afon Clydach - Capital 
Receipt and grant funding

234,000 1113 JA/HR Resilient Communities, SED COMPLETED 61457 17000

Atlantic Geoparks 131,300 1134 RJT Resilient Communities, SED; improve 
access to the countryside

 EU to progress 
payment.

no grant received to date.  £70k owed to 
the project

32245 47860

EV Charging Points  WG 2018 funding 30,000 1805 WL/KB Reducing land-based carbon emissions, 
SED; improve access to the countryside

Order in place for £7000.   Police have 
completed groundwork at HQ. payment 
pending

0 17424

Place Plan implementation WG 2018 
funding

30,000 1315 CP
Heritage, Biodiversity and 

Landscape,Resilient Communities, SED; 
improve access to the countryside

Clare Parsons to 
consider amount of 
budget to re-profile 
into 2019/20. 

Project work underway. 0 3681

Powys Teaching Health Board - Small 
Steps WG 2018 funding

40,000 1314 CP Resilient Communities, SED; improve 
access to the countryside

Clare Parsons to 
consider amount of 
budget to re-profile 
into 2019/20. 

Project work underway. 0 8359

Llangasty and Caeau Ty Mawr site Mgt 
WG 2018 funding 15,000 1102 LNG JH Landscape and Biodiversity

 unspent funds to be 
re-profiled into 
19/20 by Judith.

budget adjustment needed due to 
delayed spend - project part completed

0 6985

Miles without Stiles, Wheelchairs WG 
2018 funding

30,000 1807 RB
Resilient Communities; SED; Develop the 

Miles Without Stiles programme; maintain 
and improve access to the countryside

 PS June 2019:  spend due for 
completion March 2020.

0 0

Carn Pica Footpath Restoration WG 
2018

130,000 1804 RYL RB

Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 
improve access to the countryside; reduce 
land-based carbon emissions and restoring 

upland habitats

.  PS June 2019:  all programmed for 
completion during 2019.  Procurement 
under way.

0 0

RoW Improvements Wardens WG 2018 29,200
1800 RYB 

to RYG
EJ

Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 
improve access to the countryside

Rreallocation of 
underspend pending

Pont ar Daf spend was too late for 
current year - budget will need to 
updated.

0 15125

RoW Improvements Access Projects 
WG 2018

20,800
1804 RYD 

and RYE
EJ Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside
COMPLETED 0 19575

NP Interpretation (?) and Education 
Space at National Park Visitor Centre  
WG 2018

55,000 1808 SW
Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 

improve access to the countryside

develop project plan 
for approval - T&F 
group

budget to be set up and used with green 
growth funding - proposal being worked 
up. 

0 0

P
age 40



highlighted projects have 
conditions/deadlines attached, others 
more open-ended

SCORECARD 2017/18 
Actual

2018/19 
Actual

Project Title and description - key 
goals

Total Project 
Spend          £

CODE
Lead 
Officer

KEY WORK AREA AND 
OBJECTIVE

BUDGET 
IN PLACE

SPEND 
WITHIN 

20% 
BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 
ACTIONS

COMMENTS full year full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2019/20 planned spend 2022/2023 planned spend2021/2022 planned spend2020/2021 planned spend

Waterfalls Country Infrastructure WG 
2018

48,200 1809 JH Resilient Communities; SED; maintain and 
improve access to the countryside

Establish budget

Update from PS 3/9/18:  following meeting 
organised by RT 22/8/18 with JH, JL and PS, 
capital spend priorities totalling £22,500 
include:  Craig y Dinas to Sgwd yr Eira path, 
Cwm Porth to Four Falls path, Cwm Porth 
Toilets design brief, Gwaun Hepste signage, 
Gwaun Hepste car park design, planning 
app' and implementation, and Clun Gwyn 
Isaf viewpoint habitat restoration.  The 
balance of £27,500 to be allocated towards 
other path improvements works.  Further 
update 13-12-18 - 1) Gwaun Hepste car 
park is taking priority from the 1801 and 
1809 budgets, 2) Traffic management -  
enactment of plans for Comin y Rhos and 
Ystradfellte lay-bys etc.  Works at Cwm 
Porth and Hendre Bolon footpaths are 
priorities.  Budget updated.

0 0

Heritage in Place Grant Scheme WG 
2018

50,000 3205 TN/CP Heritage
budget to be 
established

uncertainty re timing of spend but not 
anticipated to be until later in 2019/20.

0 0

WG Additional Support for BMLUP - 
Machinery and Project Management 
WG 2018

75,000

 1800 
4100 and 

1220 
1019

JH L&B; Reducing land based carbon 
emissions and restoring upland habitats

budget update 
required for 
management hours 
to end of project

 remaining spend  for project management 
staff cost 0 59693

Nature Recovery Action Plan 
Implementation WG 2018

50,000 TBA BW

KWA=Biodiversity and Landscape; WFGA 
objective=By focusing on landscapes and 
biodiversity, esp ecosystems management, 
the Authority contributes to a more 
‘Resilient Wales’. 2.  landscapes and 
biodiversity will benefit from broad-scale 
targeted and promoted conservation 
projects. Corporate Goals & Objectives: 
Biodiversity will be conserved and 
enhanced through effective partnership, 
facilitation, practical action and the 
Planning function

Indicative budget 
profiled by quarter 
based on outline 
budget from Feb 
2019 prepared by 
Rebecca (BW). Still 
to be agreed by 
partnership mid-
June 2019.  BW/ES to 
set up budget

Major funding bid will be developed in Q1 
and Q2 of 2019-20.  ENRAW grant bid to 
enable major bid for survey and monitoring 
'vital signs'. Existing numbers do not 
include predictions from ENRAW grant if 
successful; only includes £66,000 currently 
available from WG underspend and NG 
reserve (BW)

0 0

TOTAL SPEND 4,201,955

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Review of Draft Statement of Accounts 2018/19

1.0  Introduction 

The 2018/19 draft Statement of Accounts, produced in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards as interpreted by CIPFA and the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations, 
was published on the website on 3 June.  The statutory deadline for accounts approval is 31 July 
2019.  The draft is presented here to the Committee to provide an opportunity to consider the 
draft before the final amended Statement is submitted to the Authority in the EGM on 30 July.

CIPFA Accounting Standards - impact on the presentation of the Authority’s draft 
income and expenditure and balance sheet.

The Accounting Standards are applied across all private and public sector bodies with the aim 
of increasing the comparability and consistency of accounts internationally and between sectors.  
The body which sets the standards for local authority accounting in the UK (The Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, CIPFA) effectively prescribes the format in which 
authorities must produce the accounts and, although National Park Authorities are much 
smaller bodies, they are required to follow the same format and timetable for production and 
audit.    In some instances the Regulations require a different accounting treatment from that 
specified in the Standards and, where this is the case, adjustments have been made and 
explained in the Statement as required by CIPFA.  

Statement of Accounts Approval Process

Report to: National Park Authority

Date of meeting: 26 July 2019
Report Author: Elaine Standen

Finance Manager
Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report: To present the draft Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 published 
on the Authority’s website.

Enclosures (a) a) Draft Statement of Accounts 2018/19 (also published on the 
Authority’s website)

Background Papers None 

Single Integrated 
Assessment

Not applicable

Recommendation a) That Members note the contents of the report and the 
Draft Statement as published. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk


The timeline for the production, audit, public inspection and approval by Members of the 
Accounting Statement is below.  It ensures the final Statement is produced by the deadline of 
31 July 2019. 

31/5/19: The draft Statement of Accounts was signed off by the Chief Financial Officer 
(Section 151 Officer).  A copy was submitted to Wales Audit (WA).  Draft 
Statement sent for translation before a copy can be placed on the Authority’s 
website.

3/6/19: Members of the public are entitled to examine the accounts and supporting 
information on request.  They can make an appointment to discuss any aspect of 
the Statement with the Auditor.  

25/6/19: Wales Audit review content and presentation of the Accounts and identify any 
material changes which need to be made to the draft statement. Audit takes 2 
weeks.

1/7/19: Date on which WA will meet members of the public, if required, to discuss any 
aspect of the Statement of Accounts (no requests received)

5/7/19: Audit team meet the Finance Manager to discuss the outcome of the audit and any 
accounting adjustments required.  The Finance Manager/S151 Officer makes any 
changes needed and these are reviewed by the Audit Team.  This process takes 1-2 
weeks.

Mid-July The revised Statement is approved by Wales Audit.

26/7/19 Original draft Statement presented to Audit and Scrutiny Committee.

30/7/19: NPA receives and approves the final Statement, which has been re-signed by the 
Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer).  The approved Statement is then 
signed by the Chairman and published, with the Audit Opinion via the Authority’s 
website.  The response of the Chief Executive and Chair of Audit and Scrutiny to 
the letter from Wales Audit ‘Audit enquiries to those charged with governance and 
management’ will also be presented.

1.2 Main Feature of the Statement

The Statement of Accounts comprises: 

The Narrative Report – an introduction to the Statement and comparison of actual and 
budgeted performance during the year.  The Report is not audited but must be included to 
provide the reader with some background information and analysis of financial performance in 
the year.

Page 44



The Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts – which sets out the 
role of Management and Members in the production of the Statement.

The Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement - the income and expenditure 
during the financial year, accompanied by notes which explain the figures in greater detail as 
required by the CIPFA code of practice.  This is supplemented by the Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis which explains the adjustments between the management and financial 
accounts on a departmental basis.  

The Balance Sheet - the assets and liabilities, cash held and amounts set aside in reserves at 
the financial year-end. Notes are provided to give further details of specific balances where 
required by the CIPFA code of practice.  

The Statement of Movements in Reserves – shows the total gains and losses to the 
Authority during the year, including the effect of actuarial gains and losses on the pension fund 
and valuation gains and losses on fixed assets.  It distinguishes between usable reserves which 
represent cash funds held by the Authority and unusable reserves, which are created for 
accounting purposes only (an example being the negative Pensions Reserve, which balances to 
the Pensions Liability)

The Cash Flow Statement - expenditure and income for the financial year, excluding all 
amounts owed or receivable. Further explanation is provided in the notes to the statement.

Notes to the Statements – further details explaining, for example the purposes of reserves, 
changes in asset values and the basis used to calculate the Authority’s pension fund liability as 
well as providing further information on other material elements of the Statement.  The 
principles behind the methodologies used to produce the Statements are described in the
Accounting Policies which constitute Note 1.  

The format of the Statement of Accounts is as laid down by the CIPFA Code of Practice and 
there is very limited scope for simplification.  There has been a joint drive to reduce the cost of 
audit both in terms of Authority staff time required to support the process and the financial 
cost of auditor time borne by the Authority.  This has led to a simplified audit process and a 
more focused audit visit, as well as an increased materiality threshold (now set at 2% of gross 
expenditure), or approximately £120,000 below which individual errors or omissions are not 
reported to the Authority.

The Statements are produced in round £000’s.  This leads to some rounding differences in 
casting across the statements arising from the complexity of the presentation required and the 
interrelationships between the various statements and notes.

1.3 Accounting differences between the Statement of Accounts and Management 
Reports

A report on the 2018/19 financial outturn for management purposes is provided in a separate 
report.  The actual cost of running the Authority as represented in the management accounts is 

Page 45



prepared on a different basis to that of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as included in the Statement of Accounts.  The most significant differences between 
management reports prepared for Members and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement are:

 The treatment of the year’s pension costs; actual pension costs paid in the year are 
replaced by accounting entries based on an actuarial review of the Authority’s share of 
future earnings and liabilities of the Powys Pension Fund.   The pension cost figures for 
accounting purposes are also subject to very large fluctuations between years.  In 2017/18 
there was an actuarial loss on the fund of £0.75m, whereas in 2018/19 there was an 
actuarial gain on the fund of £0.62m – impacting both the Authority’s accounting surplus 
and net assets/(liabilities).

 The treatment of the Authority’s net share of Powys Pension Fund assets and 
future obligations; on the Balance Sheet, the largest single item is the net liability 
relating to the Pension Fund – this is a recurring item which is calculated by the funds 
actuary and balanced in the accounts by a notional negative reserve of the same amount.  
The substantial increase in the liability (the net difference between the long term asset 
values and long term liabilities of the pension fund is due to an increase in the present 
value of the Authority’s obligations under the Pension Scheme.

 Capital charges associated with the Authority’s Property, Plant and 
Equipment of some £246,000 appear in the Statement but not in management accounts, 
as they are not chargeable to the taxpayer.

 Expenditure and income.  Internal recharges from one department to another, eg for 
room hire or stock supplied are excluded from total income figures and instead reduce 
the expenditure of the department providing the service.

 Unusable Reserves are notional amounts built up on the Balance Sheet to balance 
revaluations of property plant and equipment, pension fund liabilities, etc. 

1.4 The McCloud Judgement

At the time of writing, further advice was pending on the impact of a recent case on the 
Authority’s estimated liabilities to pension scheme members.  This is likely to result in a 
material adjustment in the accounts of every Local Authority in 2018/19 and a potential 
increase in employers’ pension contribution costs from 2019/20 onwards.   Note 33 on page 53 
of the draft Statement provides the background.  This will be replaced by changes to the 
Authority’s costs for the year and liabilities in the balance sheet in the final Statement, which 
will have an impact on the accounting surplus for the year and net assets.

1.5 Conclusion

The Statement of Accounts is one of the ways in which the Authority demonstrates good 
financial management and provides accountability for the way in which it has used the public 
funds entrusted to it.  The audit process is designed to ensure that the public can have 

Page 46



confidence in the quality of the Statement of Accounts and to minimize the risk that the 
financial position of the Authority has been materially miss-stated.  

RECOMMENDATION:  

That Members note the contents of the report and the Draft Statement as 
published

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

1

 

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

Statement of Accounts

for the year ended

31st March 2019

Page 49



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

2

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19

 
Page

Narrative Report 3
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 9
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 10
Expenditure and Funding Analysis 11
Balance Sheet 13
Movements in Reserves Statement 14
Cash Flow Statement 16
Notes to the Accounts 17

Page 50



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

3

NARRATIVE REPORT   
 
1. INTRODUCTION

The Authority is required by law to produce an annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with 
proper accounting practices as laid down by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) in its 2018/19 ‘Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom: A Statement of Recommended Practice’ and approved by the Accounting Standards Board. 

This foreword provides a brief explanation of the more significant matters reported in the accounts. 
Accounting statements are set out on later pages and consist of:-

A Statement of Accounting Policies - the basis upon which amounts have been included in the 
accounts using accepted accounting principles.

The Core Financial Statements

o The Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement - the income and expenditure 
during the financial year, accompanied by notes which explain the figures in greater detail as 
required by the CIPFA code of practice.  The CIPFA Code requires that the Statement structure 
is in line with the objective breakdown of income and expenditure reported to management.  
For Brecon Beacons National Park Authority this entails an analysis of expenditure and income 
by Directorate.  The CIES is supplemented by the Expenditure and Funding Analysis – an 
explanation of the differences between the net surplus or deficit as calculated in accordance 
with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the net surplus or deficit calculated in accordance with 
statute and required to be funded from revenue reserves.

o The Balance Sheet - the assets and liabilities, cash held and amounts set aside in reserves at 
the financial year-end. Notes are provided to give further details of specific balances where 
required by the CIPFA code of practice.

o The Statement of Movements in Reserves – shows the total gains and losses to the 
Authority during the year, including the effect of actuarial gains and losses on the pension fund 
and valuation gains and losses on fixed assets. 

o The Cash Flow Statement - expenditure and income for the financial year, excluding all 
amounts owed or receivable. Further explanation is provided in the notes to the statement.

The authorisation date of the Statement is 31 May 2019.  Significant events after the Balance Sheet 
date and up to 26 July 2019 have been taken into account in preparing the Statement.  The Statement 
is audited by the Auditor General for Wales’ Office and a copy of the auditor’s report is published 
with the Statement when this becomes available on completion of the audit.  The Authority is also 
required to publish a Governance Statement at the same time.  For further information and 
explanation of items in this document, please contact the Finance Manager on 01874 620467 or email 
elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

2. ABOUT BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY
The Authority covers 520 square miles and is one of three National Parks in Wales. The Authority 
became an independent Special Purpose Local Authority with effect from 1st April 1996 and has two 
statutory purposes and one duty:

Purposes:
o To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the National Park.

Page 51

mailto:elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk


Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

4

o To promote opportunities for public enjoyment and understanding of the special qualities of 
the National Park.

Duty:
o To foster the economic and social well-being of communities living within the National Park.

The Authority is the statutory Local Planning Authority for the area and is responsible for preparation 
of the Local Development Plan and determining planning applications. 

Each year the Authority is required to publish a Corporate Plan setting out how it intends to 
employ its resources for the coming year to fulfil the purposes and duty in line with its current 
National Park Management Plan 2010-2030.  A review of the Authority’s performance against 
the Corporate Plan is carried out annually.  These documents are published on the Authority’s 
website www.beacons-npa.gov.uk

3. INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
The gross cost to the Authority of providing its services, as reported to Members during the year for 
management purposes was £5,346,000. The table below sets out the sources of funding and shows 
that £98,000 was transferred to General Reserves at the year end. In addition £405,000 net was 
transferred to Earmarked Reserves to fund future commitments.  

The Welsh Government sets the Authority’s level of net revenue expenditure for the year, and pays 
75% of this in National Park Grant.  The remaining 25% can then be raised by the Authority by issuing 
a levy on the constituent Unitary Authorities.   These are: Powys County Council, Carmarthenshire 
County Council, Monmouthshire County Council, Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council, 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council, and Torfaen 
County Borough Council.   In 2018/19 a late change in the National Park Grant was not reflected in 
an amendment to the levy which therefore made up just under 24% of total core revenue funding.

COMPARISON OF ACTUAL INCOME AND EXPENDITURE: CURRENT AND PREVIOUS 
FINANCIAL YEARS 

2017/18
£000

2017/18
%

2018/19
£000

2018/19
%

National Park Grant 3,006 48 2,827 49
National Park Levy 942 15 892 15
National Park Project Grant 730 12 594 10
Government Grants and Contributions 198 3 375 6
Fees, Charges and other Service income 1,378 22 1136 20
Interest Receivable 6 0 25 0
Gross Revenue Funding 6,260 100 5,849 100

Employee Expenses 3,690 71 3,735 70
Other Service Expenses 1,513 29 1,611 30
Total Expenditure 5,203 100 5,346 100
Net Receipts from Asset Sales -200 0
Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 1,628 405
Total Expenditure after net transfers 
to/from Reserves

6,631 5,751

Net (cost)/income of Services 
(Contribn to/from General Fund) (371) 98

Page 52

http://www.beacons-npa.gov.uk/


Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

5

Locally generated income and specific grants are allocated to individual services and are offset against 
the expenditure on those headings to arrive at the total net budgets and costs as reported to those 
responsible for management of the Authority.  The table below shows how the net cost of services 
is derived from gross income and expenditure (see also the Expenditure and Funding Analysis for a 
reconciliation of amounts reported to management on a departmental basis to the totals reported on 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The net costs for each service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement include 
depreciation (the cost of wear and tear on buildings, equipment, etc.).

Adjustments are also made for pension costs in accordance with the International Accounting Standard 
19: Retirement Benefits (IAS19). These technical adjustments are intended to bring the Authority’s 
accounts into line with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Policies.  They indicate the full cost to the 
Authority in the relevant financial year of meeting all future commitments to its current and former 
employees under the Local Government Pension Scheme.  

These adjustments do not affect the net revenue spend of the Authority paid for by the Welsh 
Assembly Government and local taxpayers.  For a full explanation of the basis for the charges under 
IAS 19, see Note 31.  The adjustments are not included in the budgeted figures as they have no impact 
on the cost of the Authority’s operations for management purposes.

The IAS19 adjustments have a substantial impact on the assets of the Authority as recorded in the 
Balance Sheet, reducing the Authority’s overall net assets to £2,323,000.  Excluding the Pension Fund 
liability, the Authority’s net assets would be £11,029,000. In the Expenditure and Income Statement, 
the actuarial assessment of the Authority’s assets and liabilities in the Fund has produced a net 
actuarial gain of £620,000 which has generated an accounting surplus of £866,000 for the year.  Last 
year an actuarial loss of £750,000 was advised; a positive variation between financial years of 
£1,370,000.  

Significant developments affecting the financial position of the Authority 

In 2018/19 the Authority received a reduced level of core funding from the Welsh Government which 
it sought to deploy efficiently to meet its statutory purposes and Governmental priorities.  The 
prospect of continuing core budget reductions in the medium term has necessitated a range of cost-
saving measures, including further senior staffing reductions.   The former three-chief officer structure 
has been replaced by two chief officers (the Chief Executive and the Delivery Director).  A major 
review of priorities is in train which will enable the Authority to focus its reducing resources on key 
objectives.

An increasing proportion of the Welsh Government funding for the Authority takes the form of 
grants for specific revenue and capital projects.  A significant amount of funding; £594,000, was 
received in March 2019 for a range of projects which will be delivered from 2019/20 onwards to 
improve the visitor experience and the upland path network, protect biodiversity and for community 
planning and health initiatives within the Park.    As a result, in the revised outturn and balance sheet 
shows a substantial variance from the estimate and a large transfer to reserves. 

Grant income for key priorities such as promotion of the Park as a destination, the provision of 
socially inclusive employment opportunities and the conservation of biodiversity in vulnerable upland 
habitats have enabled a range of projects to be delivered.  Grants from the Heritage Lottery Fund 
have been an important source of income for an apprenticeship scheme and improvements to a site 
of industrial archaeology in the south of the Park.  Substantial investment in renewable solar energy 
at the Authority’s visitor facilities and the warden service depot, as well as electric vehicle charging 
points and fleet cars funded by Welsh government grants will form part of the Authority’s 
contribution to a lower carbon future.

Earmarked reserves allow the Authority to set aside contingency funds to meet future commitments, 
such as the costs of the Local Development Plan Enquiry and Sustainable Development Fund grant 
commitments and are used where the timing of funding receipts does not match the financial year of 

Page 53



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

6

the related expenditure.  A net transfer of £405,000 was made into Earmarked Reserves and Accounts 
during the year.

The Authority’s total usable reserves increased between 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 from 
£3,57m to £3.84m.  The majority of these are ring-fenced for specific project work and other 
commitments.

A simplified comparison between the budgeted and actual income and expenditure account by service 
for 2018/19 is produced below and shows that the Authority planned to transfer some £28,000 from 
its General Reserve at the year-end whereas in fact £98,000 was transferred to the Reserve; an net 
under-spend of £126,000.    

The table below is in line with CIPFA’s current code of practice which requires authorities to account 
for expenditure and income in the same objective structure as is used for reporting to management.   

To enable comparisons between the revised budget and the outturn, year-end recharges for capital 
charges (depreciation) and actuarially assessed pension scheme costs (in accordance with 
international accounting standards) have been applied to the budget figures to give an adjusted total.  

Page 54



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

7

Summary of principal variances between 2018/19 budget and outturn

Si
gnificant 
Varianc
es 
Reporte
d to 
Manage
ment

C
hi
ef 
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
s 
O
ffice
Underspends on Office Services and Democratic Representation, due to staff vacancies, reducing use 
of office paper and postage and a reduction in the final settlement from the HMRC in respect of 
outstanding NI liabilities on Member expenses.

Countryside and Community 
Core Services

Public Engagement staff costs were lower than estimated and income generated from Education fees 
was higher, producing a net underspend of close to £44,000.  These underspends have helped to offset 
overspends across the Visitor Services budgets, principally arising from the overspend of £21,000 at 
the National Park Visitor Centre, impacted by lower than expected income from the catering 
franchisee, and an over-spend of £12,000 caused by one-off termination costs from the closure of the 
Llandovery Information Centre.

Projects
A substantial underspend in Sustainable Development Fund Grants (£67k) was due to delays in the 
receipt of claims and in project approval by other funders.  The committed but unspent grants have 
been reserved.  Green Growth spending of £50k planned was re-profiled to 2019 onwards pending 
development of the project.  The completion of the new destination website for the Park was delayed 
until early 2019/20.  Transfers to earmarked reserves balance these underspends at Authority level.  

Net Service Costs 2018/19 
Adjusted 
Budget

2018/19 
Out-turn

 2018/19 
Variance 
against 

adjusted 
Budget

£000 £000 £000

Planning and Development Control 960 932 -28
Countryside Land Management and Communities 2,437 2,340 -97
Chief Executive’s Department 1,016 980 -36
Other Operating Expenditure 324 270 -54
Adjusted net cost 4,737 4,522 -215

Interest received -18 -25 -7
National Park Grant (Welsh Assembly Government) -2,827 -2,827 -1
National Park Levy (Constituent Authorities) -892 -892 0
National Park Capital Grant (Welsh Assembly Government) 0 -594 -594
Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves -283 385 668
Transfer to Capital Receipts Reserve 0 0 0
Transfer to Capital Grants Unapplied Account 0 118 118

-4,020 -3,835 184

Budget Adjustments reversed
Accounting Adjustments

-690

-785
Net Deficit 27 -98 -125

Page 55



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

8

An accounting surplus on the Black Mountains Land Use Partnership, arising from the methodology 
used to calculate some administrative costs has been earmarked to provide for project financial risks.

Planning and Development Control
A total underspend of some £21,000 was generated in the department, of which some £9,000 related 
to a delay in planned expenditure on digitising planning records.  This project will be completed in 
2019/20.  The remaining underspend was derived from reduced costs in enforcement.

4) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
2018/19 
Actual*

£000

2018/19 
Actual*

£000

Gunpowder Works conservation and interpretation 
project year 3 (capital element) 399

Micro Hydro Scheme 17

Access and Rights of Way improvement projects 28

Peatland Habitat restoration projects 67

Robotic Flail for remote access vegetation management 56

Photovoltaic Solar Panel Installations on Authority 
Buildings 39

Electric Vehicle Charging Point installations on 
Authority sites 17

Wales Way tourism project infrastructure 18

Mountain Centre Health and Safety/refurbishment 38

Geopark Centre Interpretation installation
3

Total grant-funded project spend classified as capital 
under accounting rules* 682

Less: Grants & Contributions (455)

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve (169)

Use of Capital Grants Unapplied Reserves (55)

Revenue Financing (3)

Net Expenditure (682)

*Expenditure which meets the accounting definition of capital has been classified as capital and funded 
by grants, use of capital receipts, a legacy receipt and an appropriation from the Revenue Account.  
Expenditure meets the relevant accounting de minimis criteria (as outlined in the Authority’s 
accounting policies).   When projects are completed, the resulting asset is included in the Authority’s 
Balance Sheet.  

Page 56



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

9

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

THE AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES
The Authority is required to:-
o Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its 

officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this Authority that officer is 
the Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer).

o Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its 
assets.

o Approve the Statement of Accounts.

THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
The Chief Financial Officer/S151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of 
Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.  

In preparing the Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has:-
o Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
o Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
o Complied with the Code of Practice.
The Chief Financial Officer has also:
o Kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
o Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority at the 
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2019. To comply with the 
Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014, the Chief Financial Officer is required to re-certify the 
Statement immediately before their adoption by the Authority and after the completion of the audit, while the 
Chairman certifies approval of the audited Statement by the Authority.

E Standen ACMA         Date:   31/5/19
Section 151 Officer
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority

E Standen ACMA Date:  30/7/19
Section 151 Officer
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority

Cllr Edward Evans
Chairman
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority Date: 30/7/19

Page 57



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

10

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  The Authority’s 
expenditure is funded from taxation, in accordance with regulations, via the National Park Grant and Levy on 
Constituent Authorities.  This may differ from the accounting calculation of operating expenditure.  Further 
information on the adjustments made to the management accounts to comply with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice are provided in the Expenditure and Funding Analysis on the following pages. The adjustments to the 
accounting calculation to arrive at the taxation-funded position are further detailed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

2017/18 2018/19
Expend-
iture

Income Net Expend-
iture

Income Net

£000 £000 £000

N
O

T
E

S £000 £000 £000

1,192 (259) 933
Planning and Development Control

1,157 (225) 932

3,170 (1,138) 2,032
Countryside, Land Management and 

Communities 3,598 (1,258) 2,340

1,288 (180) 1,108
Chief Executive’s Department

1,008 (28) 980
Other – Past Service Cost

30 0 30
5,650 (1,577) 4,073 COST OF SERVICES 5,793 (1,511) 4,282

(30) Other Operating Expenditure
8

20

184 Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure 9

195

(4,884) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
10

(4,768)

(657) DEFICIT/(SURPLUS) ON PROVISION 
OF    SERVICES

(271)

Deficit on Revaluation of Property Plant and 
Equipment

11 25

750 Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pension Assets and 
Liabilities 31

(620)

93 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
AND EXPENDITURE

(866)

Page 58



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

11

EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
The analysis below details the adjustments that have been made to the Authority’s management accounts to 
present them in the CIES in accordance with the requirements of the current CIPFA Code which requires 
them to include the cost of holding assets and the actuarial assessment of the full cost of the pension scheme 
for the current year.  It reconciles the Income and Expenditure Statement’s net deficit/surplus with the net 
transfer to revenue reserves.  Note 21 provides a further subjective analysis of expenditure and income.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2018/19
Net 

Expend-
iture 

Chargeable 
to General 

Fund

Adjustments 
between 

funding and 
accounting 

basis - 
capital 
charges

Adjustments 
between 

funding and 
accounting 

basis - 
pensions

Adjustments 
between 

funding and 
accounting 

basis - other

TOTAL 
ADJUST-
MENTS

Net 
expend-
iture in 
CIES

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Planning and Development Control 861 10 61 0 71 932
Countryside, Land Management 
and Communities

2,033 198 109 0 307 2,340

CEO and Support 938 13 29 0 42 980
Other 0 0 30 0 30 30
Net Cost of Services 3,832 221 229 0 450 4,282

Pension Fund Administration Costs 0 0 20 0 20 20
 Bank interest received (25) 0 0 0 0 (25)
National Park Grant  see NOTE 10 (2,827) 0 0 0 0 (2,827)
Specific Grants Received - Welsh 
Government  SEE NOTE 10

(594) 0 0 0 0 (594)

Capital Grant applied 0 0 0 (455) (455) (455)
Levies on Constituent Local 
Authorities  SEE NOTE 10

(892) 0 0 0 0 (892)

Interest on Defined Benefit Liability 0 0 220 0 220 220
Asset sale less cost of sales,  0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue funding of Capital 
expenditure 

3 0 0 (3) (3) 0

Other Income and 
Expenditure

(4,335) 0 240 (458) (218) (4,553)

Loss on Revaluation of Assets 0 25 0 0 25 25
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 
Pension Assets/ Liabilities

0 0 (620) 0 (620) (620)

Deficit/(Surplus) before 
transfers to /from Revenue 
Reserves

(503) (866)

Appropns to Capital Reserves
Transfers to Capital Receipts 
unapplied

0

Transfer to Capital Grants 
Unapplied (net)

118

(385)

Movements on Revenue 
Reserves
Opening Balance 2,085
Revenue Surplus/(deficit) 385
Closing Balance on Revenue 
Reserve

2,470

Page 59



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

12

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2017/18
Net 

Expend-
iture 

Chargeable 
to General 

Fund

Adjustments 
between 

funding and 
accounting 

basis - 
capital 
charges

Adjustments 
between 

funding and 
accounting 

basis - 
pensions

Adjustments 
between 

funding and 
accounting 

basis - other

TOTAL 
ADJUST-
MENTS

Net 
expend-
iture in 
CIES

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Planning and Development Control 875 0 59 (1) 58 933
Countryside, Land Management 
and Communities

1,676 242 115 (1) 356 2,032

CEO and Support 1,042 24 43 (1) 66 1,108

Net Cost of Services 3,593 266 217 (3) 480 4,073

Pension Fund Administration Costs 0 0 20 0 20 20
 Bank interest received (6) 0 0 0 0 (6)
National Park Grant  see NOTE 10 (3,006) 0 0 0 0 (3,006)
Capital Grant Received - Welsh 
Government  SEE NOTE 10

(730) 0 0 0 0 (730)

Capital Grant applied 0 0 0 (206) (206) (206)
Levies on Constituent Local 
Authorities  SEE NOTE 10

(942) 0 0 0 0 (942)

Interest on Defined Benefit Liability 0 0 190 0 190 190
Asset sale less cost of sales,  (200) 0 0 150 150 (50)
Revenue funding of Capital 
expenditure 

33 0 0 (33) (33) 0

Other Income and 
Expenditure

(4,851) 0 210 (89) 121 (4,730)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 
Pension Assets/ Liabilities

0 0 750 0 750 750

Deficit/(Surplus) before 
transfers to /from Revenue 
Reserves

(1,258) 93

Appropns to Capital Reserves
Transfers to Capital Receipts 
unapplied

202

Transfer to Capital Grants 
Unapplied

730

(326)

Movements on Revenue 
Reserves
Opening Balance 1,759
Revenue Surplus/(deficit) 326
Closing Balance on Revenue 
Reserve

2,085

Page 60



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

13

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the 
Authority.  The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the 
Authority.  Reserves are reported in two categories.  The first category of reserves are usable reserves, ie 
those that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of 
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use.  The second category includes those that the Authority is 
not able to use to provide services.  This includes reserves holding unrealised gains and losses, such as the 
Revaluation Reserve, where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets were sold, 
and also record timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between 
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

Balance Sheet 

2017/18
(£000)

N
O

T
E

S

2018/19
(£000)

5,697 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 7,228
57 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 34

5,754 TOTAL LONG-TERM ASSETS 7,262

39 Inventories 13 34
572 Short-term Debtors 14 799

3,761 Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 3,862
4,372 CURRENT ASSETS 4,695

882 Short-Term Creditors 17 928
882 CURRENT LIABILITIES 928

8,858 Liability Related to Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 31 8,706
8,858 LONG TERM LIABILITIES 8,706

386 NET ASSETS 2,323

1,258 Capital Grants Unapplied Account 6 1,205
2,309 Other Usable Reserves* 6 2,639
3,567 Total Usable Reserves 3,844

(3,181) Unusable Reserves 18 (1,521)
386 TOTAL RESERVES 2,323

Page 61



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

14

MOVEMENTS IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into 
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other 
reserves.  The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of 
providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the 
General Fund Balance.  The Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the 
statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken 
by the Authority.  Further details of these transfers are shown in Note 7.

Movements in Reserves 2018/19 (£000)

   

G
en

er
al

 R
es

er
ve

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
/S

10
6 

Ba
la

nc
es

 
he

ld
 (

R
ES

T
A

T
ED

*)

W
el

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
R

ev
en

ue
 G

ra
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

ut
 u

na
pp

lie
d

Ea
rm

ak
ed

 r
es

ve
s 

- 
O

th
er

T
O

T
A

L 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 R
E

SE
R

V
E

S

C
A

PI
T

A
L 

G
R

A
N

T
S 

U
N

A
PP

LI
ED

 
A

C
O

O
U

N
T

C
A

PI
T

A
L 

R
EC

EI
PT

S 
R

ES
ER

V
E

T
O

T
A

L 
U

SA
B

LE
 R

E
SE

R
V

E
S

T
O

T
A

L 
U

N
U

SA
B

LE
 R

E
SE

R
V

E
S

T
O

T
A

L 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
S

     
Balance at 31 
March 2018 
Carried Forward

948 31 427 679 2,085 1,258 224 3,567 (3,181) 386

Total Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure

271 0 0 0 271 0 0 271 595 866

Other 
Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure

595 0 0 0 595 0 0 595 476 1,071

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
regulations (NOTE 6)

(768) (1) 324 (36) (481) 118 0 (363) 363 0

Transfers between 
the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Acct and 
the Capital 
Adjustment Acct

0 0 0 0 0 (171) 0 (171) 171 0

Transfers between 
the Capital Receipts 
Reserve and the 
Capital Adjustment 
Account

0 0 0 0 0 0 (55) (55) 55 0

Increase/(Decrease) 
in 2018/19

98 (1) 324 (36) 385 (53) (55) 277 1660 1,937

Balance at 31 
March 2019 
Carried Forward

1,046 30 751 643 2,470 1,205 169 3,844 (1,521) 2,323

Page 62



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

15

Movements in Reserves 2017/18 (£000)

G
en

er
al

 R
es

er
ve

A
ffo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
/S

10
6 

Ba
la

nc
es

 
he

ld
 (

R
ES

T
A

T
ED

*)

W
el

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
R

ev
en

ue
 G

ra
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

ut
 u

na
pp

lie
d

Ea
rm

ak
ed

 r
es

ve
s 

- 
O

th
er

T
O

T
A

L 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 R
E

SE
R

V
E

S

C
A

PI
T

A
L 

G
R

A
N

T
S 

U
N

A
PP

LI
ED

 
A

C
O

O
U

N
T

C
A

PI
T

A
L 

R
EC

EI
PT

S 
R

ES
ER

V
E

T
O

T
A

L 
U

SA
B

LE
 R

E
SE

R
V

E
S

T
O

T
A

L 
U

N
U

SA
B

LE
 R

E
SE

R
V

E
S

T
O

T
A

L 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
S

     
Balance at 31 
March 2017 
Carried Forward

1,319 6 0 434 1,759 605 98 2,462 (1,983) 479

Total Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure

657 0 0 0 657 0 0 657 (750) (93)

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
regulations (NOTE 6)

(1,028) 25 427 245 (331) 730 202 601 (601) 0

Transfers between 
the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Acct and 
the Capital 
Adjustment Acct

0 0 0 0 0 (77) 0 (77) 77 0

Transfers between 
the Capital Receipts 
Reserve and the 
Capital Adjustment 
Account

0 0 0 0 0 0 (76) (76) 76 0

Increase/(Decrease) 
in 2017/18 (371) 25 427 245 326 653 126 1,105 (1,198) (93)
Balance at 31 
March 2018 
Carried Forward

948 31 427 679 2,085 1,258 224 3,567 (3,181) 386

Page 63



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

16

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the 
reporting period.  The statement show how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by 
classifying cash flows as operating, investing or financing activities.  The amount of net cash flows arising from 
operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by 
way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority.   

Cash Flow Statement

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

2018/19
£000

2018/19
£000

(657) (Surplus)/Deficit on the provision of services
N

O
T

E
(271)

(155) Depreciation and impairment (198)
(13) Amortisation of intangible assets (23)

0 Loss on valuation of asset held for sale 0
(98) Loss on revaluation of Land and Buildings 0

9 Increase/(Decrease)  in Stocks (4)
(157) Increase/(Decrease) in Debtors 264

329 (Increase)/Decrease  in Creditors (14)

3 (Increase )/Decrease in Creditor re Accrued Employee 
Benefits

0

184 246

(980) Reversal of Current Service Cost, Pension Interest 
Cost and Expected Return on Pension Assets

(1,060)

553 Cash payment to Pension Fund in year 592

(427) (468)

207 Capital Grants taken to Revenue Account 455
(302) Total Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services for non-cash movements
12

(959) (259)

780
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services that are Investing 
and Financing activities

117

(179) Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 19 (142)

(769) Investing Activities 20 41
0 Financing Activities 0

(948) Net (increase)/ or decrease in cash and cash 
equivalents

(101)

(2,813) Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting period

(3,761)

(3,761) Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the 
reporting period 15

(3,862)

Page 64



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

17

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

NOTE 1:  Accounting Policies:  

1.1 GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The purpose of the Statement of Accounting Policies is to explain the calculation bases of the figures 
in the accounts.

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with:

 The current year’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the 
Code) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice as it applies to National Parks.

 The guidance notes issued by CIPFA on the application of International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS’s); International Accounting Standards (IAS’s); Statements of Recommended Practice (SORP)

 The Local Government Finance Act 1982

 The Accounting principles of relevance, reliability, comparability and comprehensibility.

 The basic accounting concepts of materiality, going concern, matching, consistency, primacy of 
legislative requirements, prudence and substance over form.  The concept of the primacy of 
legislative requirements is given precedence over other concepts where there is a conflict.

 1.2 ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Activity is accounted for in the year in which it occurs, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received.  In particular:

 Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably 
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between 
the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the 
Balance Sheet.

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is reduced and a charge is made to the 
expenditure and income account for the income that might not be collected.

1.3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on 
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature within 3 months or less 
from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant 
risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.

Page 65



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

18

1.4 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
ESTIMATES AND ERRORS

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material 
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future 
years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.  

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and 
conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance.

Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

1.5   CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Services, and support services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding 
fixed assets during the year:

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service
 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve against which the losses can be written off
 Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service

The Authority is not required to fund depreciation, revaluations and impairment losses or amortisations 
from the revenue grant or levies.  As the Authority is debt-free it is not required to make an annual 
contribution from revenue to reduce its overall borrowing requirement as would otherwise be the case.

1.6   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for current employees 
and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the 
Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, eg time off in 
lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into 
the next financial year. The accrual is made on an estimated basis at the rates of pay applicable in the 
following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is 
charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement 
in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the 
holiday absence occurs.

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an 
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits or when the authority recognises the costs of a restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
Income and Expenditure Account to be charged with the amount payable to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to 
remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them 

Page 66



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

19

with debits for cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid 
at the year end.

Post-employment benefits are earned by employees during their working life in return for services 
to their employer.  Employees of the Authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, 
administered by Powys County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement 
lump sums and pensions) earned as employees work for the Authority and is accounted for as a defined 
benefits scheme.  

The liabilities of the Powys Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet 
on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – ie an assessment of the future payments that will 
be made in relation to retirements benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about 
mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of earnings for current employees.
Liabilities used for accounting purposes are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to 
corporate bond yields.  The assets of the Powys pension fund attributable to the Authority are included 
in the Balance Sheet at their fair value. 

 quoted securities – current bid price
 unquoted securities – professional estimate
 unitised securities – current bid price
 property – market  value

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

 Service cost comprising:
o current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – 

allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which 
the employees worked 

o past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment 
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
as part of Non Distributed Costs 

o net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), ie net interest expense for the authority 
– the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the 
passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by applying the discount 
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes 
in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and 
benefit payments.  

 Re-measurements comprising:
  the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 

benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure

 actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have 
not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries 
have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

 Contributions paid to the Powys Pension Fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to the 
pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

Page 67



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

20

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged 
with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not 
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative 
balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General 
Reserve of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as 
benefits are earned by employees.

The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of 
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same 
policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

1.7   EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for 
issue. Two types of events can be identified:

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of 
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material 
effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts.

1.8  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
Where the Authority has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction 
is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective. 
Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot 
exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting material gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

1.9   GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions 
and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that the 
Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and the grants or contributions will 
be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until there is reasonable certainty that conditions attached to the grant or 
contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic 
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required 
to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be 
returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in 
the Balance Sheet as Receipts in Advance. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is 
credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and 
Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Page 68



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

21

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.   Where the grant 
has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to Capital Grants Received in Advance. 
Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

1.10   INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
Authority as a result of past events (eg software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and carried at amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of 
an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on 
the General Reserve. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Reserve in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

1.11   INVENTORIES 
These have been included in the accounts at cost. This is a departure from the requirements of the 
CIFPA Code of Practice, which require stocks to be shown at the lower of actual cost or net realisable 
value, whichever is the lower. The difference is not considered to be material.

1.12   LEASES
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee and 
the value of the item of property, plant or equipment leased exceeds the de minimis threshold of 
£10,000 – see item 1.14 below.   All other leases are classed as operating leases.  

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. 
Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the 
pattern of payments (eg there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  Credits are made on a straight-line basis 
over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (eg there is a premium 
paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as rental income.

1.13   OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES

Page 69



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

22

In accordance with the current CIPFA Code of Practice, the cost of support services is accounted for in 
the same format as presented to Authority Members in the management accounts.  Support services 
and departmental management costs are shown in the department under which they are managed. 

1.14   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future 
economic benefits or service potential (ie repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it 
is incurred.  The Authority has set a minimum level of £10,000 for capitalising expenditure, with the 
exception of land and buildings which are always capitalised. Expenditure below the minimum level is 
treated as revenue and assets with a net book value of less than £10,000 have been written out of 
the balance sheet and are no longer included in the total of fixed assets.  

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any costs attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management.  

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction: depreciated historical cost.
 All other assets: fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its 

existing use (existing use value).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, 
depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.  Where non-property assets that have 
short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair 
value.  Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that 
their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum 
every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise 
unrealised gains. 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains)

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its 
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account.

Page 70



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

23

Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains)

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.

 where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original 
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of 
their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a 
determinable finite useful life (ie freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not 
yet available for use (ie assets under construction).  Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

 dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as 
estimated by the valuer

 vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset as 
advised by a suitably qualified officer

 infrastructure (rights of way, trails and associated structures – straight-line allocation over the 
useful life of the asset as advised by a suitably qualified officer

In the absence of specific advice, the estimated asset lives used are as follows:

Vehicles and other equipment 5 years
IT equipment 3 years
Community and Infrastructure 
assets

20 years

Intangible Assets 3 years

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The 
asset is re-valued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and 
fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss 
is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Page 71



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

24

Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously losses recognised 
in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held 
for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to 
sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.  When an 
asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether 
Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal.  Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (ie netted off against the carrying 
value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the 
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.   Receipts are 
appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
As the Authority is debt free, 100% of any such receipts can be used to finance new capital expenditure

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against taxation, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Surplus Assets
Where an asset is no longer being used for operational purposes but is not being actively marketed, 
abandoned or scrapped, it is classified as a surplus asset.  Surplus assets are valued at fair value (ie the 
price which would be received in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.

1.15  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT 
ASSETS

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible obligation 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a 
provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where they are material.

Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible asset whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the authority.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where 
it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential and they are material.

Page 72



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

25

1.16 RESERVES
The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is 
charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision 
of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated 
back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net 
charge against taxation for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, retirement and 
employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority – these reserves are 
explained in the relevant policies.

1.17 VALUE ADDED TAX
The accounts have been prepared on a VAT exclusive basis, to the extent that it is recoverable.  

NOTE 2:  Accounting Standards Issued and Not Adopted
IAS (International Accounting Standard) 16 relating to the accounting treatment of leases would, if 
implemented, have a material impact on the value of Property, Plant and Equipment recorded on the Balance 
Sheet, as well as the value of Liabilities recorded.  CIPFA has taken the decision to delay implementation of 
the Standard until 1 April 2020.

NOTE 3:  Critical Judgements In Applying Accounting Policies
In applying the Authority’s Accounting Policies, certain judgements have been made involving uncertainty 
about future events.  The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

 There is uncertainty about future levels of funding for National Park Authorities in Wales beyond the 
2019/20 financial year.  However, the assumption has been made that the Authority’s principal functions 
will continue and that the Authority will continue to exist as a ‘going concern’.  The most significant 
implication of this is that the Authority’s future liabilities to the Powys Pension Fund will not crystallise in 
the short term and are being met by contribution levels set by the Fund’s actuary.

NOTE 4:  Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures which are based on assumptions made by the Authority 
about the future or are otherwise uncertain.  Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, 
current trends and other relevant factors.  However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, 
actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.  The items in the Authority’s 
Balance Sheet at 31 March 2019 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming 
financial year are as follows:

Page 73



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

26

NOTE 5:  Events after the Balance Sheet date
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by Chief Financial Officer on 31 May 2019. Events 
taking place after this date are not reflected in the Statements or notes. Where events taking place before 
this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2019, the figures in the Statements 
and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.

NOTE 6:  Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 
Regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources 
that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and 

Item Uncertainties Effect If Actual Results Differ 
From Assumptions

Pensions liability/Asset Estimation of the net liability to pay 
pensions depends on a number of 
complex judgements relating to 
corporate bond yields, the discount 
rate used, projected rates of salary 
increase, changes to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme itself, 
future retirement ages, mortality 
rates and expected returns on 
pension fund assets.  AON Hewitt 
provides the Authority with actuarial 
advice on the assumptions to be 
applied and their effect – see Note 
31.

Changes in assumptions may 
interact in a number of ways but 
may have a large impact on the 
Financial Statement.  The 
accounting standard governing the 
accounting basis for Pension 
Scheme costs is known to cause 
volatility in estimates of assets and 
liabilities between years and hence 
large swings in both the CIES total 
and net assets.  The Powys Pension 
Fund holds a significant proportion 
of growth asset which while 
expected to outperform corporate 
bonds in the long term creates 
volatility and risk in the short term 
in relation to the accounting figures. 
The actual cost of pension benefits 
accrued by current Authority 
employees will not be known for 
many years.

Property, Plant and 
Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful 
lives that are dependent on 
assumptions about the level of 
repairs and maintenance that will be 
carried out on individual assets.  The 
current economic climate makes it 
uncertain that the Authority will be 
able to sustain its current spending 
on repairs and maintenance, bringing 
into doubt the useful lives assigned 
to assets.  Valuations ascribed to 
Property by the Authority’s valuers 
are affected by market values which 
are substantially dependent on 
economic factors outside the 
Authority’s control.

A reduction in useful life or 
identification of impairment 
increases the charge on the Cost of 
Services and reduces the value of 
assets in the Balance Sheet.  See 
Note 11 for details of depreciation 
and impairment in the year.

Changes in the market value of 
assets may result in the Authority’s 
land and buildings being under- or 
over-valued.

Page 74



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

27

revenue expenditure.  Below is a description of the General Reserve, against which the adjustments are 
made.

General Reserve
The General Reserve is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are required to be 
paid and out of which all liabilities are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might provide 
otherwise.  These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact 
on the General Reserve, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice.  The 
General Reserve therefore summarises the resources that the Authority is statutorily empowered to 
spend on its services or on capital investment.  Details of the adjustments are provided below.

Page 75



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

28

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under Regulations in the year

2017/18 2018/19
General 
Reserve

£000

Move- 
ments in 

Unusable 
Reserves

£000

Move-
ments in 

Capital 
Reserves 

£000 

General 
Reserve

£000

Move- 
ments in 

Unusable 
Reserves

£000

Move-
ments in 

Capital 
Reserves 

£000 
Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Adjustment Account

(168) 168 Charges for depreciation and impairment 
of non-current assets

(221) 221

(150) 150 Amounts of non-current assets written off 
on disposal as part of gain/loss on disposal 
shown in CIES

0 0

(98) 98 Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and 
Equipment

(25) 25

206 (206) Capital grants and contributions applied 454 (454)

Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

33 (33) Capital expenditure charged against the 
General Fund

3 (3)

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Receipts Reserve

202 (202) Transfer of cash sale net proceeds credited 
as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the 
CIES and financing of disposal costs and 
financing cost of disposal from Cap Receipt

0 0

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Unappd account

730 (730) Grants received but unapplied in year 
transferred to Capital Grants Unapplied 
Account

118 (118)

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Pensions Reserve

(980) 980 Reversal of items relating to retirement 
benefits debited or credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (see NOTE 31) 

(440) 440

553 (553) Employers’ pension contributions and 
direct payments to pensioners payable in 
the year

592 (592)

Adjustments Primarily involving the 
Accumulated Absences Account

3 (3) Amount by which officer remuneration 
charged to the Comprehensive income and 
Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis 
is different from that chargeable in the year 
in accordance with statutory requirements

0 0

331 601 (932) TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 481 (363) (118)

Page 76



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

29

NOTE 7: TRANSFERS BETWEEN EARMARKED RESERVES AND THE GENERAL FUND

These reserves are amounts set aside by the Authority out of its revenue resources to meet future costs 
whose timing and extent are uncertain.  They are held until required or until the Authority decides that 
the anticipated costs will not arise, when they can be transferred, via the appropriations account, into the 
General Reserve.  The purposes of the principal earmarked reserves are described below.

S106 Affordable Housing Reserve
This reserve has been established to retain S106 sums payable to the Authority in relation 
to property development pending their allocation to applicants for the provision of 
affordable housing.  Affordable Housing receipts which have conditions attached and are 
potentially repayable to the developer have been treated as Receipts in Advance.

National Grid Staffing Reserve
This reserve was set up to receive funding for additional posts in relation to a one-off 
payment from Transco to help mitigate the impact of the construction of a gas pipeline 
across the National Park.  The grant was intended to cover payroll and other associated 
costs for a number of years for a Warden and an Ecologist.  The reserve continues to be 
used to support the work of the Ecology team.  Amounts are transferred into the 
revenue account as required.

Welsh Government Specific Revenue Funding 2017
This reserve holds the unspent portion of revenue funding for a range of specific projects, 
provided to the Authority in addition to its core grant in 2016/17.  This will facilitate 
reporting on the use of the funding.

Welsh Government Specific Revenue Funding 2018
This reserve holds the unspent portion of revenue funding for a range of specific projects, 
provided to the Authority in addition to its core grant in 2017/18.  

Welsh Government Specific Revenue Funding 2019
This reserve holds the unspent portion of revenue funding for a range of specific projects, 
provided to the Authority in addition to its core grant in 2018/19.  

Conservation Fund Reserve
Fees received by the Authority from organisations using Authority land for filming, net of 
any related costs, are set aside for use on environmental improvement projects and other 
expenditure to benefit the National Park.

Local Development Plan Enquiry Reserve
The Authority is legally required to publish a Local Development Plan periodically.  This 
involves extensive consultation and data collection, a public enquiry held by an external 
Planning Inspector, and publication costs at intervals of 3-5 years.  Funds were set aside 
each year to help fund these recurring costs.  The current Plan was adopted in 2014 and 
is currently being reviewed.

Tourism and Information Publications Reserve
This fund provides for the cost of refreshing and reprinting Authority information 
publications and is credited with the net income generated by sales of the publications.

Tourism Projects Reserve
The Reserve has been set aside for

Page 77



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

30

 contingencies and exchange rate losses arising from the projects has been reserved for 
use to support future grant bids and tourism initiatives.  

Tourism Destination Partnership Reserve
This reserve holds funds received from members of the Sustainable Destination 
Partnership until they are applied on tourism projects for the Partnership.

Legacy receipts Reserve
This new reserve was set up to earmark funding received in the form of bequests until it 
can be appropriately used to benefit the National Park.

Dwr Cymru-Welsh Water Reserve
Funds received from DCWW for agreed programmes of work in water catchment areas 
such as peatland restoration and environmental study and data collection but not yet 
applied have been reserved for use in future years.

Sustainable Development Fund Earmarked Sums 
This reserve represents funding commitments agreed by the Grant Allocation Panel but not claimed 
by the grantee at the financial year end.

Black Mountains Land Use Partnership Project Reserve
This reserve is to cover project financial risks in years 3 and 4 arising from the grant claims process 
and the grant scheme’s hypothecation of administrative costs.

Details of the adjustments for the last two financial years are provided below.
B

alance at 
31 M

arch 
2017

R
ounding 

A
djustm

ent

T
ransfers 

out

T
ransfers in

B
alance at 

31 M
arch 

2018

R
ounding 

A
djustm

ent

T
ransfers 

out

T
ransfers in

B
alance at 

31 M
arch 

2019

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Welsh Government 
Specific revenue grants 
committed to projects

0 0 (58) 485 427 (131) 455 751

S106/Affordable Housing 
sums received by the 
Authority but not yet 
applied

6 0 0 25 31 -1 0 0 30

Other Earmarked 
Reserves

434 1 (88) 332 679 1 (149) 112 643

Total 440 1 (146) 842 1,137 0 (280) 567 1424

NOTE 8:  Other Operating Expenditure

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

(50) (Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-current assets 0

20 Pension Fund Administration Costs 20

(30) Total 20

Page 78



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

31

NOTE 9:  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

190 Interest on Pension Scheme net defined benefit liability 220

(6) Interest receivable and similar income (25)

184 Total 195

NOTE 10:  Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (see also Note 25 - Total Grant Income)

2017/18
£000

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

2018/19
£000

Levies on Constituent Local Authorities

554 Powys County Council 525

138 Carmarthenshire County Council 131

106 Monmouthshire County Council 100

48 Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council 45

38 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 36

29 Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council 28

29 Torfaen County Borough Council 27

942 892
3,006 Non-Specific Grant Income – National Park Grant 2,827

Funding Pressures Grant Income – Welsh Government 455

206 Capital Grants and Contributions applied in year 455

730 Capital Grants and Contributions received 139

4,884 Total 4,768

Page 79



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

32

NOTE 11:  Property, plant and equipment

Land and Buildings

V
ehicles, Plant, 

Furniture and 
Equipm

ent

Infrastructure 
A

ssets

C
om

m
unity A

ssets

Surplus A
ssets

A
ssets  under 

C
onstruction

T
otal Property, 

Plant and 
Equipm

ent

Movements in 2018/19 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation:

At 1 April 2018 4,781 76 1,203 210 0 121 6,391
Rounding adjustment 1 1 2
Additions 55 56 22 60 0 489 682

Valuation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaln 
Reserve

1,071 0 0 0 0 0 1,071

Accumulated depreciation 
adjustment on revalued assets

(78) 0 0 0 0 0 (78)

Valuation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the CIES*

(25) 0 0 0 0 0 (25)

De-recognition of fully 
depreciated assets

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Assets reclassified 
Other movements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2019 5,805 132 1,225 271 0 610 8,043

Accumulated depreciation 
and Impairment
At 1 April 2018 78 47 416 153 0 0 694
Rounding adjustment 1 1 2
Accumulated depreciation written 
out on revaluation 

(78) 0 0 0 0 0 (78)

Depreciation written out to the 
revaluation reserve

28 0 0 0 0 0 28

Impairment losses/(reversals 
recognised in the surplus/deficit 
on the provision of services 

55 0 0 0 0 0 55

Depreciation written out to the 
surplus/deficit on the provision 
of services

28 9 73 4 0 0 114

Total depreciation charge 
for the year

111 9 73 4 0 0 197

Impairment losses/(reversals) 
recognised in the revaluation 
reserve

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

De-recognition – disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
De-recognition – other 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31 March 2019 111 57 489 158 0 0 815
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2018 4,488 28 788 57 0 336 5,697
At 31 March 2019 5,693 76 736 113 0 610 7,228

Page 80



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

33

Land and Buildings

V
ehicles, Plant, 

Furniture and 
Equipm

ent

Infrastructure A
ssets

C
om

m
unity A

ssets

Surplus A
ssets

A
ssets  under 

C
onstruction

T
otal Property, Plant 

and Equipm
ent

Movements in 2017/18 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation:

At 1 April 2017 4,567 1,041 1,598 292 150 220 7,868
Additions 97 0 104 50 0 116 367

Valuation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaln 
Reserve

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Valuation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the CIES*

(98) 0 0 0 0 0 (98)

De-recognition of fully 
depreciated assets

0 (965) (499) (132) 0 0 (1,596)

Disposals
0 0 0 0 (150) 0 (150)

Assets reclassified 215 0 0 0 0 (215) 0

Other movements in cost or 
valuation

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2018 4,781 76 1,203 210 0 121 6,391

Accumulated depreciation 
and Impairment
At 1 April 2017 39 991 828 277 0 0 2,135

Depreciation written out to the 
revaluation reserve

21 0 0 0 0 0 21

Depreciation written out to the 
surplus/deficit on the provision 
of services

18 21 87 8 0 0 134

Total depreciation charge for 
the year

39 21 87 8 0 0 155

Impairment losses/(reversals) 
recognised in the revaluation 
reserve

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

De-recognition – disposals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
De-recognition – other** 0 (964) (500) (132) 0 0 (1,596)
At 31 March 2018 78 48 415 153 0 0 694
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2017 4,528 50 770 15 150 220 5,733
At 31 March 2018 4,488 28 788 57 0 336 5,697

‘* Expenditure on improvements to office space and visitor facilities at  the National Park Visitor Centre has been written down in 
the year as it is considered not to have increased the value or expected useful life of the asset.

‘** The entries under ‘de-recognition- other’ relate to historic accumulated depreciation for assets which had reached the end of 
their useful lives and has therefore been written out of both the gross asset value and the accumulated depreciation total.  There is 
no impact on the net value of Property, Plant and Equipment shown in the balance sheet.

Page 81



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

34

Depreciation:  All assets except land are depreciated, in line with the Authority’s Statement of 
Accounting Policies.

Capital Commitments:  As at 31 March 2019 the Authority had the following capital commitments.  

Land 
and 

Buildings

    £000

Vehicles, 
Furniture, 
Plant and 

Equipment
     £000

Infra-
structure 

Assets

     £000

Community 
Assets

     £000

TOTAL

    £000

Capital commitments at 
31/3/19

0 28 9 36 73

Capital commitments at 
31/3/18

25 10 0 393 428

Revaluations:  The Authority carries out a revaluation at least every 5 years to ensure that all 
Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at fair value is accurately valued.  The 
Authority’s land and buildings were last valued as at 31th March 2016 by qualified external valuers in 
accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of 
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.   Other Property, Plant and Equipment is valued at 
historic cost.  Valuations of land and buildings were reviewed on an interim basis by the Authority’s 
external valuers in April 2018.  

NOTE 12:  Intangible Assets 
2017/18                             

£000
2018/19                             

£000
Intangible 

Assets
Intangible 

Assets 
under 

construction

Intangible 
Assets

Intangible 
Assets under 
construction

Balance at start of year
Gross Carrying amounts 64 0 93 0
Less Accumulated  amortisation on de-
recognised asset

(12) 0 0 0

Accumulated amortisation (35) 0 (36) 0
Less Accumulated  amortisation on de-
recognised asset

12 0 0 0

Net carrying amount at start of year 29 0 57 0

Additions – Purchases 25 0 0 0
New Intangible Assets under construction 0 16 0 0
Intangible Assets under construction 
transferred to Intangible Assets

16 (16) 0 0

Amortisation for the period (13) 0 (23) 0
Net carrying amount at end of year 57 0 34 0

Page 82



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

35

NOTE 14:  Debtors
31 March 2018

£000
31 March 2019

£000

Central Government Bodies 183 535
Other Local Authorities 65 18

Other 324 245

Total 572 798

NOTE 15:  Cash and Cash Equivalents
 

31March 2018
£000

31March 2019
£000

Cash held by the Authority 2 2

Bank Current Accounts 1,759 1,845

Notice Accounts 2,000 2,015

Total 3,761 3862

NOTE 16:  Assets Held For Sale

There were no assets held for sale in March 2019 or in March 2018.  

Note 17:  Creditors
31March 2018

Sundry 
Creditors

31March 2019
Sundry 

Creditors
£000 £000

Central Government Bodies 159 110
Other Local Authorities 98 111

Other Entities and Individuals 625 707

Total 882 928

 
NOTE 18:  Unusable Reserves

31 March 2018 
(£000)

31 March 2019 
(£000)

Revaluation Reserve 2,473 3,516
Capital Adjustment Account 3,267 3,732

Accumulated Absences Account* (63) (63)

Pensions Reserve* (8,858) (8,706)

Total (3,181) (1,521)

‘* negative reserves are established for accounting purposes to balance liabilities set up to comply with 
the CIPFA Accounting Code of Practice requirements relating to pensions and staff benefits.

Page 83



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

36

18.1 Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.  The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated 
gains are:

 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
 used in the provision of service and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or 

disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only net revaluation gains accumulated since it was established on 1 April 2007. 
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment 
Account.  

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

2018/19
£000

2,594 Balance at 1 April 2,473

0 Upward revaluation of assets 1,076
0 Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 

charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
(5)

0 Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not 
posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

1,071

(21) Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation

(28)

(100) Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped

(121) Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (28)

2,473 Balance at 31 March 3,516

Page 84



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

37

18.2  Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or 
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, 
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve 
to convert fair value figures to an historical cost basis).  The Account is credited with the amounts set aside 
by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that 
the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
Note 6 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving 
the Revaluation Reserve.

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

2018/19
£000

3,170 Balance at 1 April 3,267

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to 

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

(155)  Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (198)

(98)  Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (25)

(13)  Amortisation of intangible assets (23)

0  Revenue Expenditure funded from capital under  statute 0

(150)
 Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale 

as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement

0

(416) (246)

121 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 28

(295) Net amount written out of the cost of non-current assets consumed in 

the year.

(218)

Capital financing applied in the year

76  Capital Receipts applied to finance capital expenditure 55

77  Use of the Capital Grants Unapplied Account to finance Capital 

Expenditure

170

206  Capital grants and contributions credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that have 

been applied to capital financing

455

33  Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 3

392 683
3,267 Balance at 31 March 3,732

Page 85



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

38

18.3 Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting 
for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions.  The Authority 
accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the 
benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect 
inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.  
However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s 
contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible.  The debit 
balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and 
current employees and in the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them.  The statutory 
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.  

2017/18
£000

2018/19

(7,681) Balance at 1 April (8,858)
(750) Actuarial gains/( losses) on pensions assets and liabilities 620
(980) Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement

(1060)

553 Employer’s pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable 
in the year

592

(8,858) Balance at 31 March (8,706)

18.4 The Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund 
Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, eg annual leave entitlement 
due but untaken at 31 March.  Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is 
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.  

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

(66) Balance at 1 April (63)
3 Net change in Accrual; amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is 
different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements

0

(63) Balance at 31 March (63)

Page 86



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

39

NOTE 19:  Cash Flow Statement: Operating Activities

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

2018/19
£000

Cash Inflows from Operating Activities

3,010 Government grants 3,287
942 Levies on Constituent Authorities 892
705 Cash received for goods and services 819

6 Interest received 25
923 Other operating cash receipts 511

5,586 5,534

Cash Outflows on Operating Activities

(3,651) Cash paid to and on behalf of employees (3,766)
(1,756) Other operating cash payments (1,626)
(5,407) (5,392)

179 Net Cash flow on Operating Activities 142

NOTE 20:  Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

(374) Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (710)
200 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets
0

943 Other receipts from investing activities (Capital Grants) 669
769 Net cash flows from investing activities (41)

Page 87



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

40

NOTE 21:  Subjective Analysis of Authority Expenditure as reported to Management

This note provides further detail of the subjective breakdown of income and expenditure within the 
Authority’s principal departments as recorded the management accounts.   
* Other includes National Park Grant and Levies, Transfers to and from Earmarked reserves, and Interest Income.
Departmental Income 
and Expenditure 2018/19

Planning Countryside 
and 

Community

Chief 
Executive’s 

Office

Other* Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees, charges and other 
service income

(225) (883) (28) 0 (1,136)

Interest and Investment 
income

0 0 0 (25) (25)

Grants and Contributions 0 (375) 0 0 (375)

Income from Non-Specific 
Grants and Levies

0 0 0 (4,313) (4,313)

Total Income (225) (1,258) (28) (4,338) (5,849)

Employee expenses 987 2,095 653 0 3,735
Other service expenses 99 1,196 313 3 1,611
Transfers to/(from) reserves 0 0 0 405 405
Net proceeds from asset sales 0 0 0

Total Expenditure 1,086 3,291 966 408 5,751

Net Expenditure 861 2,033 938 (3930) (98)

Directorate Income and 
Expenditure 2017/18

Planning Countryside 
and 

Community

Chief 
Executive’s 

Office

Other* Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees, charges and other 
service income

(258) (940) (180) 0 (1,378)

Interest and Investment 
income

0 0 0 (6) (6)

Grants and Contributions (198) 0 0 (198)
Income from Non-Specific 
Grants and Levies

(4,678) (4,678)

Total Income

(258) (1,138) (180) (4,684) (6,260)

Employee expenses 981 1,859 850 0 3,690
Other service expenses 153 955 372 33 1,513
Transfers to/(from) reserves 1,628 1,628
Net proceeds from asset sales (200) (200)
Total Expenditure 1,134 2,814 1,222 1,461 6,631

Net Expenditure 876 1,676 1,042 (3,223) 371

Page 88



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

41

NOTE 22:  Members’ Allowances 
The Authority paid the following amounts to members of the Authority during the year.  

2017/18    
£000

2018/19   
£000

 Allowances       94 104
Expenses 18 14
Total 112 118

NOTE 23:  Officers’ Remuneration and termination benefits
The remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees who received remuneration (in total or pro-rata) 
of more than £60,000 per for the year is as follows:

Salary Expenses Employer’s 
Pension 

Contribution

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

2018/19
Chief Executive 73 0 16 89
Delivery Director 
(from 28/1/19)

9 0 2 11

2017/18
Chief Executive to 31/1/18 66 0 15 81

Director of CLM Department, 
then Chief Executive from 
1/2/18

60 0 14 74

There were no other senior employees receiving remuneration of more than £60,000 per annum (none in 
2017/18).

The annual salary of the Chief Executive Officer as a multiple of the median salary of an Authority employee 
(£24,657) is 3.     (3 in 2017/18 of the median salary of £23,398). 

Termination Benefits
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies are set out in the table below.   Bands have been combined where required to ensure 
confidentiality.

Exit package cost 
band (including 
special payments)

Number of 
compulsory 
redundancies

Number of other 
departures agreed

Total number of 
exit packages by 
cost band

Total cost of exit 
packages in each 
band 

£ 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
£000

2018/19 
£000

0-60,000 0 4 2 0 2 4 6 63

Page 89



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

42

NOTE 24:  External Audit Costs
The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, 
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections provided by the Authority’s external auditors.

Fees payable to external auditors for:
2017/18 

£000
2018/19

£000
Financial Audit Fee 27 27
Adjustments and rebates re prior years (1) (3)
Performance Audit fee (statutory inspections) 17 17
Total 43 41

NOTE 25:  Grant Income
The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year.

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
National Park Grant 3,006 2827

   National Park Capital Grant 206 455
   National Park Specificl Projects Grant 730 594
   Levies – Powys County Council 554 525

Carmarthenshire County Council 138 131
Monmouthshire County Council 106 100

               Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council 48 45
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 38 36
Blaenau Gwent County Borough Council 29 25
Torfaen County Borough Council 29 27

   Total 4,884 4,768
   Credited to Services

EU Grants 24 400
WG Access and Nature Fund Grants 50 0
Other Government Grants 124 22
Other Local Authority Grants and Contributions 154 133
Heritage Lottery Fund Grant 142 115
Other Grants 0 37
Donations and Legacies 133 26
Total credited to services 627 733
Total Grants, Contributions and Donations 5,511 5,501

NOTE 26: Related Parties
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that 
have the potential to control or influence the Authority or to be controlled or influenced by the Authority.  
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Authority might have been 
constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s 
ability to bargain freely with the Authority.

Page 90



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

43

26.1 Central Government
The Welsh Assembly Government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority – it 
provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and by determining the total Levy which the 
Authority may make on its Constituent Local Authorities.  It also sets objectives for the Authority by means 
of the Memorandum of Understanding and the annual Strategic Grant Letter.  The Authority’s operations and 
management are also controlled by a statutory framework encompassing a range of legislation which includes 
a definition of its statutory purposes and duty.  Government grant receipts in the years to 31 March 2019 and 
2018 are included in Note 25.

26.2 Members
The 24 Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and operating policies.  
The total of members’ allowances paid in 2017/18 and in 2018/19 is shown in Note 21.  Where members are 
personally affected by decisions made by the Authority they are required to declare an interest and refrain 
from taking part in those decisions and discussions relating to them.  Details of members’ interests are 
recorded in the Register of Members’ Interests, available on the Authority’s website, together with further 
details of expenses paid to Members for the year.

26.3 Other Public Bodies
The Constituent Local Authorities, within whose boundaries the Authority’s own boundary runs, contribute 
to the finances of the Authority by means of a statutory levy, determined by the Welsh Assembly 
Government.  Each of these authorities provides a number of councillors to serve as members of the National 
Park Authority, broadly in proportion to the size of the levy they contribute and their area within the 
National Park.  The authority represented by each member is shown in Appendix 1 of the Statement of 
Accounts.  Grants for specific purposes are also received from or via local authorities and the total of these is 
shown in Note 25.

26.4 Senior Management
The Chief Executive and Directors of the Authority are in a position to influence the Authority’s policies and 
allocation of its resources.  Payments to senior officers with a remuneration of greater than £60,000 per 
annum are identified in Note 23.  All staff are required to declare gifts and hospitality received.  

26.5 Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority
The Authority gives grants for specific purposes to organisations under the Sustainable Development Fund 
Grant Scheme but it is not considered that the Authority has control, joint control or significant influence 
over the entities assisted.  The Authority has historically given an annual subscription to the Welsh 
Association of National Park Authorities, which exists to promote the interests of the 3 Welsh National 
Parks.  This was £nil in 2017/18 and 2018/19 as contributions were waived.

The Authority also contributes to National Parks UK Ltd, a limited company set up to foster collective 
working and raise the profile of the 15 UK National Parks.  The Chairs of all National Park Authorities are 
Directors of the Company.   The company, through the National Parks Portal, provides a vehicle for National 
Park Authorities to jointly procure and fund common web-based resources and IT services such as the 
fileservers and to co-ordinate IT.   In 2018/19 the Authority contributed £2,535 to the Portal and £7,750 to 
National Parks UK Ltd

The Authority set aside a reserve for future funding of £10,000, towards the National Parks Partnership in 
2017/18.  A further payment of £10,000 was made in 2018/19.  This is a Limited Liability Partnership formed 
by all 15 UK National Park Authorities to generate commercial sponsorship and other funding for the benefit 
of all the Authorities.  The Chief Executive is one of 10 Board members of the Partnership.

Page 91



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

44

NOTE 27: Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the 
resources that have been used to finance it.  If capital expenditure were to be financed in future years by 
charges to revenue as assets were used by the Authority, the expenditure would require a calculation of the 
Capital Financing Requirement.  As the Authority is currently debt-free, this calculation is not required. 

2017/18
£000

2018/19
£000

Opening capital financing requirement 0 0
Capital investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 367 683
Intangible Assets 25 0

392 683
Less: Sources of finance  

Government grants and other contributions (206) (170)
Capital Grants Account Applied (77) (455)
Capital Receipts Applied (76) (55)
Direct revenue contributions (33) (3)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 0 0

NOTE 28: Leases

28.1 The Authority as Lessee
Finance Leases:  the Authority currently has no material leases which are classified as finance leases under the 
terms of the CIPFA Code of Practice.  

Operating Leases:  The Authority’s headquarters, some office equipment and its vehicle fleet have been 
acquired under operating leases.  The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in 
future years are:

Total Commitments Under Operating 
Leases

31 March                 
2018
£000

31 March                 
2019
£000

Payments within 1 year
Buildings 22 22
Office Equipment 3 3
Vehicles 50 61
Total 86
Payments 2-5 years 75
Buildings 59 37
Office Equipment 3 0
Vehicles 7 160
Total 69 197

Payments after 5 years 0 0
Total Commitments 144 283

28.2 The Authority as Lessor
Finance Leases:  the Authority does not lease out property under terms which would be classified as finance 
leases under the terms of the CIPFA Code of Practice.  (There were none in 2017/18)Page 92



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

45

Operating Leases:  the Authority leases out parts of its premises at the Craig y nos Country Park but lessees 
do not have security of tenure.
 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are nil:

NOTE 29: Impairment Losses
The CIPFA Code of Practice requires the Authority to disclose any impairment losses or reversals charged to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of services and to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  
These disclosures are consolidated in Notes 11 and 12, reconciling the movement in the year in the Property, 
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset balances.

There were no impairments identified during 2018/19 (none in 2017/18).   Land and Buildings were revalued 
as at March 2016 and their asset lives reassessed.  A desktop review of the asset valuation to identify any 
material changes to existing values was carried out by the Authority’s valuers as at 1 April 2018.  

NOTE 30: Termination Benefits
The Authority terminated the contracts of 4 employees in 2018/19 incurring liabilities of £62,850.  In 2017/18 
it terminated the contracts of 2 employees incurring liabilities of £6,161.  See also note 23.  

NOTE 31:  Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions towards 
the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these benefits will not be payable until employees retire, the 
Authority has a commitment to make the payments that must be disclosed at the time when employees earn 
their future entitlement.  In accordance with International Accounting Standards, disclosure of certain 
information concerning assets, liabilities, income and expenditure relating to pension schemes is required.  

FUNDED SCHEMES
The disclosures below relate to the funded liabilities within the Powys County Council Pension Fund (“the 
Fund”) which is part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (the “LGPS”).  The LGPS is a funded defined 
benefit plan with benefits earned up to 31 March 2014 being linked to final salary.  Benefits after 31 March 2014 
are based on a career average revalued earnings scheme.  Details of the benefits to be paid for the period 
covered by this disclosure are set out in the ‘LGPS Regulations 2013’ and the ‘LGPS (Transitional Provisions, 
Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014’.

The funded nature of the LGPS requires Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and its employees to pay 
contributions into the Fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment 
assets.  Information on the framework for calculating contributions to be paid is set out in ‘LGPS Regulations 
2013’ and the Fund’s ‘Funding Strategy Statement’.  In order to calculate the level of contributions required to 
meet its share of the Fund’s liabilities and to obtain the disclosures and calculations required to complete the 
annual Statement of Accounts, the Authority uses the services of a qualified actuary; AON Hewitt Limited.  

The last actuarial valuation was at 31 March 2016 and the contributions to be paid until 31 March 2020 resulting 
from that valuation are set out in the Fund’s Rates and Adjustment Certificate.  The Fund Administering 
Authority, Powys County Council is responsible for the management of the Fund.

The Authority recognises gains and losses immediately in full through entries in ‘Other Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure. International Accounting Standards require disclosure of certain information concerning 
assets, liabilities, income and expenditure relating to pension schemes.  There have been significant changes in 
assets and liabilities as a result of the 2016 actuarial valuation.

Contributions for the period ending 31 March 2019:  The Authority’s regular contributions to the Fund for the 
accounting period to 31st March 2019 are estimated to be £0.58m. Additional contributions may also become 

Page 93



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

46

due in respect of any employer discretions to enhance members’ benefits in the Fund over the next accounting 
period.  The duration of funded liabilities is 20.6 years.

UNFUNDED PENSION ARRANGEMENTS
Unfunded arrangements arise from termination benefits paid on a discretionary basis upon early retirement in 
respect of member of the LGPS.  Brecon Beacons National Park Authority recognises gains and losses in full, 
immediately through Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  The date of the last full actuarial valuation 
of the employer’s LGPS unfunded benefits was 31st March 2016.  

In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, disclosure of certain information concerning 
assets, liabilities, income and expenditure relating to pension schemes is required.  Contributions for the 
accounting period ended 31 March 2020: In this period, the Authority expects to pay £0.00m directly to 
beneficiaries.

PENSION FUND ASSETS

The assets allocated to the Employer in the fund are notional and are assumed to be invested in line with the 
investments of the Fund for the purposes of calculating the return to be applied to those notional assets over 
the accounting period.  The Fund is large and holds a significant proportion of its assets in liquid investments.  
As a consequence there will be no significant restriction on realising assets if a large payment is required to be 
paid from the fund in relation to an employer’s liabilities.  The assets are invested in a diversified spread of 
investments and the approximate split of assets for the Fund as a whole (based on data supplied by the 
Administering Authority) is shown in the disclosures split by quoted and unquoted investments.  

The Administering Authority may invest in a small proportion of the Fund’s investments in the assets of some 
of the employers participating in the fund if it forms part of their balanced investment strategy.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE FUND IN RELATION TO ACCOUNTING

Asset volatility
The liabilities used for accounting purposes are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate 
bond yields.  If assets underperform, this yield will create a deficit in the accounts.  The Fund holds a significant 
proportion of growth assets which are expected to outperform corporate bonds in the long term creates 
volatility and risk in the short term in relation to the accounting figures.

Changes in bond yield
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the liabilities for accounting purposes 
although this will be marginally offset by the increase in the assets as a result.

Inflation risk
The majority of the pension liabilities are linked to either pay or price inflation.  Higher inflation expectations 
will lead to a higher liability value.  The assets are either unaffected or loosely correlated with inflation meaning 
that an increase in inflation will increase the deficit.

Life Expectancy
The majority of the Fund’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member following retirement, 
so increase in life expectancy will result in an increase in the liabilities.

Exiting employers
An employer who leaves the Fund (or their guarantor) may have to make an exit payment to meet any shortfall 
in assets against their pension liabilities.  If the employer (or guarantor) is not able to meet this exit payment, 
the liability may in certain circumstances fall on the other employers in the Fund.  Further, the assets at exit in 
respect of ‘orphan’ liabilities’ may in retrospect not be sufficient to meet the liabilities.  This risk may also fall 

Page 94



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

47

on other employers in the Fund.  ‘Orphan liabilities’ are currently a small proportion of the overall liabilities in 
the Fund.

Key Financial assumptions for funded and unfunded arrangements (% per annum)

31 March 
2017

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2019

Discount rate 2.6 2.6 2.4
RPI Inflation 3.1 3.2 3.3
CPI Inflation 2.0 2.1 2.2
CPI Inflation 2.0 2.1 2.2
Pension Increases 2.0 2.1 2.2

Salary increases 3.5 3.6 3.7
Mortality  assumptions for funded and unfunded arrangements

The mortality assumptions are based on actual mortality experience of members within the Fund based on 
analysis carried out as part of the 2016 valuation and allow for expected future mortality improvements.  Sample 
life expectancies as at 65 resulting from these mortality assumptions are shown below.

Post-retirement mortality
(retirement in normal health)

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2019

Males
Member aged 65 at accounting date 23.1 22..4

Member aged 45 at accounting date 24.9 23.7

Females

Member aged 65 at accounting date 25.8 24.8

Member aged 45 at accounting date 27.6 27.6

Asset allocation for funded and unfunded arrangements

Value at 
31/3/2018

Value at 31/3/2019
%

Total Quoted Unquoted Total

Equities 52.0 47.8 4.7 52.5

Property 11.9 9.7 0.0 9.7
Government Bonds 14.3 14.7 0.0 14.7

Corporate Bonds 6.6 6.0 0.0 6.0

Cash 1.1 2.1 0.0 2.1
Other 14.1 15.0 0.0 15.0

Total 100 95.3 4.7 100
Page 95



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

48

Reconciliation of funded status to Balance Sheet

Value as at 31 
March 2018

Value as at 31 
March 2019

Fair value of assets 20.88 23.03
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 29.69 31.69
Pension asset/(liability) recognised on the Balance Sheet as per Actuary (8.81) (8.66)
Accrued payment into the Fund for pension fund strain not included in 
actuary calculation of fair value of assets for the year.

0.00 0.00

Pension asset/(liability) recognised on the Balance Sheet 
(funded liability)*

(8.81) (8.66)

*See also unfunded liability later in this note.
The split of the defined benefit obligation at the last valuation date between the various categories of 
members was as follows:

Active Members 38%
Deferred Pensioners 27%
Pensioners 35%

Amounts recognised in profit and loss and other comprehensive income

Period ending 31 

March 2018
Period ending 31 

March 2019
£m £m

Operating Cost
Current service cost(1) 0.79 0.81
Past service costs 0.00 0.03
Settlement cost 0.00 0.00
Financing Cost

Interest on net defined benefit liability 0.19 0.22

Pension expense recognised in profit and loss 0.98 1.06

Re-measurement in  Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure
Return on plan assets (in excess of)/below that 
recognised in net interest.

0.03 (1.30)

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in financial 
assumptions (Funded Schemes).

0.57 1.90

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in financial 
assumptions. (Unfunded Schemes)

0.0 0.0

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in demographic 
assumptions.

0.00 (1.27)

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in liability 
experience

0.15 0.05

Total Amount Recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

0.75 (0.62)

Total Amount Recognised

‘(1) The current service cost includes an allowance for the 
administration expenses of £0.02m for both years

1.73 0.44

Page 96



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

49Page 97



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

50

Changes to the present value of defined benefit obligation during the accounting period

Period ending 31 
March 2018

Period ending 31 
March 2019

£m £m
Opening defined benefit obligation 27.78 29.69
Current service cost 0.79 0.81
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 0.72 0.77
Contributions by participants 0.16 0.16
Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities – financial 
assumptions.

0.57 1.90

Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities – demographic 
assumptions

0.00 (1.27)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities – experience 0.15 0.05
Net benefits paid out# (0.48) (0.45)
Past service costs including curtailments 0.00 0.03
Net increase in liabilities from disposals/acquisitions 0.00 0.00
Settlements 0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

Closing defined benefit obligation 29.69 31.69

Changes to the fair value of assets during the accounting period

Actual return on assets

Period ending 
31 March 

2018
£m

Period ending 
31 March 

2019
£m

Interest Income on assets 0.53 0.55
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on assets (0.03) 1.30
Actual return on assets 0.50 1.85

Period ending 
31 March 2018

£m

Period ending 
31 March 2019

£m

Opening fair value of assets 20.15 20.88
Interest Income on assets 0.53 0.55
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on assets (0.03) 1.30
Contributions by the employer 0.55 0.59
Contributions by participants 0.16 0.16
Net benefits paid out (0.48) (0.45)
Net increase in assets from disposals and acquisitions 0.00 0.00
Settlements 0.00 0.00
Closing fair value of assets 20.88 23.03

Page 98



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

51

Reconciliation of unfunded scheme to balance sheet

Value as at 31 

March
2018
(£m)

Value as at 31 
March
2019
(£m)

Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.05 0.05
Asset(/Liability) recognised on the balance sheet (0.05) (0.05)

Amounts recognised in profit and loss and other comprehensive income and expenditure for 
unfunded schemes

Period ending 31 
March 2018

Period ending 31 
March 2019

£m £m

Total Amount Recognised 0.00 0.00

Changes to the present value of unfunded benefit obligations during the accounting period

Period ending 
31 March 2018

£m

Period ending 
31 March 2019

£m

Opening unfunded defined benefit obligation 0.05 0.05
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience 0.00 0.00
Closing unfunded defined benefit obligation 0.05 0.05

Estimated pension expense in future periods

Period ending 31 

March 2020
Current service cost 0.87
Interest on net defined benefit liability/(asset) 0.20
Total estimated pension expense 1.07

Allowance for administration expenses included in Current Service Cost: £0.02m
Estimated pensionable payroll over the period: £2.53m

Sensitivity Analysis

The approximate impact of changing the key assumptions on the present value of the funded defined benefit 
obligation at 31 March 2019 and the projected service cost for the period ending 31 March 2020 is set out 
below.  

In each case only the assumption mentioned is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and are 
summarised in Section 1.   

There is no sensitivity analysis of unfunded benefits on materiality grounds.

Page 99



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

52

+0.1% p.a. Base Figure -0.1% p.a.

Discount Rate Assumption
Adjustment to discount rate

Present value of total obligation (£m) 31.04 31.69 32.35
% change in present value of total obligation -2.0% 2.1%
Projected service cost (£m) 0.84 0.87 0.90
Approximate % change in projected service cost -3.1% 3.2%

Rate of general Increases in salaries 
Adjustment to salary increase rate

Present value of total obligation (£m) 31.84 31.69 31.54

% change in present value of total obligation 0.5% -0.5%

Projected service cost (£m) 0.87 0.87 0.87

Approximate % change in projected service cost 0.0% 0.0%

Rate of increase to pensions in payment, 
deferred pensions assumption and rate of 
revaluation of pension accounts assumption         
Adjustment to pension increase rate

Present value of total obligation (£m) 32.20 31.69 31.19

% change in present value of total obligation 1.6% -1.6%

Projected service cost (£m) 0.90 0.87 0.84

Approximate % change in projected service cost 3.2% -3.1%

Post retirement mortality assumption   
Adjustment to mortality age rating 
assumption*

-1 year Base Figure + 1 year

Present value of total obligation (£m) 32.72 29.69 30.67

% change in present value of total obligation 3.2% -3.2%

Projected service cost (£m) 0.90 0.87 0.84

 3.6% -3.8%

‘* a rating of + 1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality 
pattern of the base table for an individual that is 1 year older than they are.

NOTE 32: NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS
The Authority has no financial instruments of its own but its activities expose it to three principal financial risks:

 Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority
 Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments 

to make payments
 Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in 

such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

Page 100



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

53

The Authority, being debt-free and placing its surplus funds, in accordance with its Treasury Management 
Strategy, in instantly accessible accounts or on short-term deposit, with a bank which has a very high credit 
rating has minimised its exposure to the risk of failure by another party to repay funds deposited.  

The risk of losses from the failure of customers to pay the Authority is minimised through the Authority’s debt 
management procedures.  The majority by value of the Authority’s debtors are other public bodies which are 
considered to have good credit ratings.  (See Note 13: Debtor Balances).

As the Authority has funds in immediately accessible bank accounts and in short-term deposits, it has limited 
exposure to liquidity risk.  Interest rates are regularly reviewed and consideration given to placing funds on 
deposit should interest rates become more favourable.

The Authority is not exposed to market risk except in relation to its share of the Powys Pension Fund.  See 
Note 31 for further details.  

NOTE 33: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent Liability in relation to the Powys Pension Fund.  The McCloud judgement

In December 2018 the Court of Appeal ruled against the Government in the 'McCloud/Sargeant' judgement 
which found that the transitional protection arrangements put in place when the firefighters' and judges' pension 
schemes were reformed were age discriminatory. The ruling potentially has implications for all public sector 
schemes which were reformed around the same time and could lead to members who were discriminated 
against being compensated. 

The transitional protections applied to all active members of public service schemes who were within 10 years 
of their Normal Pension Age on 1 April 2012. In relation to the LGPS, all members were moved into the new 
2014 Scheme, but members within 10 years of normal retirement were given an underpin (or 'better of both') 
promise, so their benefits would be at least as valuable in terms of amount and when they could be drawn than 
if they had remained in the 2008 Scheme. 

The Government has applied to the Supreme Court for permission to appeal this judgement.
If this appeal is unsuccessful, the case would be referred back to the Employment Tribunal to agree what the 
remedy would be following appropriate consultation. For the purpose of reporting a contingent liability it would 
be prudent to assume the remedy would be equivalent to extending the 'best of both' underpin to all members.

The Government Actuary's Department (GAD), under instruction of the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board, has 
calculated a potential IAS 19 accounting liability of [TBC – expected to be 0.5% to 1.0%] of defined benefit 
obligation, should the government be unsuccessful in its application to appeal or if the Court of Appeal's 
judgement is upheld by the Supreme Court and the agreed remedy for the LGPS is to extend the 'underpin' 
protections to all members. This estimate is at Scheme level encompassing a range of different assumptions 
typically used by employers to report pension costs. The eventual impact on the Authority's accounts will 
depend on the remedy chosen by government to compensate members (which may not be the scenario 
modelled by the GAD); the membership profile (age/sex/salary) of the Authority’s membership, and the 
assumptions used to report pension costs at time of recognition.

The estimated liability makes a number of simplifications including: assuming that all post-2012 joiners would be 
compensated; assuming members would receive 'better of both' the pre-2014 Scheme benefits and post-2014 
Scheme benefits by the time they reach their pre-2014 normal pension age; assuming the underpin applies only 
to members on retirement, and not in the case of members voluntarily leaving the scheme before retirement, 
and assuming no compensation would be granted to employees who paid higher contribution rates whilst in the 
2015 Scheme. 

Page 101



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

54

It is unknown what impact this will have on future employer contributions to the Powys Pension Fund (the 
Fund). The Fund is a funded arrangement with employers paying contributions based on the results of regular 
local valuations, with the next valuation due as at 31 March 2019. Where an additional liability arises in the Fund 
in relation to past service this will result in increased employer contribution rates in the future. Employer 
contributions towards future service may also increase if the 'better of both' test is extended beyond members 
within 10 years of normal pension age at 1 April 2012. 

However, legislation requires government to monitor and control the underlying costs of the Scheme (via the 
Cost Management process agreed as part of the reform of public service pension schemes). If the cost of the 
LGPS, as monitored by both the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board and HM Treasury under separate legislation, 
moves out of line with the envelope cost set when the Scheme was reformed, this could trigger amendments 
to member benefits, or contributions, to bring the cost to the Employer/taxpayer back into line. The SAB in 
England and Wales had agreed recommended changes to member benefits and contributions to increase the 
cost by 0.9% of pay as required by the SAB cost management process. However, the Cost Management process 
across all of the public service schemes is currently on hold pending the outcome of the government's appeal 
to the McCloud judgement, so the net effect of both the McCloud judgement and the Cost Management 
processes is currently unknown. Further information is published by the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board on their 
website (http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-reform/cost-management).

GMP Indexation and Equalisation
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) is a portion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were 
contracted out of the State Second Pension prior to 6 April 1997. All of the public service schemes, including 
the LGPS were contracted out.

Reforms to the State Pension system on 6 April 2016 removed the facility by which central government paid 
top-up payments to members with GMP who reached State Pension Age after that date. Before 6 April 2016 
the LGPS was not required to pay full CPI increases on GMPs, so the top up payments had ensured that both 
state and scheme pensions, when combined, kept pace with inflation.

In March 2016 the government introduced an 'interim solution' which made the LGPS responsible for paying 
the full increases on GMPs for individuals reaching State Pension Age (SPA) from 5 April 2016 through 6 
December 2018. This cost was accounted for in 2017.

In January 2018 Government extended the interim solution to individuals reaching SPA before 5 April 2021, 
passing further cost to the LGPS. This has not yet been accounted for. Government policy is to fully index and 
equalise GMP pensions for men and women reaching SPA after 5 April 2021 but has not yet enacted this in 
legislation.

Separately, on 26 October 2018 the High Court ruled in the Lloyds Bank case that equalisation for the effect of 
unequal GMPs is required. The ruling confirmed that trustees have a duty “to equalise benefits for men and 
women so as to alter the result which is at present produced in relation to GMPs".

HM Treasury have responded to confirm that public sector schemes already have a method to equalise 
guaranteed minimum pension benefits (through the interim solutions and commitment to pay full increases on 
GMPs) and they do not plan to change their method as a result of that judgment.

Aon, as the Fund's actuary has estimated that the potential IAS 19 accounting liability of full GMP indexation 
(and equalisation) for members reaching State Pension Age from 6 December 2018 to be in the region of 0.3% 
of the defined benefit obligation. This estimate has been calculated for a typical LGPS Fund and is indicative of 
an additional liability for a typical employer and does not reflect the individual characteristics of the Authority's 
membership. Costs could be higher for employers with a membership that is older than average (who 
predominantly accrued service between 1978 and 1997 when GMPs were being accrued). 

Page 102

http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/structure-reform/cost-management


Brecon Beacons National Park Authority                        Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2019

55

The Fund is a funded arrangement with employers paying contributions based on the results of regular local 
valuations, with the next valuation due as at 31 March 2019. The 2019 valuation of the Fund is expected to 
include the liability of the second interim solution to April 2021. It is currently not known if the 2019 valuation 
will allow for indexation beyond 2021, as this will depend on the timing of any Scheme changes announced by 
HM Treasury and the Administering Authority's policy on reflecting this risk within contribution rates. Where 
an additional liability arises in the Fund in relation to past service this will result in increased employer 
contribution rates in the future.

GUIDANCE\LGPS - Contingent liability accounting at 31 March 2019 - McCloud judgement re pensions.docx

Page 103

GUIDANCE/LGPS%2520-%2520Contingent%2520liability%2520accounting%2520at%252031%2520March%25202019%2520-%2520McCloud%2520judgement%2520re%2520pensions.docx


This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit update

Name of 
Committee

 Audit and Scrutiny

Date 26th July 2019

Report Author Elaine Standen

Job title Finance Manager

Contact Details Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report To update the Committee on progress on the internal audit 
programme for the year and the revised Internal Audit Plan

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 Revised Internal Audit Plan

Recommendation(s) a)  That the contents of the report and outstanding 
management actions are noted

1.1 Introduction or Background
This is year 2 of a three-year internal audit service level agreement with TIAA to provide 
internal audit services.  A draft annual plan and updated 3-year programme was reviewed by the 
Committee in April and, in response to comments made some revisions were made to the plan 
for the year.

1.2 Proposals

The revised internal audit plan is enclosed.  Under the plan the following audits were scheduled 
for July 2019; these are in progress.

Quarter Fundamental Audits Type Days Rationale and  Scope

Block 1 Risk Management – 
Business Continuity 
Planning

Appraisal 3 Rationale

Key business risk.

Scope

The review considers the arrangements for business continuity 
planning including policy/strategy and procedures, 
organisational responsibility, plan details for various scenarios 
and testing.  The audit will consider the planning in place in the 
context of Brexit and the continuity and resilience of the 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10



Quarter Fundamental Audits Type Days Rationale and  Scope

response by the Authority. The scope of the review does not 
include providing assurance that the business continuity 
planning covers all the risks faced, or that the arrangements 
proposed operate continuously and effectively.

Block 1 ICT Security – Cyber 
Security

Assurance 3 Rationale

A review of ICT is included in each year of the Strategic Plan.

Scope

The high level review will consider the practical and technical 
security measures that the organisation has deployed to 
minimise the risk of succumbing to a cyber-incident. It will also 
consider the extent to which staff awareness has been 
addressed to minimise the risk of behaviours giving rise to a 
cyber-incident.

The audit will be undertaken by a specialist IT auditor.

Block 1 Human Resources Assurance 3 Rationale

Operational risk area.

Scope

The review will consider whether Human Resources (HR) 
processes and records are appropriate to the needs of the 
organisation and identify if any improvements can be made in 
the way information on staff absence, recruitment, expenses, 
timesheets, performance and other records are managed and 
processed.  The audit will consider whether appropriate staff 
and other resources are available for robust HR management.

1.3 Implications
Actions arising from the above audits will be assigned to managers and monitored by CGT.  
Below is a summary of the remaining actions arising from 2018/19 audits. An audit review of 
implementation of all management actions arising from 2018/19 will be undertaken in the 
Autumn.

2018/19 – YEAR 1 - Block 1-  11-15th June 2018

Governance – Performance Management

Outstanding Actions New 
process 
or Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

All reporting officers 
must provide a 
comment against each 
PI on at least a 

Process Information is missing and is 
not being chased up by 
department/service leads.

Page 106



quarterly basis – these 
will be reviewed by 
Managers.

Action:

Review use and management of 
Ffynnon to ensure best value 

31/3/20 CGT/DMT

A summary report 
including officer 
commentary and any 
Manager comment is 
compiled by the IT 
Manager for the 
quarterly report to 
the A&S Committee

task Action: 

Content and format of report 
to be reviewed in time for Q1 
ASC reporting 2019/20

26/7/19 IT manager

General Data Protection Regulations readiness

Outstanding Actions New 
process 
or Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

A mechanism for 
monitoring progress 
against the Data 
Protection Act 2018 
compliance plan be 
established.

Process Action: 

Review of progress on 
outstanding actions to be 
included in future Corporate 
Governance Team agendas.  A 
progress review is being carried 
out by the IT Manager.

31/8/19 IT Manager/CGT

2018/19 – YEAR 1 - Block 2 -  8th - 12th October 2018

Project Management 

Outstanding Actions New 
process 
or Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

Grants Policy to be 
drafted, to include 
process of initiation 
and review on 
completion.

Task Action: 

Project Closure template 
document is drafted

30/9/19 Delivery Director

Strategic control 

Page 107



Outstanding Actions New 
process 
or Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

Member role 
description to be 
reviewed jointly by all 
three Welsh NPA’s.

Task Action: review the generic 
role description.  This is a 
requires National Parks Wales 
consideration and will take 
some time to process.

31/3/20

CEO

Democratic 
Services Manager

Key Financial Controls 

Outstanding Actions New 
process 
or Task?

Issues or further action 
identified

When by? Who by?

Staff advised/reminded 
that they should notify 
their line manager and 
the HR Officer of any 
conflict of interest 
arising from their role, 
such as also acting as a 
supplier to the 
Authority and that this 
will be recorded on 
their personal file

Task/ 
process

Code of conduct for staff has 
been incorporated into HR 
policies and approved by NPA

All staff have been asked to read 
the updated policies and sign a 
form to confirm.

31/7/19 All staff 

Payroll Procedures and 
documentation should 
be reviewed and 
updated if necessary.

Task Procedures have not been 
updated recently and will 
required some revision.  
Original deadline revised. 30/09/19 Finance Manager

1.4 Risk
Internal audits address areas assessed as higher risk for the Authority and will recommend 
actions which will help to manage and reduce risks.  Internal audit is one of the tools which is 
used by Members and management to gain assurance that internal controls are operating 
effectively.

Page 108



1.5 Conclusion
Members and senior management should understand the internal controls operated by the 
Authority and take action where significant risks or weaknesses are identified.  Action in this 
regard will need to be prioritised in the context of the Authority’s limited resources in the light 
of appetite for risk.

RECOMMENDATION:

a) That the contents of the report and outstanding management actions are noted

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



 COMPLIMENTS LIST Date:  16th July 2019

NO DATE COMMENTS
9 12/06/2019 Member of the public from Cardiff Ramblers thanking Lisa Lloyd, Clive Williams, the Wardens, and volunteers for creating 

the paths behind the trees as discussed. 
8 03/06/2019 Various thank you emails to Sunita Welch, Suzanna Jones, Alan Bowring, Wayne Evans, Peter Bradley, Geraint Roberts, 

Toby Small for doing a tremendous job in Hay Festival Walk.
7 03/06/2019 Thank you to Richard Farquhar and Rhys Powell for their assistance in taking part with the repairing the PYO Letterbox Aven 

at Porth yr Ogof Cave entrance to stabilize the platform, from Caving advisor to BBNPA 
6 29/05/2019 Thank you email to Hayley Sharp, Geraint Roberts and Anna Edwards from Chew Magna visit for the wonderful time the children 

had. The children gained so much from both the great range of activities that you provided but also by your warm, professional 
approach which made the children feel very comfortable and helped increased their confidence levels.

5 21/05/2019 Dwr Cymru Welsh Water thanking Jon Pimm for his assistance at Llyn y fan Fawr.  He was very supportive and knowledgeable 
which made their task easier.

4 30/04/2019 Thank you email to Donna Bowhay for the help and input 
3 30/04/2019 Received various compliments for the information staff at the NPVC for they help and guidance
2 22/04/2019 Compliment form sent into the authority stating “My family and I recently walked the path from Pandy to Hay Bluff. The amount 

of work done on the path is massive. The area is superb and the path made it relatively easy going. Thanks so much for all the 
work to enable easy access and protect the scenery. It was good to see the paragliders flying the area as well. They all 
seemed very friendly and polite.
Thanks so much”

1 02/04/2019 Thank you email to Sam Ridge for the help provided to filming company, stating he was amazing 

NB – Highlighted columns are new compliments since last Management Team 

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Scrutiny Committee 
Complaints

Date:  1st April 2019 – 16th July 2019

TOTAL OPEN CLOSED COMMENTS

Total Number of 
complaints

10 2 8 2 still ongoing (still within 
timescale) 

Acknowledged 
within 5 working 
days

Yes:  9
No:   1

N/A N/A

Responded within 
20 working days

Yes:  8
No:  

2 N/A 2 still ongoing(still within 
timescale)

Stage II requests

Stage II declined

2

0

1 1

Upheld
Not Upheld
Partial 
Ongoing
Withdrawn

1
5
1
2
1

N/A N/A

EX- Gratia 
Payments

0 N/A N/A

BREAKDOWN IN  
DEPARTMENTS

Planning 
Department

7 N/A N/A

Countryside 2 N/A N/A

CEO Department 1 N/A N/A

NOT SPECIFIED N/A N/A

Page 125



Page 126



Audit & Scrutiny Committee 

SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS

1st April 2019– 16th July 2019

NO: Summary of Complaint Date received Date responded Responded 
within  20 w/d 

timescale

Complaint 
upheld

Department 
responsible

10 Complaint in the way the SAR has been handled. 24/06/2019 Ongoing Corporate 

9 Complaint  - Adoption of SPG  - Former Mid-Wales Hospital 26/06/2019 ongoing Planning

8 Complaint in relation to planning having no received no 
response

10/06/2019 18/06/2019 YES Upheld Planning

7 Complaint in relation to publishing personal information on 
authority’s website

31/05/2019 07/06/2019 YES Not upheld Planning

6 Complaint received in relation to Mountain Centre Caters 
renewal.

14/05/2019 31/05/2019 YES Not upheld Countryside 

5 Complaint about an officer making unprofessional 
comments

14/05/2019 Withdrawn by 
Complainant. Been 
dealt with 
internally

N/A N/A Countryside 

4 Complaint – BBNPA not following the correct protocol 
without notifying neighbours and granted planning 
permission 

03/05/2019 06/06/2019 YES Not upheld Planning 

3 Complaint  - Adoption of SPG  - Former Mid-Wales Hospital 02/05/2019 03/06/2019 YES Not Upheld Planning

2 Complaint  - National Park Failing - Planning Application 
18/16603/FUL

16/04/2019 17/05/2019 YES Partial Planning

P
age 127



1 Complaint in relation to Mid Wales Hospital 14/04/2019 02/05/2019 YES Not Upheld Planning

N.B- Columns coloured yellow are new Complaints received and updates since last Meeting 

P
age 128



Audit & Scrutiny Committee   

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION  

1st April 2019 – 16th July 2019

TOTAL OPEN CLOSED EXTENSION 
OF TIME 

COMMENTS

Total Number of FOI 5 1 4

Acknowledged within 5 
working days

YES: 5
NO:    

N/A N/A N/A

Responded within 20 
working days

YES: 
NO:    

4 N/A N/A One open, still within 
timescales 

Internal Reviews 1 0 1

Subject Access Request 1 0 1

P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



[Type text] 1 [Type text]

Audit & Scrutiny Committee 

SUMMARY OF FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUESTS

1st April 2019 – 16th July 2019

N.B- Columns coloured yellow are new FOI requests and updates since last Meeting 

Number Nature of Freedom of Information Request Date Received Date responded
Responded 

within 
timescale

5 FOI information in relation to the Feasibility study for which the Black Mountains 
College was awarded £82,500 

26/06/2019 Ongoing Still within 
timescales

4 FOI information relating to Ecologists within the Authority 06/05/2019 23/05/2019 YES
3 Information request on amount spent and brief summary of project/purpose 

consultants the authority used between Jan 2016 to Jan 2019
03/05/2019 Clarification on 

request sent but 
no reply 

Closed 

2 Seeking information on enforcement action taken by planning authority in relation to 
properties offered for short-term lets via platforms such as Airbnb

25/04/2019 09/05/2019 YES

1 Information on Former Mid Wales Hospital 08/04/2019 09/05/2019 YES

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Assurance Framework – quarter 1

Name of 
Committee

Audit and Scrutiny

Date 26 July 2019

Report Author P Funnell

Job title Systems and Performance Manager

Contact Details Paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk

Purpose of Report Update on Corporate Plan delivery in respect of 
performance and associated risk

Single Integrated 
Assessment

Not applicable

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 – Integrated Assurance Framework

Enclosure 2 – Detailed performance report

Enclosure 3 – Full risk register

Public Interest Test Not applicable 
Recommendation(s) a) That members discuss and query the content of 

the report

b) That members review the usefulness of the new 
reporting format

c) That members formally note the receipt of the 
report

1.1 Introduction and Background

The integrated assurance framework has been introduced at the recommendation of internal 
audit (reported to this committee in February) following a workshop with members, officers, 
and internal and external auditors.

Page 133

Agenda Item 13

mailto:Paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk


The new framework sets out each of the objectives from the corporate plan’s 5 work areas 
along with the risks to those objectives, their controls, assurances and actions in a single 
integrated table. 

The framework can stand alone or be cross-referenced to the detailed report on performance 
and the full risk register should further detail be required from drilling down into any particular 
objective.

1.2 Points of note

As this is the first time this new format has been used officers are still finding their way with 
how the framework brings the relevant information together and how best to represent the 
current situation in their work area.  Consequently there may be some variations in approach 
when entries for each area are compared.

Not all entries can be compared like for like, some objectives relate to tried and tested ways of 
working and delivery to the Authority’s purposes and duty, others are forward-looking and 
constitute statements of intent about change and improvement.  Again, this has led to variation 
in the way information is set out.

It is not intended that every row and column is completed for every area since not all topics 
will be applicable in each case.  Indeed, this report contains a much fuller set of responses than 
might typically be seen in such a document.

Members will note that the item relating to the Communication Strategy has been scored as 
red as a Plan has not yet been adopted. The Chair had requested that the Plan be presented to 
the Governance and Member Development Working Group and a draft version of the Plan was 
tabled at the last Working Group meeting for the Members of that Group to provide initial 
feedback prior to wider internal consultation.

Members will also note that there are gaps in relation to activity connected to the Authority’s 
property assets. An external review of these assets is presently underway and it is anticipated 
that Cooke & Arkwright who are undertaking the review will be completing their work by the 
end of August.

1.3 Considerations

As usual with previous performance and risk reports Members may wish to raise questions 
about any particular item of content in the enclosures and officers will either address these in 
the meeting or furnish follow up information where an immediate response isn’t possible.

In addition officers would find it useful if Members could indicate whether the new format 
better meets their expectations and needs in their role as the coordinating body for assurance 
to the Authority.  Suggestions for further improvements to the process and format would be 
welcome.

Page 134



RECOMMENDATION(S):

a) That members discuss and query the content of the report

b) That members review the usefulness of the new reporting format

c) That members formally note the receipt of the report

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

BBNPA - Board Assurance Framework 2019/20

Corporate 

Objective Main Risks

Lead 

Officer Topic

Key Controls 

and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and sytstems

Postitive assurance on controls 

(evidence of effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance 

(weak evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve 

gaps and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Pl
an

s

LDP, Heritage 
Strategy

GREEN
Capacity and political pressure

Statutory and subject to rigourous 
strategy

GREEN
Staff capacity

Staff and 
Finance Resource effectively

GREEN

M
ee

tin
gs

PMT, KWAG
GREEN Managing expectations of 

Member Champios at KWAG's Monitoring and review of agenda's
AMBER

Staff capacity
Staff and 
Finance

Training for member 
champions and Chairs of 
Policy Forum

GREEN

Po
lic

ie
s/

G
ui

da
nc

e

PPW, TANs, 
LDP, SPGs

GREEN
Failure to keep updated

3 Park consultations, POSW, Stategic 
partnership groups

GREEN
Conflicting 
priorities and 
evidence

Staff and 
Finance

Clear organisational 
objectives and 
participation

GREEN

Co
nt

ra
ct

s/
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p

s
DPAT, CPAT, 
Idox

AMBER

Other priorities of partners Review of MoU's

AMBER Conflicting 
priorities and 
evidence

Staff and 
Finance

Periodic review of 
effective operation

AMBER
Fi

na
nc

e

Budget 
monitoring

GREEN

Sufficient measures in place 
Overview by Finance Manager and 
Auditors

GREEN

Lack of funding
Staff and 
Finance

Prioritisation and 
improved collaboration

GREEN

Q
ua

lit
y

AMR, APR, 
WGQS

GREEN Nuances of a small authority can 
be missed. Consistent and timely 
data entry.

Review and compare. Regular briefing 
from managers

AMBER Capacity and 
competing 
priorities

Staff and 
Finance Training  and review

GREEN

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y

PMT, MT

GREEN

Staff change
Generic job descriptions and 
management

AMBER
Competing 
priorities. Budget 
cuts

Staff and 
Finance

Training and review, 
organisational 
prioritisation

AMBER

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

PAROW, ASC, 
PINS

GREEN

Subject to political influence Monitoring Officer

GREEN
Officers have 
limited control

Staff and 
Finance

Member training and 
organisational 
prioritisation

GREEN

Actions/StatusRisk

Heritage

Conserve and 
enhnace the 

cultural heritage of 
the Park's 

communities 
including the use of 

the Welsh 
Langauage; Built 
Heritage and the 

Historic 
Environment.

Tracy 
Nettleton

Future budget 
constraints/ external 
funding opportunities
/ retention of staffing 

levels/ loss of skills
Lack of interest in 

partners to participate 
in actions

Potential resourcing 
impacting on our 
ability to deliver a 

qualtiy serrvice

Controls Assurances

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 1

P
age 137



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

BBNPA - Board Assurance Framework 2019/20

Corporate 

Objective

Main Risks Lead 

Officer

Topic Key Controls 

and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and sytstems

Postitive assurance on controls 

(evidence of effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance (weak 

evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve 

gaps and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Pl
an

s

NRAP

GREEN

Future status and capabilities of 
key stakeholders

NRAP includes a survey and monitoring 
objective, the implementation of which 
will provide this assurance.  Until then, 
only the staff and stakeholder 
commitment provides this.

AMBER

Largest source of information 
are BIS datasets.  Large gaps 
therein; ERAMMP will be at a 
higher level; needs a specific 
survey and monitoring 
programme for BBNP.

Staff and 
finance

Resource and implement 
NRAP objectives

GREEN

M
ee

tin
gs

SDT, SLG, 
KWAWG, 
Policy Forum

GREEN

LNP meetings are held as and 
when required; NRAP launch 
event planned for July 2019.

Critical success factor will be the extent 
to which LNP stakeholders commit to 
leading work on the NRAP within the 
BBNP.

AMBER

Strength of LNP relies on the 
strength and range of LNP 
stakeholders, and their 
willingness and capacity to 
contribute directly, and to lead.

Staff and 
finance

Support and encourage 
LNP stakeholder boards 
and governors

GREEN

Po
lic

ie
s/

G
ui

da
nc

e

GREEN

Legislation strong; WG legislative 
intentions strong; easy read 
across to strong policy; but 
policies not yet in place.

Statutory duty to deliver SMNR 
objective and to report on how we have 
conserved and enhanced biodiversity 
and delivered resilience of ecosystems; 
first report due 2019.

AMBER

Gaps will be revealed by the first 
2019 report.  Likely to reflect the 
heavy focus on four focal areas 
rather than where, ecologically, 
are the best areas on the BBNP 
to engage.

Staff and 
finance

Pending 2019 report on 
S6 duty

GREEN

Co
nt

ra
ct

s/
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s BMLUP

AMBER

Initial struggle as BMLUP found 
its feet.  BMLUP is heavily reliant 
on disproportionate input by 
BBNPA.  BBNPA plays a lead role 
for LNP.  Needs more input from 
other stakeholders.

For BMLUP, SMS Scheme Management 
Unit, now within the RPA, provides this 
assurance.  Whilst there is a small 
budget for NRAP implementation, just 
one contract let (Vital Signs ENRAW 
grant).  Again, a critical success factor 
will be the extent of LNP stakeholder 
commitment…

AMBER

Partnerships seem to rely on 
cash; money talks!  Little 
partnership work yet underway 
for NRAP.

Staff and 
finance

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

AMBER

Fi
na

nc
e

A&SC, WAO, 
CIPFA

GREEN

BMLUP is RDP Wales funded; no 
guarantees beyond BREXIT and 
new March 2020 deadline set for 
all capital spend.  Now past the 
real risks created by RPA Wales 
not paying a year's worth of 
invoices.  Small NRAP budget 
from two WG unfunded 
pressures grants, a small INNS 
Project (WG unfunded pressures 
grant) and a Vital Signs 
development project (ENRAW).

These grants are all finite sources of 
funding; unless there's core funding, 
then NRAP implementation will remain 
dependent on external funding.  So, a 
critical success factor for BBNPA might 
be the size of the core staff 
commitment.

AMBER

Will there be another RDP 
Wales?  HLF is highly 
competitive; no guarantee of 
ongoing WG unfunded 
pressures.  Need other financial 
instruments (trusts, land- and 
site-based trusts, CICs, CIOs etc.)

Staff and 
finance

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

GREEN

Assurances Actions/Status

Landscape and Biodiversity

Develop and deliver 
a Nature Recovery 

Action Plan - ‘A 
Future with Nature 

at its Heart’ to 
restore wildlife and 
habitats and build a 
network of resilient 

and better 
connected 

ecosystems within 

Resource allocaton 
and response by LNP 

stakeholders;  slow or 
insufficient response 

to the climate 
emergency and 

collapse of the natural 
world

Paul 
Sinnadurai

Risk Controls

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 2

P
age 138



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

Corporate 

Objective

Main Risks Lead 

Officer

Topic Key Controls 

and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and sytstems

Postitive assurance on controls 

(evidence of effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance (weak 

evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve 

gaps and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Assurances Actions/Status

Landscape and Biodiversity

Risk Controls

Q
ua

lit
y

A&SC

GREEN

Ffynnon reporting; LG 
recommendations to Policy 
Forum will lead to a shift in 
emphasis, which has potential to 
affect this work +vely and         -
vely.

Quality means the level of ecosystem 
function, and function includes a wide 
range of factors, each of which require 
surveillance and monitoring or a 
surrogate method that gives key 
indicators; yet to be developed or 
implemented.  We have provided ideas 
to the national ERAMMP project but this 
will need to be supplemented with a 
finer grained survey and monitoring 
programme explicitly for BBNP.

AMBER

Quality means the level of 
ecosystem function, and 
function includes a wide range of 
factors, each of which require 
surveillance and monitoring or a 
surrogate method that gives key 
indicators; yet to be developed 
or implemented.  We have 
provided ideas to the national 
ERAMMP project but this will 
need to be supplemented with a 
finer grained survey and 
monitoring programme explicitly 
for BBNP.

Staff and 
finance

Needs a survey, 
survillance and 
monitoring programme; 
Vital Signs development 
project will, if the fully 
funded proposal wins 
funding, address 
particular species- and 
habitat-level gaps, and 
achieve greater 
involvement by local 
people.  But there 
remains a need for a 
deeper understanding of 
ecosystem function and 
status. 

GREEN

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y SLG, SDT

AMBER

LG recommendations to Policy 
Forum will lead to a shift in 
emphasis, which has potential to 
affect this work +vely and         -
vely.

Success will show up in the range of 
projects underway and the levels of 
practical engagement by BBNPA staff, 
LNP stakeholders and people living and 
working in BBNP.

AMBER

Yet to measure the collective 
(LNP) financial and staff cost to 
achieve a realistic NRAP 
implementation over a set 
period, e.g., 5, 10 years, 20 years 
etc.

Staff and 
finance

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

AMBER

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

A&SC

AMBER

Partnership governance is 
reasonably strong but also relies 
heavily on BBNPA input; needs a 
full time Project Mgr.  LG 
recommendations to Policy 
Forum will lead to a shift in 
emphasis, which has potential to 
affect this work +vely and         -
vely.

Critical success factor will be the extent 
to which LNP stakeholders commit to 
leading work on the NRAP within the 
BBNP.

AMBER

High level commitment, 
prioritising nature recovery 
required, in response to climate 
emergency and nature's collapse 
emergency.

Staff and 
finance

Support and encourage 
LNP stakeholder boards 
and governors

AMBER

the National Park

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 3

P
age 139



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

BBNPA - Board Assurance Framework 2019/20

Corporate 

Objective Main Risks

Lead 

Officer Topic

Key Controls 

and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and sytstems

Postitive assurance on controls (evidence of 

effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance 

(weak evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve gaps 

and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Pl
an

s

Strategic 
Equality 
Plan,HWB 
Position 
statement, 

GREEN

capacity
Joint SEP with other publci sector  going 
forward 

GREEN Joint SEP with 
other publci sector  
going forward 

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

GREEN

M
ee

tin
gs

SDT, KWAWG, 
SLG

GREEN
reliant on external stakeholders

good level of participation to date across all 
sectors 

GREEN
Competing 
priorities for 
partners

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

GREEN

Po
lic

ie
s/

G
ui

da
nc

e

GREEN
Strong but widely interpreted 
legislation (WFG Act), Child 
Poverty Duty

AMBER Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

AMBER

Co
nt

ra
ct

s/
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

project 
partnerships

AMBER

reliant on external stakeholders
good level of participation to date across all 
sectors 

GREEN

staff capacity 
(time) to engage & 
liaise with e  
partners

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

AMBER

Fi
na

nc
e

Budget 
monitoring

RED
Reliant mostly on external 
funding & limited staff time to 
secure Overview by Finance Manager and Auditors

AMBER
No guarantee of 
ongoing external 
funding

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

AMBER

Q
ua

lit
y

ASC
GREEN delivery through short term 

projects limits potential benefits 
evaluations & independent evaluation of 
impact eg. by Cardiff Uni

GREEN
temporary staff

GREEN

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y

SLG/SDT

AMBER

delivery through short term 
project & some temporary staff

currently some capacity for cover in event 
of project staff absence or leaving

AMBER

reducing core staff 
reduces cover & 
puts project 
delivery & 
commitment to 
funders at risk

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

AMBER

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

ASC

GREEN
Reliant on external partners 
participation in project steering Good participation to date

AMBER Competing 
priorities for 
partners

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

AMBER

Pl
an

s

NPMP,Corp 
Plan

AMBER Needs up to date plan for Econ & 
social wellbeing 

Annual SDF report, SD team report,Corp 
Plan

AMBER
staff capacity(time)

Economic and social 
wellbeing strategy to be 
produced in 2019/20

AMBER

M
ee

tin
gs

SDT, KWAWG, 
SLG, SDF

GREEN

Reliant on external stakeholder 
engagement

To date stakeholder engagement for place 
plans, project proposals, funding leverage 
&delivery  has been good 

AMBER

To be seen if 
revised priorities 
will attract same 
level of stakeholder 
commitment

AMBER

Po
lic

ie
s/

 
G

ui
da

nc
e

SLG/SDT

AMBER Strong but widely interpreted 
legislation (WFG Act) Reporting in Corporate plan

AMBER level of detail in 
Corp plan

Economic and social 
wellbeing strategy to be 
produced in 2019/20

AMBER

Co
nt

ra
ct

s/
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

SLG/SDT

GREEN Reliant on external stakeholder 
engagement inc. Place Plan 
groups Overview by SD Manager

GREEN Capacity and 
competing 
priorities

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

GREEN

Assurances Actions/Status

Resilient Communities - Objective 2

Enable a diverse 
cross section of 
society to gain 

health and 
wellbeing benefits 
from the National 

Park

Future budget 
constraints/ external 
funding opportunities
/ retention of staffing 

levels/ loss of skills
Lack of interest in 

partners to participate 
in actions

Potential resourcing 
impacting on our 
ability to deliver a 

qualtiy serrvice

Clare 
Parsons

Resilient Communities - Objective 1

Collaborate to 
identify key 

challenges and 
progress innovative 

solutions for 
sustainable living in 

Future budget 
constraints/ external 
funding opportunities
/ retention of staffing 

levels/ loss of skills
Lack of interest in 

partners to participate 
in actions

Potential resourcing 

Clare 
Parsons

Risk Controls

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 4

P
age 140



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

Corporate 

Objective Main Risks

Lead 

Officer Topic

Key Controls 

and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and sytstems

Postitive assurance on controls (evidence of 

effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance 

(weak evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve gaps 

and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Assurances Actions/StatusRisk Controls

Fi
na

nc
e

Budget 
monitoring

GREEN Reliant on SDF for financial 
leverage & influence/NPA stake Overview by Finance Manager and Auditors

AMBER ongoing funding 
uncertainty

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

AMBER

Q
ua

lit
y

ASC
GREEN Wide ranging initiatives & 

delivery partners Manager review & discussion
GREEN

Capacity and 
competing 
priorities

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

GREEN

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y

SLG/SDT

GREEN

Potential change in emphasis 
Currently good capacity & capability in core 
staffing 

GREEN
Competing 
priorities. Budget 
cuts

Pending Leadership Group 
recommendations to NPA

GREEN

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

ASC, SDF 

GREEN Reliant on external SDF panel 
time contribution & Place plan 
groups To date high level of commitment

GREEN Changes in priority 
may dissuade 
involvement

Engagement with 
stakeholders

GREEN

sustainable living in 
the National Park

Potential resourcing 
impacting on our 
ability to deliver a 

qualtiy serrvice

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 5

P
age 141



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

BBNPA - Board Assurance Framework 2019/20

Corporate 

Objective Main Risks

Lead 

Officer Topic

Key Controls 

and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and sytstems

Postitive assurance on controls 

(evidence of effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance 

(weak evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve 

gaps and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Pl
an

s Sustainable 
Tourism 
strategy

AMBER
Needs up to date plan for Econ & 
social wellbeing Annual reporting 

AMBER

staff capacity(time)

Economic and social 
wellbeing strategy to be 
produced in 2019/20

AMBER

M
ee

tin
gs

SDT, KWAWG, 
SLG,SDP, SDF

AMBER

Reliant on external stakeholder 
engagement

To date stakeholder engagement for 
SDP, projects, business training, place 
plans, project proposals, funding 
leverage &delivery  has been good 

AMBER

To be seen if 
revised priorities 
will attract same 
level of 
stakeholder 
commitment

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

AMBER

Po
lic

ie
s/

G
ui

da
nc

e
AMBER

Strong but widely interpreted 
legislation (WFG Act)

AMBER
level of detail in 
Corp plan

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

AMBER
Co

nt
ra

ct
s/

 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps

SLG/SDT

AMBER
Reliant on external partners &  
stakeholder engagement 

Overview by SD Manager & Tourism 
manager

AMBER Capacity and 
competing 
priorities

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

AMBER

Fi
na

nc
e

Budget 
monitoring

AMBER

Reliant on external funding 
(tourism & Vis management)   
SDF for financial leverage & 
influence/NPA stake

Overview by Finance Manager and 
Auditors

AMBER
ongoing funding 
uncertainty

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

AMBER

Q
ua

lit
y

ASC

GREEN
Wide ranging initiatives & 
delivery partners Manager review & discussion

GREEN
Capacity and 
competing 
priorities

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

GREEN

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y

SLG/SDT

GREEN

Potential change in emphasis 
Currently good capacity & capability in 
core staffing 

GREEN
Competing 
priorities. Budget 
cuts

Pending Leadership 
Group recommendations 
to NPA

GREEN

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

ASC

GREEN
Reliant on external partners eg 
for SDP,SDF

GREEN
Changes in priority 
may dissuade 
involvement

Engagement with 
stakeholders

GREEN

Assurances Actions/Status

Sustainable Economic Development

Work with key 
partner 

organisations to 
promote and 

support sustainable 
income generating 

opportunities in the 
National Park while 

preserving the 
special natural and 
cultural qualities of 

the NP

Future budget 
constraints/ external 
funding opportunities
/ retention of staffing 

levels/ loss of skills
Lack of interest in 

partners to participate 
in actions

Potential resourcing 
impacting on our 
ability to deliver a 

qualtiy serrvice

Clare 
Parsons

Risk Controls

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 6

P
age 142



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

BBNPA - Board Assurance Framework 2019/20

Corporate 

Objective Main Risks

Lead 

Officer Topic Key Controls and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and systems

Postitive assurance on controls 

(evidence of effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance 

(weak evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve 

gaps and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Pl
an

s

LDP, NPMP, Corporate Plan, 
other strategic documents.  
Integrated Assurance 
Framework.

AMBER
NPMP actions not fully 
completed.

NPMP action review.  Annual 
Monitoring Report for LDP.  Annual 
Report on Corporate Plan.

AMBER
Weaknesses in 
SoPR and evidence 
base.  

Review of priorities and 
programmes.  LDP2.  
NPMP 21-25. SoPR 2020.

AMBER

M
ee

tin
gs

CGT.  CG&MDWG.  Policy 
Forum.  Standards 
Committee.  Decision 
making framework.

GREEN
Some issues with KWA/PF and 
new corporate structure

Internal audit reports (two consecutive 
years of full assurance)

GREEN
02 - Members' 
adherence to 
code of conduct

Review of governance 
and management 
strucutres in autumn 
2020

GREEN

Po
lic

ie
s/

 
G

ui
da

nc
e Standing orders, scheme of 

delegation, financial 
regulations, policies and 
guidance notes

GREEN
Local resolution protocol and 
member/officer code of conduct 
need review

Internal audit reports (two consecutive 
years of full assurance)

GREEN
Monitoring Officer and 
CGMDWG overseeing 
review

GREEN

Co
nt

ra
ct

s/
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

Welsh Government, WAO, 
Internal Audit, external legal 
advice, WLGA

GREEN Annual Improvement Report, internal 
audit reports, annual governance 
statement

GREEN GREEN

Fi
na

nc
e

Financial Regulations, 
finance system architecture, 
authorisation limits, 
reporting to management 
and Audit and Scrutiny, 
budget management 
system, contract standing 
orders, anti-fraud measures, 
banking security measures 
and controls.

AMBER

Staff capacity, non-compliance 
with procedures, collusion is 
possible, reliance on integrity of 
staff.  Loss of separation of 
duties due to size of 
organisation,  lack of access to 
finance system when off-site, 
cover for absence

Internal and external audit, budget 
performance, accounts, systems 
operated by external providers are 
subject to their own audits - 
carmarthenshire and cardiff councils

GREEN Line managers 
should actively 
review budgets of 
their team and 
challenge spending 
variances

see finance 
detailed risk 
register

all staff with financial 
responsibility to be given 
access to finance system 
when offsite.  Line 
managers to incorporate 
budget review into 
PMR's where appropriate 
and document corrective 
actions agreed.

AMBER

Q
ua

lit
y

Webcasting of all public 
committees.  Advanced 
Charter for member 
development.  Complaints 
handling process.

GREEN

Audit reports.   Ombudsman.  ICO.

GREEN GREEN

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y

Member induction and 
continuing development 
programme.  CG&MDWG.

AMBER
Staffing resource vs remit and 
expectations.  Impact of changes 
in membership. Audit reports. 

AMBER
Concerns with 
capacity and stress 
are anecdotal

19 - Corporate 
Capacity 13 - 
Lack of 
continuity of 
membership 

Transformation 
programme.  Stress 
survey.

AMBER

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

Audit and Scrutiny.  
Standards Committee.

GREEN

Audit reports

GREEN GREEN

Pl
an

s

Draft communication 
strategy

RED
No existing strategy or action 
plan. Social media monitoring.

RED
Assessment of 
uptake, reach, 
awareness levels.

RED

M
ee

tin
gs

CG&MDWG.  Webcasting of 
all public committees.

AMBER
Webcasting system underutilised 
for other meetings Stats on webcasting and website usage.  

AMBER
Stats not regularly 
reviewed, no 
targets.

AMBER

Julian 
Atkins

Risk Controls Assurances Actions/Status

Organisation and Governance - objective 1

The Authority is 
recognised for the 

quality of its 
decision-making 
and governance

Future budget 
constraints/ external 
funding opportunities
/ retention of staffing 

levels/ loss of skills
Lack of interest in 

partners to participate 
in actions

Potential resourcing 
impacting on our 

ability to deliver a 
qualtiy serrvice

Organisation and Governance - Objective 2

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 7

P
age 143



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

Corporate 

Objective Main Risks

Lead 

Officer Topic Key Controls and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and systems

Postitive assurance on controls 

(evidence of effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance 

(weak evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve 

gaps and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Risk Controls Assurances Actions/Status

Po
lic

ie
s/

 
G

ui
da

nc
e Draft publicity protocol.  

Guidance on use of social 
media.  Social media trianing 
for members.

AMBER

Internal audit.  Peer review.  WLGA.

AMBER
Not reported on 
recently.

AMBER

Co
nt

ra
ct

s/
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

Welsh language translation 
framework.  SD partnership.  
Destination partnership.  NP 
Partnership.

AMBER
NPW not sufficiently 
coordinated.  NPUK not 
presenting coordinated 
messages.

AMBER AMBER

Fi
na

nc
e

Budget monitoring
GREEN

External audit.
GREEN GREEN

Q
ua

lit
y

Review and signoff of press 
releases.

AMBER Lack of clear procedures. 
Previous KPIs no longer tracked. Internal and external audit.

AMBER Not reported on 
recently. Publicity protocol.

AMBER

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y

Dedicated staff resource 
with clear remits.

AMBER Alignment across staff resource 
to common purpose Internal and external audit.

AMBER Not reported on 
recently.

AMBER

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

Agendas,  minutes and 
recordings of webcasts 
accessible via website. 

GREEN
Authority website requires 
renewal Internal and external audit.

GREEN GREEN

Pl
an

s

NPMP, CP, Change 
Programme

AMBER
Future priorities will emerge 
from change programme and 
need to be reflected in key plans 
& project development process.

Fewer projects within future plans 
aligned to clear priorities

GREEN (statement of 
intent as work in 
progress) See change programme

AMBER

M
ee

tin
gs

SDT for delivery projects
CGT for corporate projects

AMBER
New proposal development 
process launched 1/5/19 so still 
bedding in

Checks built into new proposal process 
prior to funding bids submitted.

GREEN
(statement of 
intent as work in 
progress) See change programme

AMBER

Po
lic

ie
s/

G
ui

da
nc

e

New proposal development 
guidelines, template & 
process

AMBER
Launched on 1/5/19 so need to 
assess whether new guidelines 
being followed Checks at SDT & CGT on new proposals

GREEN
(statement of 
intent as work in 
progress) See change programme

AMBER

Co
nt

ra
ct

s/
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

Contract approval levels (£) 
within new proposal 
development process

AMBER Launched on 1/5/19 so need to 
assess whether new guidelines 
being followed Checks at SDT & CGT on new proposals

GREEN (statement of 
intent as work in 
progress) See change programme

AMBER

Fi
na

nc
e Involvement of finance in 

proposal development 
included in new process

AMBER
Relies on capacity of finance to 
review proposal budgets & 
comments Checks at SDT & CGT on new proposals

GREEN
(statement of 
intent as work in 
progress) See change programme

AMBER

Q
ua

lit
y

Development of new impact 
framework & KPIs included 
in change programmes

AMBER
Framework and future KPIs still 
to be developed

Clear KPIs for all work programmes and 
projects

GREEN
(statement of 
intent as work in 
progress) See change programme

AMBER

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y

New staff communication 
channels to reconfirm 
proposal development & 
project evaluation processes

AMBER New process requires repeated 
messages and confirmation.  
Digital workspace not yet in 
place.

SMF, feedback at staff briefings, staff 
surveys

GREEN
(statement of 
intent as work in 
progress) See change programme

AMBER

G
ov

er
na

nc
e

CG&MDWG, Policy Forum, 
A&SC, KWAGs

AMBER
Governance arrangements to be 
reviewed in autumn, some sense 
that current arrangements are 
overly complex.

Internal and external audit.  Member 
and staff feedback.

GREEN (statement of 
intent as work in 
progress) See change programme

AMBER

Organisation and Governance - Objective 4

To improve the 
way we 

communicate our 
work

Future budget 
constraints/ external 
funding opportunities
/ retention of staffing 

levels/ loss of skills
Lack of interest in 

partners to participate 
in actions

Potential resourcing 
impacting on our 

ability to deliver a 
qualtiy serrvice

Julian 
Atkins

Organisation and Governance - Objective 3

To improve the 
way we select, 

design, implement 
and evaluate 

projects

Future budget 
constraints/ external 
funding opportunities
/ retention of staffing 

levels/ loss of skills
Lack of interest in 

partners to participate 
in actions

Potential resourcing 
impacting on our 

ability to deliver a 
qualtiy serrvice

Steve Gray

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 8

P
age 144



IntegratedAssuranceFramework2019-20.xlsx

Corporate 

Objective Main Risks

Lead 

Officer Topic Key Controls and Systems

Strength of 

Controls

Gaps or weaknesses in controls 

and systems

Postitive assurance on controls 

(evidence of effectiveness)

Strength of 

assurance

Gaps in assurance 

(weak evidence)

Link to risk 

register

Action plan to resolve 

gaps and weaknesses

Overall 

status

Comments 

and Updates

Risk Controls Assurances Actions/Status

Pl
an

s

<SELECT> <SELECT> <SELECT>

M
ee

tin
gs

SDT work programme.
AMBER Reports written fro NPA. SDT action 

points recorded and enacted.
AMBER <SELECT>

Po
lic

ie
s/

G
ui

da
nc

e <SELECT> <SELECT> <SELECT>

Co
nt

ra
ct

s/
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

Cooke and Arkwright report

GREEN <SELECT> <SELECT>

Fi
na

nc
e Budget to come form 

exisiting earmarked 
resources

AMBER Approval needed from WG as to 
allocation.

Written communication via Finance 
manager

GREEN <SELECT>
Q

ua
lit

y

<SELECT> <SELECT> <SELECT>

Ca
pa

ci
ty

/ 
Ca

pa
bi

lit
y

SDT review if needed

AMBER

Staff capacity of lead officers

New Management Structure 
arrangements, positive shape of PET. 
New Management review in Autumn.

AMBER
Capacity risk in 
Corproate.

SLG/CGT/SDT review 
risks.

AMBER

G
ov

er
na

nc
e Member working group 

appointed. 

AMBER

Turnover in Members Minutes taken

AMBER <SELECT>

To define a 
programme for 
developing the 

Authority’s public 
facing property 

assets to help the 
Authority tell the 

National Park 
stories in 

inspirational ways

Future budget 
constraints/ external 
funding opportunities
/ retention of staffing 

levels/ loss of skills
Lack of interest in 

partners to participate 
in actions

Potential resourcing 
impacting on our 

ability to deliver a 
qualtiy serrvice

Sunita 
Welch

P Funnell, BBNPA 17/07/19 Page 9

P
age 145



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 147



P
age 148



P
age 149



P
age 150



P
age 151



P
age 152



P
age 153



P
age 154



P
age 155



P
age 156



P
age 157



P
age 158



P
age 159



P
age 160



P
age 161



T
his page is intentionally left blank



High Scoring Risks

Risk Register CEO CorpServ Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Corporate Governance risks

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2019

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance

02 - Members' compliance with 
code of conduct

Reputation and financial impacts Likely Severe

Red

Monitoring 
officer has 
written to 
Members. 
Guidance 
issued to 
PAROW 
members 
around pre-
determination.

Standards 
Committee, 
Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 
for Wales

03.3 Failure in Information 
Governance arrangements

Information governance Lack of compliance 
monitoring across all business/service areas

Possible Severe

Amber

Planning 
privacy notice 
and report 
content 
guidance being 
reviewed in 
light of recent 
claim of breach. 
PF scheduled 
further training 
for new staff.

Claim of breach 
investigated 
and not founded

ICO, internal 
and external 
audit, CMT

04 BCP & DRP risk to Authority services through inadequate 
business continuity and disaster recovery 
arrangements

Possible Severe

Amber

External unit for 
server room air 
conditioning is 
noisy, 
apparently 
caused by 
corrosion to the 
unit's housing. 
Landlord is 
aware but will 
likely need 
chasing.

13 - Lack of continuity of 
membership of the National Park 
Authority

Risk to delivery of organisational objectives through 
requirement to induct and train new members in 
decision-making and allow them to become familiar 
with organisational history and culture

Possible Minor

Green

Member 
induction and 
development

2 WG 
appointees 
agreed for 
additional 2 
years

18 - Financial constraint Constraint on Authority’s ability to deliver objectives 
and services due to restricted financial settlement 
and income

Very Likely Very Severe

Dark 
Red

Plan for 
strategic review 
of priorities and 
resource 
allocation now 
underway.

5% cut for 
current and 
next year no 
longer applies

Page 1 of 6Performance Report

16/07/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (8).mhtml

P
age 163



19 - Corporate capacity Constraint on Authority’s ability to deliver services, 
meet obligations and realise opportunities due to 
senior officer capacity 

Possible Very Severe

Red

To be reviewed in the autumn as 
the transformation programme 
progresses

Plan for 
strategic review 
of priorities and 
resource 
allocation now 
underway.

21 - Welsh Language Act risk to the Authority's financial and reputational 
standing through non-compliance with Welsh 
Language Act and standards

Possible Moderate
Amber

Report seeking establishment of 
part time WLO to NPA 25 June

22 - Inadequate general Reserves risk to delivery of services and viability of the 
Authority through being unable to meet exceptional 
unforeseen mandatory expenditure re: planning, 
health and safety, redundancy, etc. due to reserves 
being at a level deemed inadequate by the Section 
151 officer

Possible Very Severe

Red

Overall 
reserves are at 
relatively 
healthy level 
thanks to 
prudent 
financial 
controls over 
several years.

23 - Governance arrangements Likely Moderate

Amber

To be reviewed in the autumn as 
the transformation programme 
progresses

New 
frameworks 
emering for 
partnership and 
project 
evaluation as 
well as risk and 
performance 
assurance. 
New 
arrangements 
for Policy 
Forum agenda 
management.

24 - Authority accomodation post 
PYF

That the Authority's future accomodation 
arrangements don't meet requirements for service 
delivery in the future.

Possible Very Severe

Red

Continued 
involvement in 
discussions 
with DPP and 
PCC on new 
developments.

Page 2 of 6Performance Report

16/07/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (8).mhtml

P
age 164



High Scoring Risks

Risk Register CEO CorpServ Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Health and Safety risks

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2019

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance

06 - Compliance failure/litigation: 
external

The risk to the Authority brought about by a failure 
in health and safety compliance in the Park as a 
whole resulting in the potential for litigation

Possible Very Severe

Red

Risk 
assessment 
training nearing 
completion

09 - Compliance failure/litigation: 
our estate

The risk to the Authority brought about by a failure 
in health and safety compliance within the 
Authority's land or buildings resulting in the 
potential for litigation 

Possible Very Severe

Red

Risk 
assessment 
training 
scheduled, 
managers' 
training 
complete

Near miss with 
member of staff 
not following 
procedures and 
having a fall, 
fortunately 
without 
consequence.

Page 3 of 6Performance Report

16/07/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (8).mhtml

P
age 165



High Scoring Risks

Risk Register CEO CorpServ Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Information and IT risks

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2019

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance

03.1ii Hardcopy RM Lack of hardcopy key document management Possible Moderate

Amber

Concerns flagged by CSO PAC/PAR/PLAN
, ROW and 
committee 
records to be 
reviewed, 
scanned and 
captured once 
budget 
identified. 
Assets review 
underway.

DS still behind 
schedule but 
review 
underway.

03.1iii Spatial data RM Poor decision making due to lack of ownership and 
upkeep of spatial data

Unlikely Moderate

Green

PAC/PAR/PLAN
, ROW and 
committee 
records to be 
reviewed, 
scanned and 
captured once 
budget 
identified. 
Assets review 
underway.

Oracle and 
SDE upgraded 
08 - 10 Nov

Page 4 of 6Performance Report

16/07/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (8).mhtml

P
age 166



High Scoring Risks

BBNPA Risk Register Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Risk Register Delivery

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2019

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance

03.1ii Record Management Lack of hardcopy key document management Likely Moderate

Amber

Reviewed no change July1st 2019 PAC/PAR/PLAN
, ROW and 
committee 
records to be 
reviewed, 
scanned and 
captured once 
budget 
identified. 
Assets review 
underway.

Records 
Management 
Policy, DMT, 
CMT, ASC, 
Internal and 
External Audit

03.1iii Spatial data RM Poor decision making due to lack of ownership and 
upkeep of spatial data

Unlikely Moderate
Green

Reviewed no change July1st 2019

06 - Paths and RoW 
erode/deteriorate - lack of 
funding/mgtm plans, env impacts

also environmental impacts Likely Moderate

Amber

No more ROWIP funds from WG, 
no new WG unfunded pressures, 
but new ROWIP to be adopted 
summer 2019. Increasing 
pressures from at risk CC RoW 
delegation agreement.

New ROWIP. Questions re-
emerging 
around funding 
for delegated 
agreements.

17 - Buildings condition and 
maintenance

Lack of strategic continuity planning for BBNPA 
buildings

Possible Moderate

Amber

Reviewed no change to RAG 
July1st 2019. Asset register, 
gazetteer and asset mgmt plan 
currently in preparation.

Asset review 
underway.

Food hygeine 
rating at NPVC

Business continuity and reputation Business continuity and reputation risk arising from 
increasing reliance on fixed term project-focussed 
contracts

Likely Moderate
Amber

Reviewed no change July1st 
2019. Requires discussion within 
SDT.

Under 
discussion with 
HR and Finance

Page 5 of 6Performance Report

16/07/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (8).mhtml

P
age 167



High Scoring Risks

BBNPA Risk Register Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Risk Register PLA

Overall Risk RAG

Risk Description Current Period June 2019

Probability Impact RAG Trend Comment Mitigation Contingency Event Assurance

01 - Risk from Members 
overturning planning 
recommendations

Possible Moderate
Amber

Reviewed no change TN/JP Internal and 
external audit.

03.1ii Hardcopy RM Lack of hardcopy key document management Unlikely Minor

Green

All mountain 
centre files now 
scanned, now 
need loading to 
DMS

Internal and 
external audit.

03.1iii Spatial data RM Poor decision making due to lack of ownership and 
upkeep of spatial data

Possible Moderate

Amber

PS still 
pursuing via 
contact at 
Dudley. TN to 
raise 
ownershsip in a 
role at PMT.

05 - Degradation of cultural and 
historical heritage, including 
buildings at risk, through lack of 
resources

Unlikely Moderate

Green

Reviewed using 5 x 5 RA and 
amended to reflect additional staff 
resource

Staff resources 
in place, 
funding on offer 
WG

Internal and 
external audit.

07 - DC Service Performance Risk to the Park's special qualities and Authority's 
reputation through poor DC service performance

Unlikely Moderate
Green

Reviewed with 5 x 5 RA no 
change

07.1 - Enforcement Service 
Performance

Risk to the park's environment through poor 
enforcement service performance

Unlikely Moderate
Green

Reviewed with 5 x 5 RA amended 
due to full compliment of staff 
resource

Long term staff 
resource issue

08 - Personal safety of staff Unlikely Moderate

Green

De-escalation, 
personal safety 
and conflict 
management 
training revisited

No recent 
reports

09 - Internal applications Risk to finance, reputation and staff relations from 
necessity for internal applications since new legal 
advice

Possible Moderate

Amber

Protocol, 
advice, training, 
guidance, 
scheme of 
delegation

New risk 
created 
following 
receipt of legal 
advice.

Page 6 of 6Performance Report

16/07/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (8).mhtml

P
age 168


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 AGM Minutes
	6 Action Tracking
	7 2018/19 Financial Outturn and Reserves
	Enc. 1 for 2018/19 Financial Outturn and Reserves
	Enc. 2 for 2018/19 Financial Outturn and Reserves

	8 2019/20 Budget Performance to 30 June 2019
	Enc. 1 for 2019/20 Budget Performance to 30 June 2019
	Enc. 2 for 2019/20 Budget Performance to 30 June 2019
	Enc. 3 for 2019/20 Budget Performance to 30 June 2019

	9 Statement of Accounts 2018/19
	Enc. 1 for Statement of Accounts 2018/19

	10 Internal Audit Update
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Update

	12 Compliments/Complaints/Freedom of Information
	Complaints
	Complaints Summary
	Freedom of Information
	Freedom of Information - Summary

	13 Integrated assurance framework
	Enc. 1 Integrated assurance framework
	Enc. 2 Performance detail
	Enc. 3 Risk Register


